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OUR
FOUNDER

Syed
Humayun
Kabir

Driven by his belief of health, happiness and
dignity for all, Founder Syed Humayun Kabir
devoted himself to the service of humanity. He
started SAJIDA Foundation in 1987 from his
garage by providing non-formal education to
destitute children.
Mr Kabir was the first Managing Director of
Pfizer Ltd. Bangladesh. In 1993, Pfizer
transferred ownership of its Bangladesh
operations to local shareholders. During this
transfer, Mr Kabir setup Renata Ltd. and
convinced Pfizer to donate 51% ownership to
SAJIDA Foundation, which strengthened its
capacity to serve the poor and marginalised.
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“To do well in one's profession provides self-fulfillment.
However, doing well in the work that we do
provides much more fulfillment. This is because
we are an organisation working to save lives,
to prolong lives, and to improve the quality of lives.”

I
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OUR
STORY

SAJIDA Foundation
is a value-driven,
non-government
organisation

It embodies the principle of corporate
philanthropy, with 51% shareholding of Renata
Ltd., a leading pharmaceutical company. The
organisation, founded in 1993, aims to deliver
meaningful and sustainable change in the lives
of people from all strata, through a portfolio
comprising of financial products and services,
specialised social enterprises, and community
centric development programs. SAJIDA’s
development programs focus on communitybased health programs leveraging digital
solutions, urban poor rehabilitation, WASH,
livelihood and skills development, agriculture
systems, and more.
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Going forward, SAJIDA will invest to pilot
and scale data driven initiatives, structure
partnerships with development financial
institutions and continue to setup specialised
subsidiaries including an independent research
institute.
SAJIDA has a robust governance structure and
values on which it was founded. Inclusiveness
and transparency have been consistently
recognised by regulators, professional boards
and international partners.

The organisation has come a long way since its humble beginnings in 1993 when it was
presented as a gift to the Patron Sajida Humayun Kabir on their 25th wedding anniversary.
Mrs Kabir is a former board member of BRAC, life member of Diabetic Association of Bangladesh,
and is currently serving as Vice President and Secretary General of the Society for Welfare of the
Intellectually Disabled.

Sajida Humayun Kabir
Patron
SAJIDA Foundation

I
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CHAIRPERSON’S
Message
Much has changed in human lives across the globe
since the beginning of our Covid-19 existence.
Much has changed in most aspects of life of
people living through the pandemic of unknown
elements and uncertainties caused by it. But
despite the tragedies and damages resulting from
the pandemic, there were many wins to celebrate.
Initiatives taken by all concerned stakeholders in
safeguarding lives were commendable. Effective
survival centric assistance and initiatives have
been instrumental in Bangladesh being recognized
as the top nation in South Asia’s COVID-19
recovery index.
SAJIDA Foundation has marched through the year
maintaining a balance in lives and livelihood. A
key focus of this organization was to ensure right
support to the communities at the right time.
During strict lockdowns, SAJIDA disbursed more
than BDT 15 crore in cash grants to daily wage
earners and vulnerable individuals. Thousands
of households received cooked meals for one to
three months; procured from a network of local
restaurants; to ensure no one was left hungry
when earning capacity plummeted.
Collaboration has been a key pillar in SAJIDA’s
COVID-19 response initiative. In the last year,
SAJIDA has continued to be at the forefront to
address unprecedented stress on the health
system. We feel privileged to have supported
four Government hospitals in border districts and
major COVID hotspot zones through SAJIDA’s
COVID Hospital Assistance Program. The program
dealt with strengthening of treatment facilities,
deploying dedicated healthcare professionals
and training hospital staff to ensure sustainable
operations of local healthcare system and timely
delivery of care to severely affected communities.

The ongoing phase of SAJIDA’s COVID response
initiatives is geared to economic recovery
and reintegration of communities. SAJIDA’s
microfinance unit has launched a BDT 100
crore Green Bond to support microbusiness and
livelihood recovery. Innovative programs blending
grants and working capital financing is being
piloted in multiple communities to assist the
recovery of severely affected households.
Against all odds, Bangladesh’s economy showed
remarkable resilience to achieve more than 5%
GDP growth. In these stressful times, the UN has
given a boost to the spirit of this nation with an
additional reason to celebrate the 50th anniversary
of the country’s independence by announcing that
Bangladesh will graduate from LDC to a Developing
Nation in November 2026.
Resilience and humanitarian commitment has also
been the hallmark of the staff in the SAJIDA family.
With immense personal risks and sufferings, they
have been frontline workers supporting hapless
people all over the country. I am honored to say
“THANK YOU” to all our staff for braving so much
to take up challenges enabling SAJIDA to reach
greater heights in these very trying times.

Abdul Muyeed Chowdhury
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CEO’S
Message
The past year has been one of learning from
experience to bounce back stronger. As brave souls
continued to provide essential services amidst the
continuing pandemic, SAJIDA worked alongside the
Government to serve communities in dire need of
support.
When border district hospitals were overwhelmed
due to the high infection rate, SAJIDA promptly
mobilised its frontliners through the Hospital
Assistance Program - a remarkable example of
how non-state healthcare actors can play a role in
protecting and saving lives. Working alongside 4
public hospitals in Jashore, Chuadanga, Meherpur,
and Pabna, we ensured access to adequately
trained healthcare professionals for the people.
The provision of expert frontliners and essential
medical equipment to set up ICU and HDU units at
DGHS hospitals in these districts saved over 5,600
more lives. To allow continued care, we trained
their medical officers and handed over all critical
equipment.
We are continuously enriching research capabilities
within the organisation, of which, SAJIDA’s Urban
Extreme Poor Program is an example. This scalable
program aims to break the cycle of poverty for the
urban extreme poor across the nation through a
caseworker approach whilst incorporating global
best practises in homelessness, mental health,
and rehabilitation services. SAJIDA Urban Poverty
Alleviation Unit’s initiative, Emergency Food,
Health and Livelihood (EFHL) further delivered
social protection for the Urban Extreme Poor
during the pandemic, distributing vouchers
for 75 days and ensuring food security for 11
underprivileged communities in Dhaka, Chandpur,
and Gazipur.
We focused on diversifying our Microfinance
portfolio to increase the value it delivers to clients.

Using alternative financial instruments, we saw
the inception of Green bond; a fixed-income
instrument specifically earmarked at enhancing
micro-credit operations across the country, and
supporting sustainable initiatives in the areas of
agriculture, sanitation, and renewable energy.
We embarked on a pioneering partnership with
FMO, to support the economic recovery of small
entrepreneurs hit hard during the pandemic.
Throughout the pandemic, several economic
research studies were undertaken to assess
the new economy brought about by severe
constraints, but there is a lack in terms of medical
research. Hence, to complement the efforts
undertaken by IEDCR and ICDDRB, SAJIDA is
establishing a new clinical research centre. Aside
from training the next generation of researchers,
the clinical research centre - through a mechanism
to mine system and epidemiological data - will
play an integral role in evidence driven sustainable
and effective health interventions.
Last but not least, it is due to the united effort
of our staff who rose above all challenges that
SAJIDA continued to reach new heights. Our
success was not possible without our innovative
partners. Together, we worked on programs
across the nation; paving the way towards health,
happiness, and dignity for all.

Zahida Fizza Kabir
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SUSTAINABILITY REPORTING 2021
The goal of sustainable development is
to meet the needs of the present without
compromising the ability of future generations
to meet their own needs. Yet in this era of unprecedented economic growth,

achieving this goal can seem more of an aspiration
than a reality. As economies globalise, new
opportunities to generate prosperity and quality
of life are arising through trade, knowledgesharing, and access to technology. However,
these opportunities are not always available for
an ever-increasing human population, and are
accompanied by new risks to the stability of the
environment. Statistics demonstrating positive
improvements in the lives of many people around
the world are counterbalanced by alarming
information about the state of the environment
and the continuing burden of poverty and hunger
on millions of people. This contrast creates one of
the most pressing dilemmas for the 21st century.
The pandemic has compounded inequities in
accessing critical services amongst the population.
On the flipside, it has highlighted how cause driven
organisations can play a critical role in addressing
these gaps and how digital solutions can
complement physical resources to deliver essential
and cost-effective services. It has reinforced the
need for collaboration and partnerships between
market actors to serve vulnerable groups.
SAJIDA Foundation is a value-driven nongovernment organisation that embodies the
principle of corporate philanthropy, with 51%
shareholding at Renata Ltd. The organisation was
founded by Syed Humayun Kabir in 1993, with a
vision of bringing health, happiness, and dignity
for people from all strata. Over the last 27 years,
SAJIDA has taken great strides to bring about
meaningful and sustainable change, which are
defined by our values of family first, innovation
and quality, dignity, equality, inclusiveness,
empowerment of women, compassion, empathy,
transparency and accountability.
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SAJIDA’s Strategic Goal
for the Next Five Years
Over the last one year, SAJIDA has analysed
available data and emerging trends to develop
a new strategic approach. Our key realisations
include:
Strengthening programmatic intervention focus
– The pandemic has shown to be not only a
healthcare crisis but also an education, economic,
livelihood and labour market crisis. To respond to
such rapidly evolving challenges, SAJIDA will:
Pilot community centric interventions
across focus areas using its own resources
and evaluate market impact. Results from
successful initiatives will be shared with
relevant stakeholders to ensure more
sustainability focused scale-up opportunities.
Strengthen the data driven culture in
intervention design, pilot and scale up phase. A
dedicated research unit comprising of technical
experts has been established to enable more
evidence-based and a data-driven approach to
decision making. Additionally, a clinical research
center is expected to become operational in
2022.
Collaborate with early-stage NGOs / social
enterprises / start-ups through its Challenge
Fund and investment unit and extend a blended
financing and business development service to
harness innovation and catalyse social impact.
A balanced and efficient financial service operation
- SAJIDA will rebalance its fund composition
and drive future operations leveraging member
savings, alternative financial instruments such
as bonds, and by expanding partnerships with
international development financial institutions.
SAJIDA will additionally cap loan exposure to
protect clients and ensure that loss burden is
distributed fairly. SAJIDA’s microfinance operation
will continue to evolve and ensure that physical
resources and infrastructure are complemented by
efficient, transparent, and effective technological
innovation.
I 13

SAJIDA’s Sustainable Development
While SAJIDA Foundation has a plethora of programs and initiatives to aid the vulnerable and
marginalised, they are all designed to create a long-term impact on the lives and livelihood of the
communities the Foundation is involved with. With three key areas of focus, SAJIDA has been creating
sustainable frameworks of operations and designing projects that not only support them in the shortrun, but also create opportunities for them in the long-run.

Economic

Enviornmental

Renata and SAJIDA’s Partnership
SAJIDA has grown into a self-sustaining
organisation with a majority of its programs
financed by dividend earnings from Renata
Limited, service charges from microfinance
operations, and fees from its health and
insurance ventures.

Green Bond
SAJIDA Foundation, upon securing the country’s
first Green Bond in 2020, is at the forefront of
developing a sustainable financial instrument,
contributing to ecological protection through
agriculture, sanitation and solar project
interventions.

Challenge Fund
To promote key aspects of its core values,
innovation, sustainability and technologically
driven solutions, SAJIDA Foundation launched
the Challenge Fund - a unique and transparent
mechanism that aims to maximise the impact
of innovative, socially-driven, sustainable
initiatives of early-stage NGOs, social
enterprises or start-ups. The initiative further
extends support to organisations working
in the fields of health (physical and mental),
agriculture, education, environment and WASH.
The Challenge Fund will offer financial and
business development support to accomplish
pre-defined objectives, with a focus on social
impact and innovation; aligning development
and business objectives, stimulating innovation
and promoting problem-solving ideas.

Paperless in Microfinance
To promote the practice of environmental
sustainability SAJIDA’s Microfinance operation
has initiated its transformation to paperless
solutions. The MicroFin360 Field Officer App
- an automated collection app facilitating
digitization for the transaction & record keeping
process, and the Field Force Management
application which enables field officers to view
their detailed work plan; enabling a paperless
environment by removing physical registers
leading to the creation of a digital database.
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Climate Resilient Initiatives
From establishing climate resilient, community led piped water supply systems ensuring availability
of clean, drinkable water for the coastal union of Dhalua. To expanding affordable WASH financing
products, setting up improved WASH facilities utilising renewable energy in slums and schools to
supporting adoption of renewable technology such as rainwater harvesting systems in commercial
factories and communities.
This is particularly important as building climate-resilience and environmental sustainability are best
addressed together, thus achieving synergies and resource efficiency.

Social
SUEPP
SAJIDA Urban Extreme Poor Program puts
people at the heart of development
Tackling urban extreme poverty requires
economic, social and systemic solutions to
achieve sustainable changes. This is achieved
through big thinking, multisectoral engagement
and the use of data to inform evidence-based
decision making at every level. The program
does not solely address economic vulnerability
of the poorest of the poor, rather it works
to the root individual level; understanding
individual needs of people instead of adopting
a more generalised framework of support.
The evidence-based approach will ensure
that program participants can improve their
economic and social security, engage in
educational and community activities without
discrimination, have improved physical
and psychosocial health status and access
to adequate, secure and improved living
conditions.

The Way Forward
SAJIDA’s commitment to deliver sustainable change, enabling the lives and livelihoods of millions
to thrive has never been more relevant than it is today. As SAJIDA forges ahead with innovative and
sustainable interventions for people from all strata of the society, we stand committed to always
staying true to the values that define us. We carry forward our Founder Syed Humayun Kabir’s legacy of
reaching out to those in need, not as an act of charity, but as part of our responsibility.
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Highlights
SAJIDA Foundation provided financial assistance to 32 families at SAJIDA’s Manik
Nagar Amrao Manush Program Pavement Dweller Centre (AM-PDC), who had lost
their homes in a fire in TT para slum.

Under Social Enterprises’ initiatives, Inner Circle focused extensively on online
therapy sessions for clients and HCCL.

Amrao Manush distributed food to 816 program participants in Chattogram,
health referrals to 300 members, unconditional grant in collaboration with Concern
Worldwide to 200 members. Improving Lives of Orphan children in Destitution
(ILOD)’s teachers provided weekly tele-education to 100 children.

SAJIDA distributed 120,000 water-purifiers, 55,000 pcs of ORS, and provided cash
grants to 3,700 families affected by the flood in Dhaka, Madaripur, Manikgonj,
Munshigonj, Narayanganj, Shariatpur, Pabna and Sirajgonj.

SAJIDA Foundation’s Microfinance program launched an android based application
“Field Force Management”.

From early May 2020, HCCL supported patients via doctors visiting physically or
via remote-consultations, through its partnership with SAJIDA Hospitals who were
garnering a reputation for COVID-19 management simultaneously.
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To aid in post-flood rehabilitation, BDT 4,000 per household was distributed to 100
families in Chairman Bazar Branch to repair their houses, toilets, and tube-well;
furthermore BDT 8,000 each was disbursed to 39 unemployed garment workers in
Konabari branch, BDT 4,000 each to 100 families of North Tarabuniya Union.

Improving Lives of Orphan children in Destitution (ILOD) organized a learners’
orientation of vocational training at Sadarghat. 15 children of ILOD participated
in the apprenticeship workshops: “Tailoring and dress-making” and “Electrical
Installation and Maintenance”.

SAJIDA Microfinance Program partnered with mPower and launched “SHUFOLA”
– a customized and highly localized remote agriculture advisory service providing
information on the best crop management practices in accordance to weather
conditions.

The Microfinance team piloted a digital, automated, and cloud-based installment
collection app that can be used offline. The app will enable real-time data
synchronization with SAJIDA’s core software and increase data visibility.

SAJIDA Foundation as awarded the first prize from ICAB for the best presented
Annual Report 2019.

On 1st September 2019, SAJIDA launched its first Challenge Fund competition - a
platform for employees to showcase their innovative ideas. The first chapter of the
Challenge Fund 2019-20 ended with five finalists pitching their ideas virtually on 3rd
November.
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SAJIDA Narayanganj Hospital’s monumental journey ended on January 15, 2021
after providing free service to 1,022 patients from 8 divisions and 40 districts. Upon
completion, Honourable Mayor of Narayanganj City Corporation awarded crest and
stole among hospital staff for their remarkable contribution.

Embarking on a new journey, SAJIDA started its COVID-19 facility in Keraniganj to
continue treating COVID-19 patients from 28 January tentatively. The unit consisted
of 22 semi-critical beds and 6 ICU beds.

Microfinance distributed 7,000 fabric masks, made by “Mask making & Tailoring
Project” participants, among members of SAJIDA’s Microfinance program, in
association with the “Access to WASH” program.

Addressing WASH crisis among RMG Workers in Narayanganj, SAJIDA Foundation
successfully renovated 8 WASH facilities in Sonapur, Dohorgaon and Horgaon,
enhancing lives of 81 RMG workers and 430 people of nearby communities.

SAJIDA Foundation received approval from Microcredit Regulatory Authority (MRA)
to issue the first Green Bond in Bangladesh.

WaterAid Bangladesh and SAJIDA Foundation arranged COVID-19 gender specific
vaccination registration booths for lower income group people on 3rd March, 2021
at the Telegu Colony School in Dholpur slum area, completing 70 registrations.
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RMG Workers in Narayanganj observed World Water Day 2021 in collaboration with
3 factories: Esquire Knit composite Ltd. (EKCL), Fakir Fashion Ltd. (FFL) and Next
Accessories Ltd. (NAL).

SAJIDA Foundation, with AMAL Foundation and Thrive, covered the cost of 5,000
meals (1000 meals/day for five days) of the victims of the fire outbreak in the
victims of the devastating fire in the Rohingya camp in Balukhali.

PROSHOMON distributed a cash grant of BDT 2,000 per family through Nagad to
COVID-19 affected program members, where 14,317 families received a total of
over BDT 2.86 crores.

To serve COVID-19 patients in the border area of Jashore, SAJIDA Foundation
signed an MoU with DGHS on 14 June 2021. The collaboration facilitated a 250-bed
hospital service for an initial period of 2 months, with the following resources: 10
Doctors, 4 Admins, 27 Hospital Staff, 163 Critical Equipment.

MoU signing ceremony took place between Chandpur Municipality and Private
Hospitals of Protibondhi Shastho Surokkha Prokolpo (PSSP) in order to provide
health services under PROSHOMON.

The Dutch entrepreneurial development Bank FMO provided SAJIDA Foundation with
USD 7.5 million through its government fund MASSIF, after SAJIDA received approval
from Bangladesh Bank and Microcredit Regulatory Authority for microcredit
program expansion.
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MICROFINANCE
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MICROFINANCE
SAJIDA’s personalized, relationship-based
microfinance operations are omnipresent in
the lives of our members Offering a diverse range of

loan and savings products,
customized to meet the needs
of a population that cannot
readily access formal financial
services, the operation builds
stable, healthy, and empowered
livelihoods. Its collateral-free
microcredit, microenterprise and
savings products are integrated
with special benefits and, other
development programs to create
opportunities for Millions of
people across 22 districts of
Bangladesh.
SAJIDA’s Microfinance model has
become a centre of innovation
as a result of its client-centric
approach, digitizing core field
operations and processes, and
contemporary enhancements in
service delivery.
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Operational Divisions
One of the largest of its kind in Bangladesh, SAJIDA’s Microfinance program is
serving its varying client segments through two different divisions:
SUCHONA and BIBORTON.

SUCHONA Division

Client Segment: Core
•

Financial services exclusively for women

•

Collateral free microloans to support growth of woman-led income generating activities

•

Credit facility up to BDT 0.5 Million

Core Loan Products

22 I

BIBORTON Division

Client Segment:
Augmented

Client Segment:
Potential

•

Financial services for
unbanked micro and
small entrepreneurs

•

Financial services for
underbanked, small and
medium enterprises

•

Easy term microloans to
help capture business
opportunities

•

Special microloans to
help investment on
productive capital

•

Credit facility up to
BDT 1 Million

•

Credit facility up to
BDT 10 Million

Core Loan Products
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Core Savings Products
Mandatory Savings

Voluntary Savings Samriddhi

It is mandatory for the Microfinance clients
to save a minimum of BDT 200 per month,
enjoying a return of 6% interest per annum.
However, this varies based on loan category
and collection mechanism.

A voluntary monthly savings plan where
members save between BDT 200 to BDT 10,000
per month and receive returns up to 7% per
annum.

Term Deposit (MDS)
Astha
Double Benefit Scheme 7.0

Astha
MDS 3.0 and MDS 5.0

An optional, fixed term deposit plan for
members who wish to invest a bulk amount
with a specific future goal in mind. The plans
start with a minimum investment of
BDT 5,000.

A Monthly Deposit Scheme (optional) for
members who wish to invest monthly starting
from BDT 200 to BDT 20,000 for the tenure of
3 years (MDS 3.0) or, 5 years (MDS 5.0) with
monthly average interest of 7.5% for 3 years
term and 9% for 5 years term.
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Financial Highlights

22

Districts Covered

232

Branch Offices

369,438

Members

13,552,114,594

Amount of Loan Outstanding ( in BDT )

4,264,290,955

Amount of Savings Balance ( in BDT )

268,915

Borrowers

As of 30th June, 2021
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Highlights of the Year
Green Bond
SAJIDA Foundation received approval from
Bangladesh Securities Exchange Commission
to launch the first Green Bond in Bangladesh.
The BDT 100 crore bond will be used to expand
SAJIDA’s financial services, contributing to
ecological protection through agriculture,
sanitation and solar project interventions.

FMO

SAJIDA Foundation
received a USD 7.5 Million
fund from FMO, the Dutch
entrepreneurial
development bank
Effective till September 2025, this facility
shall be utilized to expand the microcredit
program. The pioneering partnership with a
leading development financial institution is
part of a strategy to diversify SAJIDA’s fund
portfolio, aimed to deliver an effective program,
enabling the vital economic recovery of small
entrepreneurs who have suffered during the
pandemic.

MicroFin360 FO App
(Mobile Collection App)
SAJIDA Microfinance Operation initiated
the MicroFin360 FO App on May 2021, an
automated collection app facilitating digitization
for the transaction and record keeping process,
providing real-time status tracking and cash
management tool for the organisation. From
June 2021, all branch offices have begun
entering data through MF360 FO app, adding
a robust dimension to the entire Microfinance
operation.
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SHUFOLA
Agro-Advisory Services
SHUFOLA is a holistic agro-advisory service that combines crop management and highly localized
weather-sensitive agricultural advisory services with on-demand agricultural expert consultation
for farming challenges. The service comprises of three solutions;

Crop Management
Agro-Advisory Service

Weather-Sensitive
Agro-Advisory Service

SAJIDA Foundation and mPower Social
Enterprises Ltd. implemented SHUFOLA AgroAdvisory services from November 2020 till
April 2021. Approximately 5,000 farmers of
Pabna, Jhenaidah and Manikganj District have
received the services during this time period
through 24 branch offices of Microfinance
Operation of SAJIDA Foundation.

Remote Expert
Consultation Service

Under SHUFOLA’s services, a registered farmer
receives SMS(s) along with Voice-SMS(s) in local
dialect for best crop management practices and,
adverse weather advisory services through his/her
basic or featured mobile phones, throughout the
farming period for their registered crop(s).

I 27

Field Force Management Platform
(FFMP)
SAJIDA’s Microfinance Program introduced an
application that helps field staff to be dynamic
and efficient. The platform named “Field
Force Management” began its pilot stage in
September 2020. Subsequently, the FFMP
application was launched through multiple
phases throughout all the branch offices. Field
officials can see their detailed work plan through
this application. The core objective of this
platform is to enable a paperless environment
by removing physical registers. The process of
digitization will lead to the creation of a digital
database.

Mobile Financial Services (MFS)
Adopting to the new normal, the program has
emphasized on the utilization of digital payment
platforms. Digital access for financial transactions
has been ensured for members through the digital
payment app, bKash and Nagad. To further extend
the scope of digital payment services, the program
plans to onboard different mobile financial service
providers and develop a platform to enhance
coordination with a wide range of MFS and DFS
suppliers ensuring ease of access to all aspects of
the program for all stakeholders.

Celebrating “MUJIB100”
To honor and celebrate the Birth Centenary of
the Father of our nation, Bangabandhu Sheikh
Mujibur Rahman, SAJIDA’s Microfinance program
arranged a special documentary projection event
at its head office, displayed X-banners across all
of its branch offices and distributed the graphic
novel “Mujib” among students of Samriddhi
Schools across Battajore Union in Jamalpur.

28 I

HEALTHCARE
SAJIDA HOSPITALS
PROSHOMON
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SAJIDA HOSPITALS

Providing quality healthcare
at an affordable cost, SAJIDA Foundation operates

a hospital equipped with modern
diagnostic facilities and advanced
medical and surgical care that provide
secondary health care services to mid
and low-income groups.

Alongside a 50-bed
hospital in Keraniganj,
SAJIDA operated a 50-bed
hospital in Narayanganj
to provide free-of-cost
treatment to COVID-19
patients from 21st March
till 15th January 2021
The hospitals have been diligent in
serving COVID-19 patients from the
very beginning of the pandemic offering
multidisciplinary services, specialist care,
24-hours emergency service, alongside
indoor and diagnostic services.
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Program Activities

The inception of COVID-19 Units at
SAJIDA Hospital, Keraniganj
The 28-bed COVID-19 unit with 22 semi-critical
beds and 6 ICU beds at the SAJIDA Hospital,
Keraniganj has started from 28th January, 2021
and received the first COVID-19 patient on 9th
February, 2021. From then, up to 30th June
2021 total 176 COVID patients admitted and
received services at the indoor facility including
55 patients at ICU.
Hospital management closed Eye and Dental
departments from May 2021 due to COVID-19
situation.

375 patients with COVID symptoms
received services at the outdoor
facility
Poor Fund
Numerous patients including MF-members
attending these hospitals are not able to
pay the full amount. In many cases, because
of their inability to pay the fees, fathers of
newborn babies from low-middle income
groups requested to release their babies who
were on life support. To come to the aid of
these marginalized individuals, SAJIDA hospitals
initiated poor funds for low-income and
ultra-poor patients.

In Keraniganj Hospital,
3,978 people have benefitted
from this fund amounting to
BDT 586,573
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Poor Fund at a Glance (Non-COVID Unit)
Month

Recipients

Amount in BDT

July-20

207

296,846

August-20

190

222,258

September-20

238

299,000

October-20

357

382,855

November-20

323

272,305

December-20

316

269,540

January-21

369

304,050

February-21

420

352,734

March-21

391

406,510

April-21

304

338,714

May-21

302

383,325

June-21

470

493,155

3,887

4,021,292

Total

Poor Fund – SAJIDA Hospital, COVID Unit
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Month

Recipients

Amount in BDT

March-21

17

272,965

April-21

47

839,906

May-21

17

504,548

June-21

10

227,020

Total

91

1,844,439

176 Patients from 15 districts were admitted
at SAJIDA Hospital, Keraniganj COVID – 19 Unit
Mymensingh

1 patient

from 1 district

Rajshahi

5 patients

from 4 districts

176

Patients served

Dhaka

147 patients

from 5 districts

Khulna

1 patient

from 1 district

Barisal

1 patient

from 1 district

Chattogram

9 patients

from 3 districts

Non-COVID Hospital Highlights (July 2020 – June 2021)
Indicators

Number

Outdoor patients treated

41,007

Patients admitted

4,200

Normal deliveries performed

275

Caesarean deliveries performed

1,344

Services conducted in laboratory

39,529

X-rays conducted

4,096

Ultra-sonogramsv performed

10,291
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Highlights

380 dialysis performed

4,437 people vaccinated under

EPI (Expanded Program on Immunization)
3, 513 children
924 pregnant mothers and young girls

291 patients served at the NICU
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SAJIDA Hospital, Narayanganj

1,022 COVID-19
patients from 40 districts

served

across Bangladesh

Patients served
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The Journey of COVID Unit at Narayanganj Hospital
By the time of its completion on 15th January, 2021 it had successfully served 1,022 patients
coming from 40 districts of 6 divisions of Bangladesh. All costs of patient treatment including
accommodation, food, medicine, diagnostic tests, consultancy, and even transportation service
were borne by SAJIDA Foundation.

On 21st March, 2020 SAJIDA Hospital Narayanganj began its
journey to treat COVID-19 patients with 50-bed including 4-bed
in ICU
Handover of Equipment to 16
Community Clinic in Naryanganj
On 1st February 2021, SAJIDA Foundation
handed over 17 oxygen concentrators to
the Civil Surgeon Office, Naryanganj. These
equipment will be used to serve patients in 16
community clinics and 1 health centre in the
Narayanganj Sadar Upazila.
Present in the handover ceremony were Dr
Mohammad Imtiaz, Civil Surgeon, Narayanganj,
Dr Zahidul Islam, UHFPO, Narayanganj Sadar,
Dr Tariqul Islam, Director, Health, SAJIDA
Foundation, and Mr Monerul Islam Khan,
Director, Support, SAJIDA Foundation.

COVID -19 dedicated Hospital,
Narayanganj (21 March 2020 - 15 January 2021)

942

Patients Recovered

1,746

COVID-19 Sample sent
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MoU with Government District Hospitals
Amidst the pandemic when hospitals in border areas were overwhelmed with COVID patients,
SAJIDA’s Health Team physically met with authorities of 12 Govt. hospitals at 8 districts of Rajshahi
and Khulna divisions.With approval from DGHS, SAJIDA Foundation has been supporting 4
Government hospitals in border districts and hotspot areas through its COVID Hospital Assistance
Program, setting up ICU and HDU units with appropriate equipment, alongside deploying a frontline healthcare team of 209 members at the four Government district hospitals to treat COVID-19
patients.

4,365

Patients served

250-Bed General
Hospital,
Jessore

161

Patients served
250-Bed General
Hospital,
Meherpur

69

Frontliners
Deployed

48

11

ICU (Beds)

6

20

HDU (Beds)

8

111

General Beds

150

50

Frontliners
Deployed

42

5

ICU (Beds)

5

HDU (Beds)

100

General
Beds

811

Patients served

Sadar Hospital,
Chuadanga

174

Patients served

100

250-Bed
General Hospital,
Pabna
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PROSHOMON

Designed to increase the access of
comprehensive and quality health
and nutrition services through private/NGO hospitals empanelment

Promoting Sustainable Health and nutrition
Opportunities for Marginalized urban extreme
poor Population (PROSHOMON), aims to
improve the health and nutrition status of its
participants by increasing accessibility, coverage,
and sustainability of existing primary health and
nutrition services in urban areas of Bangladesh.
The project further improves access to and
utilization of a free essential service package
of quality primary health care nutrition, and
population services by the extreme poor.
To maintain strong stakeholder engagement, the
project has been designed in a way to strengthen
municipality leadership in coordinating financing
and sustaining Primary Health Care (PHC) services.

In 2020-21 financial year budget, Chandpur and Feni Municipality
allocated BDT 65 lacs and BDT 50 lacs respectively to extend
PROSHOMON service coverage to 9,500 households in
Chandpur and to 8,000 households in Feni
These funding and relevant operations are managed from the Municipality with the learning and
facilitation support from PROSHOMON. The Municipality named this initiative as Municipality Health
Coverage Project (MHCP).
The printed budget book was handed over to the PROSHOMON team at Feni and Chandpur
Municipality. The former Mayor of Chandpur, Mr Nasir Uddin Ahmed presided over the entire
meeting and Mr Ashraful Alam Guiter, Panel Mayor, Feni presided the meeting.
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Program Activities
MoU signing ceremony of Protibondhi Shastho Surokkha Prokolpo (PSSP)
As part of Municipality Health Care Project,
Midland Hospital, Honey Siddik Memorial
Hospital, Family Care Hospital and
Bellevue Hospital ensured service delivery
to beneficiaries of Protibondhi Shastho
Surokkha Prokolpo (PSSP). Mayor of Chandpur
municipality, Mr Zillur Rahman, representative
of Civil Surgeon office, representative of
DDFP office, panel mayor, councilors and
PROSHOMON field and head office staffs
attended the ceremony.

A MoU signing ceremony was held on 24th February, 2021 with
four private hospitals
Municipality recognition of
Community Volunteers of
PROSHOMON Project
Chaired by Zillur Rahman, Mayor, Chandpur
Municipality. Ms Fiona Mclysaght, Country
Director of Concern Worldwide Bangladesh,
Md Fazlul Hoque, Senior Director, Development
Program of SAJIDA Foundation, Md Emranul
Haque, Consortium Manager of Concern
Worldwide attended the program. Selected
community volunteers (one from each ward),
government officials, stakeholders, Concern
Worldwide and SAJIDA Foundation officials also
participated in the program.

Cash Grant Support to
the Urban Extreme Poor
A service agreement was held between SAJIDA
Foundation and NAGAD on 7th July, 2020. The
event was inaugurated by the Chief guest Mr
Mesbah Uddin, Additional Secretary, LGD and
Project Director, EU Support to H & N Project to
the urban poor in Bangladesh – MOLGRD & C
on 15th July, 2020 through online platform. The
program was chaired by the Mayor of Chandpur,
Municipality.
The distinguished guests Md Mazedur Rahman
Khan, Deputy Commissioner, Chandpur,
Mohammed Monzurul Islam, DDLG, Feni,
Hasina Rahman, Country Director (Acting),
Concern Worldwide, Zahida Fizza Kabir, Chief
Executive Officer (CEO), SAJIDA Foundation,
Dr Md Shakhawat Ullah, Civil Surgeon, Feni,
Dr Md Elius, DDFP, Chandpur, Md Aminul
Islam, DDFP, Feni, Ashraful Alam Guiter, Panel
Mayor – 01, Feni Municipality, Dr Istab Rakin,
MO-CS, Feni attended the inauguration.
Selected beneficiaries, Government officials,
stakeholders, Concern Worldwide and SAJIDA
Foundation officials also participated in the
program.
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Quarterly Progress Review and
Project Closing Meeting

Follow up Meeting with the
Empaneled Health Facilities

Held on 29th December, the progress review
meeting at Feni was chaired by Md Ashraful
Alam Getur, Panel Mayor-1, Feni Municipality
and on 30th December, Zillur Rahman, Mayor of
Chandpur, chaired the review meeting that took
place in Chanpur. Both events where attended
by Civil Surgeon and DDFP of respected
districts, along with other government
stakeholders, private empaneled health
facilities representatives and PROSHOMON
staff.

A follow up online meeting including technical
staffs and designated persons was conducted
with empaneled hospitals of PROSHOMON
during the month of August 2020. Maintenance
guidance of standard protocol for Infection
Prevention and Waste Management were
provided to ensure proper practices and
implementation of changes at the facility
through planning and regular follow up
mechanisms.

Quality of Care Training with
Empaneled Health Facilities

Regular Monitoring of Project
Activities as per Monitoring Toolkit

On April and May, PROSHOMON project
initiated a virtual training program on quality
of care as well as ensuring proper safety
measures for technical staffs of empaneled
health facilities who are involved in service
delivery.

To ensure quality of project activity and
services, PROSHOMON has developed a
monitoring checklist which includes Financial
Service Monitoring, Quality Assurance
Monitoring, IT Monitoring, HH visit, and
Training orientation.

A total of BDT 29,151,823 was distributed among 14,317
Households in both project areas
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Service Delivery
Municipality /
Health Facility
Chandpur

Accident Maternity

PHC

Total

1,835

6,963

50,807

59,605

Astha Digital Diagnostics Centre

209

497

2,655

3,361

Bellevue Hospital

289

325

3,115

3,729

Crescent Hospital (pvt)

6

210

575

791

Diabetic Hospital, Chandpur

6

37

261

304

Family Care Hospital

538

1,074

4,783

6,395

Honey Siddique Memorial Hospital

104

915

11,476

12,495

Midland Hospital (Pvt)

396

1,240

14,448

16,084

Royal Max Hospital

147

182

3,376

3,705

Surjer Hashi (ID-281) Das para

138

1,204

8,585

9,927

2

1,279

1,533

2,814

1,077

9,187

31,931

42,195

7

80

87

Surjer Hashi Network-Chandpur-PI

Feni
Esquire Lab
Ibne Hashman Hospital

139

812

2,283

3,234

Medinova Specialized Hospital

390

4,976

15,084

20,450

Uttara Hospital & Computerized
Diagnostic Center Ltd

496

3,290

9,516

13,302

52

102

4,968

5,122

2,912

16,150

82,738

1,01,800

Z U Model Hospital

Total
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Highlights

Coverage information of implementing sites of Feni and Chandpur Municipalities

15,000
Households

65,373
14,440

Beneficiaries

Women of
Reproductive Age

957

Pregnant and
Lactating Women

4,076

Children (under 5)

4,543

Adolescent Boys

2,446

4,507

Adolescent Girls

Elderly (60+)

571

People with Disability

47.69%

Pregnant Woman
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COVID-19 Response
To protect communities and medical personnel
from the spread of COVID-19, the project
distributed PPE’s to the empaneled hospitals,
emergency kits consisting of sanitizers, soaps,
masks, gloves, disseminated awareness
messages, monitored local outbreaks, and
established 50 portable handwashing stations.

On 18th November, 2020, through
collaboration with the DC office, PROSHOMON
distributed facemask and leaflet to the
community.
Promoted COVID-19 awareness message
through existing bulk SMS from the software
to the beneficiaries from June 2020 – January
2021.
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URBAN POOR
PROGRAM
AMRAO MANUSH PROGRAM
SAJIDA URBAN EXTREME POOR PROGRAM
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AMRAO MANUSH
Urban
Extreme Poor
Communities are characterized by inadequate access to health
care, education, and obstacles in integration into
the economy. Coupled with precarious and lowpaid jobs, and a lack of dignity arising from social
stigmatization, the urban poor face many unique
and diverse challenges.

Project “Amrao Manush”
(We Are People Too) commenced in 2008
with funding from Concern Worldwide, Irish
Aid, Team Broken Earth. Established with the
objective of improving the lives of pavement
dwellers, Amrao Manush has since expanded
to working with populations living in squatter
settlements and slums.

Amrao Manush currently provides a range of
‘essential services’ through seven Pavement
Dweller Centres (PDC) in Dhaka and Chattogram,
through the Improving the Lives of Urban Extreme
Poor (ILUEP) project.

Until June 2021, the program has served 35, 939
urban extreme poor individuals;
of which 52% are female
I 45

Program Activities

Day Care and Early Childhood Development
The program aims to ensure holistic development of children. It focuses
on mitigating abuse and extortion, as well as developing their freedom
of articulation.
COVID-19 has changed the traditional functions of daycare centres and
remodeled service delivery of the program. As lockdowns kept children
home, Amrao Manush initiatives continued essential daily provision of
food support and adopted tele-education model.

766
children
admitted
to formal
schools

2,101 children benefitted from these services and this year,
71 new children have been onboarded
into the school system
Promotion of Income and Financial Assets
Empowering the extremely poor population is essential for enhancing
economic independence. Traditionally, this is ensured through a range
of activities aimed to promote savings and increase financial assets.
During the pandemic, an emergency cash support initiative was
undertaken to address the gap in the delivery of this programmatic
activity.

A total of
BDT
10,695,000
cash was
disbursed to 3,565
households

46 I

Emergency Cash Support During COVID
Upon reviewing the needs of program participants, SAJIDA’s
COVID-19 Response Team provided cash grants of BDT 3,000
to each targeted households. The grant, coupled with livelihood
coaching, enabled participants to recover faster from the severe
financial turmoil.
Upon completion of cash distribution, participants were monitored
to ensure a portion of the grant provided was used to fund small
businesses, increase regular income, and enable them to purchase
essential items.

Health Care Services
A health corner was set up at PDCs, where a
paramedic conducted consultations, basic treatments,
and referrals to health centres and hospitals when
required. During the last year, PDCs have adopted
telemedicine and teleconsultations. Field officers were
in regular contact with program participants to monitor
their health and inform paramedics accordingly.

Mental Health Support
Counselling focuses on the moral development of participants paving the way towords their inclusion
to mainstream society
Support is provided in three ways:

First,
individually to mitigate
problems faced by
participants and serve their
psychosocial need

Next,
families are counselled to
mitigate the current and
potential risks

Finally,
communities are counselled on
special issues such as addiction,
abuse, human trafficking,
family planning, etc.

Portable Hand Washing
Device Installation
SAJIDA Foundation’s WASH and Amrao Manush
team collaborated to strategically install 29 portable
hand washing devices, providing access to hygiene
facilities for urban poor communities.

“Joy of Giving” in Collaboration
With HSBC
As part of their “Joy of Giving” initiative, HSBC
and its employees contributed to support 1,000
underprivileged individuals in Dhaka and Chattogram,
with two meals for three days and shared educational
gifts.
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Achievements as of June, 2021

22,693 individuals received

Essential Life Services

2,101

children received

Day Care Services

7,059 individuals engaged in
Income-Generating Activities

COVID-19 emergency
People receiving
COVID-19 emergency
Cash Support

3,565 individuals

Hygine Kits distributed to
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1,188 households

SAJIDA URBAN EXTREME
POOR PROGRAM (SUEPP)
Ensuring individuals
and households receive
the RIGHT intervention
at the RIGHT time the program aims to build

supportive relationships, networks,
skills, and enable the urban poor
access to services, resources and
opportunities to reduce poverty,
advance health, happiness and
dignity, irrespective of social status,
gender, sexuality or abilities.
Urban Extreme Poverty (UEP)
is one of the most challenging
and pressing issues faced by
Bangladesh as the country
continues to have one of the
highest proportions of urban poor
and urbanisation rates globally.
However, there is a lack of
programmatic and policy attention
around this important issue, partly
due to a lack of rigorous and timely
data regarding effective urbanfocused interventions.
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Our Approach
Urban poverty is multi-dimensional, rapidly changing and is the result of individual, community and
systemic factors. As such, tackling urban extreme poverty requires economic, social and systemic
solutions to achieve sustainable change.

An 18-month pilot has commenced from July 2021, aiming to work
with communities across 12 sites and 3 cities in Bangladesh
SAJIDA’s Urban Program aims to break the cycle of poverty for the urban extreme poor through:

Individualised Household
Action Plans (IHAP)
Households and individuals develop an action
plan, goals and timeframe around specific
areas of vulnerability

Mentoring
Families and program officers sit once a
month to review progress, update action
plans and engage in mentoring or support.
Project Officers are trained to utilise a clientcentred, strengths based and trauma informed
approach.

Service Integration

Community Building

Support individuals and communities to
access Government, private and NGO services
through an integrated referral service network.
These currently include legal, emergency
shelter, physical and mental health services,
government social safety net programs and
formal documentation services.

Fortnightly community building and wellbeing
sessions will be held in order to identify and
mobilise communities; addressing social
issues in their neighbourhood, bring together
women and adolescent groups to engage in
meaningful activities within a safe space to
promote wellbeing and share knowledge, gain
skills, promoting mental health and physical
wellbeing.

Livelihood Program
There are two streams of livelihood services:

Employment Track

Microbusiness

Supporting youth and women to
obtain key skills (through a range
of workshops, apprenticeships
and formal job training) and
supporting with job placement
and follow up support

A blended financial package
(grant and interest free
loan) along with business
development and savings
services for entrepreneurs

Investing in Physical and Mental Health
Micro health financing and referral support under development
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Our Approach

Caseworker Approach
Interventions are guided alongside community
members developing individualised short
term goals that work towards achieving their
long term vision – drawing from global best
practices in homelessness, mental health and
rehabilitation services.

Evidence and Data Driven
The pilot phase of this project captures a wide
range of in-depth information about project
participants in order to generate in-depth
understandings of the lives/trajectories of
families as they move through the program,
and to identify the gaps and barriers to existing
services that require further attention within
the government/private and NGO sectors.

Utilizing Tech
Taroworks, customised front end app,
enables the program team to see real
time program data - enabling data-driven
decision making and support to be provided
at the field level.
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MENTAL HEALTH
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MENTAL HEALTH

92% of mental illnesses in
adults and 94% in children are
left untreated due to social
stigmas and barriers Furthermore, individuals with

mental disorders often have
their human rights violated,
and many are denied economic,
social, and cultural rights.
In line with our vision to provide
quality mental health services
to individuals belonging to
all socio-economic strata, in
March 2021 SAJIDA Mental
Health Program (SMHP)
launched a comprehensive
and multidisciplinary initiative.
SMHP is an integrated and
collaborative approach backed
by evidence-based research,
aimed at addressing the gap
in affordable mental health
support systems for the lowerincome and ultra-poor.
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Program Activities

SHOJON
SHOJON is a remote mental health service
helpline number that provides psychotherapy
and psychiatric care through a 3-tier service
model, targeted towards lower-middle income,
low income, and ultra-poor households. It
provides low-cost, affordable, and long-term
clinical mental healthcare services, which
are accessible from any part of the country.
SHOJON will be scaled over the next five years
to manage up to 300 calls per day.

SMHP Intervention in SAJIDA
Urban Extreme Poor Project
SMHP is currently working with SAJIDA Urban
Extreme Poor Project (SUEPP) to embed mental
health perspectives and interventions within
the initiative provides a holistic approach
towards ensuring health and wellbeing of
the urban extreme poor population. SMHP
has designed appropriate training modules
for 15 caseworkers of SUEPP, enabling them
to conduct group interventions focusing
on adolescents, pavement dwellers, and
women. The aim of these interventions is
to increase self-awareness while enhancing
community relationships and aid in developing
individualized action plans as well as referral
pathways for beneficiaries.

Mental Health Residential Facility

Mental Health Training Initiatives

Health care facilities are limited in Bangladesh,
with 92% treatment gap, there are only two
mental hospitals and 72 drug rehabilitation
focused residential care facility. SMHP plans
to establish a first-of-its-kind replicable
mental health residential facility for all
classes, with primary focus on poor and
lower income base, who otherwise would
not have been able to receive these services.
The interventions of the facility would be
functionality focused rehabilitation steering
towards social reintegration of the clients.

A diverse pool of professionals is essential
to conduct the vast range of services
and initiatives. In Bangladesh, there are
approximately 250 psychiatrists, 1000 clinical
psychologists, counselling and educational
psychologists, and psychotherapists. Thus,
SMHP is collaborating with two international
organisations- The Banyan Academy of
Leadership in Mental Health, Chennai, India,
and LifeLine Johannesburg, South Africa to conduct TOT spanning through four to six
months. Upon receiving the courses, learning
shall be adapted to the context of Bangladesh
and will be used to develop a curriculum and
train our workforce.
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BAT Project
Based on the findings from need assessment, (SMHP) in collaboration with British Asian Trust (BAT),
implemented diverse mental health interventions from July 2020 to December 2020.

Para Counsellor Service
Intervention
Upon selecting 20 Para Counsellors, 2
Community Organizers, 1 Field Coordinator,
advanced para-counselling training was
provided to Community organizers and Field
coordinators and the latter received Mental
Health First Aid (MHFA) training. Subsequently,
the team was deployed in areas with rising
number of COVID-19 cases - Narayanganj
and Narsindhi. Para counsellors conducted
door-to-door community visits and assessed
their mental health conditions while providing
intervention.

Developing Guided Self-help
Materials and Mental Wellness
Videos
The materials were developed to increase
mental health awareness and to understand
some basics of managing mental health
among the community people. Thus, posters
and leaflets on topics as Anger Management,
Anxiety Management, Positive Coping
Techniques, Progressive Muscular Relaxation
and Sleep Hygiene were developed and
disseminated through the para-counsellors at
the community level based on their needs.

Emergency Psycho-Social Support

One-on-One Counselling

Emergency psychosocial support to Frontline
Healthcare Workers (FLHW) and their family
members were provided through webinars
on topics as burnout, sleep problems,
interpersonal relationship, and relaxation.

Participants were also provided one to one
counselling, using two service modalities. In
proactive counselling, counsellors themselves
tried to reach the beneficiaries and in reactive
counselling, patients were provided with an
EAP number (24/7) to call the counsellors
based on their necessity.
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Program Achievements
BAT Project
Impact assessment showed that all the project interventions have been considerably successful in
enabling the mentally vulnerable groups to deal with the COVID-induced mental health challenges.
While it is true that direct intervention of providing mental health services is critical to addressing
the challenges of the COVID-induced mental health problems, it is also important to understand the
underlying factors that contribute to the mental health crisis during the ongoing pandemic.

Total reach for different interventions under BAT Project

Intervention

Service

Reach

Total Reach

Advancing
Psychological
Well-being using
Market Insights
Activity

Need Assessment

37,169

37,169

Para Counsellor Service

11,930
(16 Emergency Clients)

Guided Self-Help
Materials

92,309

Mental Wellness Videos

211,694

Group Webinar Videos

86,797

One-on-One
Counselling

87

Awareness Building
and Psychosocial
Support for
Community People

Emergency
Psychosocial
Support to Family
Members of
Frontline Healthcare
Workers

Total

N.B. The criteria of being labeled as an emergency client are having
suicidal thoughts or attempt or, being victim of Gender Based Violence
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402,730

87

439,986
Clients

Program Highlights (Events, Workshops, Trainings, etc.)

Roundtable Discussion
On 17th February, SAJIDA Mental Health
Program (SMHP) held a roundtable discussion
on “Building Sustainable Mental Health
Services” with 24 multisectoral stakeholders
from different organisations including World
Health Organisation (WHO), Department
of Clinical Psychology and Educational and
Counselling Psychology from University of
Dhaka, Bangabandhu Sheikh Mujib Medical
University (BSMMU), National Institute of
Mental Health and Hospital (NIMH), BRAC,
Center for Rehabilitation of Paralyzed (CRP),
Kaan Pete Roi (KPR), Suchona Foundation, NHS,
HSBC, Unilever, etc. The event highlighted the
key learnings from recent initiatives, identified
priority focus areas and accepted expert
opinions from the esteemed guests. All of
whom resonated with SAJIDA’s ideas on mental
health service needs and emphasis on the
importance of developing sustainable mental
health services.

Advisory Committee for SAJIDA’s
Mental Health Strategy
SMHP has formed an advisory committee
comprising of recognized professionals
in the field of mental health to develop a
comprehensive mental health strategy,
addressing existing gaps in service delivery
for mental health at a national scale. The 1st
quarterly meeting of the advisory committee
has already taken place.

Moner Khobor Live Talk show
Evey month a special live talk show is being
organized by SAJIDA Mental Health Program in
collaboration with Moner khobor TV- an online
platform for discussion encompassing the
topic of mental health. 2 live shows have been
broadcasted, one on 25th May and another on
29th June. These live talk shows aim to raise
awareness regarding mental health related
issues, and to break the stigmas around it.

Trainings and TOT sessions with
different programs
2 TOT sessions with Healthcare Workers and
1 mental health session was conducted with 8
participants from Adhunika program. The focus
of these sessions were to enhance self-care
practice and positive coping strategies among
the participants.
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COVID-19 Response Initiatives
Moner Jotno Mobile E (MJM)
“Moner Jotno Mobile E” (MJM; loosely translated
from Bengali as “caring for the mind on mobile
phones”) is a tele-counselling helpline in
Bangladesh. Launched as a collaboration in early
April 2020 between three well-established
mental health service providers (BRAC, PHWC,
Kaan Pete Roi) to meet an expected rise in
mental health issues due to the COVID-19
lockdown. MJM received calls from 8 am to
12 am every day and provided immediate
psychological counselling and referrals.
The objective of this initiative was to address
the psychological need of people from all
walks of life. SAJIDA Foundation and PHWC
contributed significantly in designing the
program, shared mental health resource the
hotline and ensured personnel to run
supervision to 40 service providers of MJM.
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Kaan Pete Roi Emotional Support
and Suicide Prevention Helpline
(KPR)
In response to emerging psychological need
during COVID-19 pandemic, SAJIDA Mental
Health Program collaborated with Kaan Pete
Roi Emotional Support and Suicide Prevention
Helpline (KPR) in April 2020. SAJIDA Foundation
provided KPR with the necessary resources
to take two major steps, in direct response to
the mental health demands of the COVID-19
pandemic
Expand operating hours: The original hours of
3pm - 9pm daily were doubled to 3pm – 3am
every day.
Provide a WhatsApp service: Callers were able
to call on WhatsApp from 9pm – 3am
every day.

Research

SMHP follows the organisational model of an evidence-based approach in devising programs. To
better understand the gap in existing services the program undertook several researches:

“Mental Health Need Assessment
of Frontline Healthcare Workers,
COVID-Infected Individuals, and
their Family Members”
Under a collaborative project with British
Asian Trust (BAT), a need-based assessment
of the mental health status of four groups
of individuals in Bangladesh: Frontline
Healthcare Workers (FLHW), family members
of FLHWs, COVID infected individuals, and
family members of COVID-infected individuals.
Using qualitative approach, a semi-structured
interview guideline was developed and 65
participants including doctors, lab technicians,
nurses and paramedics, cleaners, chauffeurs,
and security guards were interviewed at the
SAJIDA Foundation COVID-19 hospital in
Narayanganj, in July 2020.

“Impact Evaluation – Mental
Health Support for COVID-19
Affected Population”
The evaluation assesses the project
interventions against the following four
broad criteria – relevance, effectiveness,
sustainability, and efficiency. In doing so, the
evaluation focuses on the results obtained in
the project where target group have directly
benefitted.

“A Desk review for mapping longterm accredited Para counselling
Course modules in Low- and
Middle-income Countries
Worldwide”
With an aim to increase the number of trained
para professionals in the community through
developing a standard curriculum and a master
trainer pool, SMHP conducted a desk review on
the accredited training programs and certified
course modules in Bangladesh as well as in
the low- and middle-income countries from
worldwide and found two courses fulfilling the
criteria.
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Publication
COVID-19-related issues on
tele-counselling helpline in
Bangladesh

Women’s Experiences During
COVID-19 in Bangladesh: A
Content Analysis of Helpline Data

Authors (in order): Yeshim Iqbal, Rubina Jahan,
Sakila Yesmin, Ashique Selim and Shaheen
Nafisa Siddique
Name of the Journal: Asia Pacific Psychiatry,
July 2020

Authors (in order): Yeshim Iqbal, Rubina Jahan,
Md Ashiquir Rahaman, and Md Omar Faruk

DOI: 10.1111/appy.12407

Abstract
Objective: To provide a brief description of
COVID-19-related issues presented by callers
to a tele-counselling helpline in Bangladesh.
Method: Counsellors who received calls
wrote brief descriptions of each call. These
descriptions were coded and analyzed.
Results: Eighty-six percent of callers displayed
anxiety and/or sleeplessness; these callers also
displayed a range of issues including family/
interpersonal problems, financial difficulties,
physical health concerns, mental illness, and
difficulty managing quarantine.
Conclusion: These findings indicate the mental
health challenges faced in Bangladesh due to
lockdown and can inform future interventions.
Keywords: Bangladesh, COVID-19, mental
health, quarantine, tele-counselling
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Name of the Journal: International
Perspectives in Psychology (2021), 10(3),
172–179
DOI: https://doi.org/10.1027/2157-3891/
a000018

Abstract
This study is a content analysis of women’s
experiences during the COVID-19 pandemic
in Bangladesh, using a unique data set from
Bangladesh’s only emotional support and
suicide prevention helpline. Each call to the
helpline has a written description, completed
by the individual answering the call, of the
caller’s condition and reasons for calling. We
coded descriptions of calls received from
female callers in the first 6 months of the
pandemic (N = 276) and in the same 6-month
period from the previous year (N = 224) for
comparison. Findings revealed that for the
most part, reasons for calling were largely
similar across the 2 years, with the majority
of calls involving relationships of various
kinds (namely, parents, husbands, or romantic
partners). Key differences between 2020 and
2019 include mental health concerns in relation
to the pandemic and academic concerns being
absent from the pandemic year. These findings
contribute to the emerging literature of
women’s experiences during the pandemic and
have implications for intervention and future
research.
Keywords: Women, COVID‐19 pandemic,
suicide prevention helpline, Bangladesh

WATER,
SANITATION AND
HYGIENE
(WASH)
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WASH
Safe water, sanitation, and hygiene
are at the heart of sustainable development
and critical for survival In Bangladesh, marked progress

has been achieved in ensuring access to safe
drinking water, improved sanitation, and
eliminating open defecation practices. However,
a large section of underserved communities
remains deprived of adequate WASH facilities.
The issue is most pronounced in urban areas
where WASH-related diseases abound among
low-income and extremely poor communities.
Recognizing WASH as an essential component
of sustainable development, SAJIDA Foundation
in partnership with donors and the Government
of Bangladesh has been delivering integrated
water, sanitation and hygiene services through
several innovative projects.

WASH4URBANPOOR
The project aims to address challenges
and WASH requirements for underserved
communities in Dhaka South City Corporation
(DSCC)
The project meets its aims by ensuring improved
environmental health and resilient WASH solutions for
the deprived urban poor living in slums and low-income
settlements.

WASH4UrbanPoor is interlinked with SDG Goal 6: Achieving universal, sustainable,
and equitable access to safe drinking water, sanitation, and hygiene by 2030. Funded
through WaterAid by the Swedish International Development Cooperation Agency
(SIDA), the project is scheduled to run till December 2022.
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Project Activities

Raising awareness and provision of
climate resilient WASH services to address the
needs of target communities

Improving local governance in pro-

poor WASH service delivery and coordination
with other services in target cities and towns

Evidence-based advocacy leading

to improved WASH policies and strategies
beneficial for the urban poor population

Ensuring Safe Water for Underprivileged
Communities by facilitating legal access to
water facilities. This project is implemented
through SAJIDA’s partnership with Dhaka Water
Supply and Sewerage Authority (DWASA), City
Corporation, and various service provider.

Impact FY 20-21

Impact till Date

Water Supply
Ensured for

9,149

26,912

Sanitation Facilities
Provided to

9,579

25,315

8

8

18,867

41,253

Public Sanitation
Facilities

1,552,015

3,000,000

Slums
Decontaminated

30

32

Sector

WASH Facilities
Built in Schools
Hygiene Awareness
Provided
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Program Highlights

9 Hygiene Events
On Handwashing, Water Safety Plan and
Menstrual Hygiene Management
with 1,662 participants

11 Cleaning Campaigns
4 Day Observations
Global Handwashing Day, Sanitation month,
World Water Day, and Menstrual Hygiene
Management Day were observed

at community levels

Way Forward
Installing electric incinerator in
MHM chamber located in school WASH

blocks, allowing environment-friendly disposal
of used sanitary pads device setup

Installing sanitary napkin vending
machine at an educational institution to

create an open, digital access for purchasing
subsidized sanitary pads
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To initiate school preparedness for reopening, WASH4UP has arranged cleaning
campaigns in 11 different schools located
in Dhaka South City Corporation.
Essential cleaning materials including spray
machine, gloves, etc have been provided to
supplement the initiative.

WASH4RMG
The RMG sector in 2017 has been reported to consume about 1,500 billion litres of
groundwater. Factories are also under pressure for demonstrating their responsibility
towards the environment and preparedness to adjust to climate change. Furthermore,
providing access to safe water, proper sanitation, and knowledge and exercise of
correct hygiene practices among RMG workers is an integral part of a significant
challenge. In this precarious situation, to address the challenges,

SAJIDA Foundation
commenced WASH
interventions through
“Addressing WASH crisis
among RMG workers
in Narayanganj Project”
in August 2018, with the technical support of
WaterAid Bangladesh and financial support
from HSBC supply chain in Rupganj, Araihazar
and Sonargaon Upazila of Narayanganj District.

The project aimed to create improved WASH access for 12,000 RMG
workers at the factory level and their communities.

Project Activities
Promoting a reduction in RMG
factory water use costs by reducing

groundwater extraction, encourage
groundwater recharging
with rainwater

Influencing a positive change
in the behavior of the workers
at factories with awareness on basic

hygiene-handwashing, sanitation, water safety
plan, food hygiene, and menstrual hygiene
management

Improving water, sanitation, and
hygiene services at the household and

community level for 4,000 workers and their
family members
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Program Highlights
Renovating WASH Facilities

154 WASH facilities renovated
benefitting 4,118 individuals including
family members of RMG workers, and further
benefitting 5,341 individuals outside the
project working area

Awareness Boosting Activities

578

Participants
Menstrual Hygiene
Management (MHM)
sessions in all 3
factories

3,100
RMG
Workers

12,000
Individuals

Participated in
hygiene session
campaigns

From 4 factories of the Upazilas
formed an RMG workforce to make
use of 5 important yearly occasions
to raise awareness among the
participating beneficiaries

Change Agent Training
Provided training on WASH issues and
expected to support and motivate their coworkers in their hygiene behavior change
journey

Rain Water Harvesting System
(RWHS)

4 RMG factories

reduced the use of natural underground
waters, which provided a sustainable and
environmentally friendly water source
66 I

167 female workers trained

Currently, 77 Change Trainers are carrying
out their roles

Sanitary Napkin
Vending Machine

3 vending machines installed
at Fakir Fashion Ltd. Factory
management, providing an opportunity
for female workers to purchase sanitary
at a subsidized price

WASH FOR DISASTER PRONE AREA
Enhancing
WASH facilities
in a Union Lack of access to clean water, proper

sanitation facilities, and a poor hygiene
management system, coupled with a
lack of awareness, has placed a heavy
burden on the coastal population of
Bangladesh. SAJIDA Foundation’s
Water, Sanitation and Hygiene (WASH)
Program with Penny Appeal UK piloted
their first project to provide WASH
facilities to 350 households living in
the Dhalua union of Barguna.

Project “WASH Barguna” piloted from 31st May
World Bank has surveyed Barguna district as
a hard to reach (HtR) area to offer water and
sanitation services in Bangladesh.
With this new initiative taken by SAJIDA’s
WASH program, it is set to ensure safe
drinking water for over 2,000 people in the
community, promote improved WASH facility
at the community health clinic, and establish
WASH blocks for females including Menstrual
Hygiene Management Systems (MHMs) at
the educational facility for 250 girls and their
female teachers. A rainwater harvesting system

has been integrated to provide drinking water for
all 350 students of the school as well. Through the
initiatives already on the way, WASH will not only
cater to the community bringing improved WASH
facilities for use but also promote maintenance
through numerous awareness sessions and
monitoring systems operated by the program. The
project intervention has achieved a remarkable
milestone by establishing innovative, sustainable
and technologically efficient WASH facilities
ushering in huge benefits.

WASH Barguna has benefitted 2,000 people of the target
community by ensuring access to safe water and access to
improved communal sanitation.
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Project Activities
Renovated WASH facility at
Kanthaltoli Community Health

Harvested Rainwater in Noli
Muslim High School and College

Serving 625 patients who visit the clinic each
month. Aiding in the safe passage for childbirth.
The water supply system ensured safe drinking
water for 1,200 villagers.

A 5,000-litre capacity overhead storage tank
was ensured for sufficient water for 350
students and 10 teachers for regular drinking,
as well as handwashing, during the monsoon
season when the supply of water is surplus.

Rehabilitated Piped Water Supply
System at Potkakhali, Dhalua
Union

Constructed WASH facility at
Noli Muslim High School

Approximately 40 litres per capita per day
consumption has been considered for drinking,
food preparation and hygiene practices. WASH
facilities have also been upgraded along with
the installation of a solar panel in the communal
sanitation block for promoting renewable power
source and ensuring lighting arrangement
during power cut.

There is now a disposal mechanism of the used
sanitary materials at regular frequency. The
purpose of the MHM chamber is to manage
menstruation of 250 female students and
female teachers properly while being in school.

The water supply system
ensured safe drinking
water for 1,200 villagers

Way Forward
SAJIDA Foundation will scale up the village transformation model. Disaster prone and climate induced
vulnerable areas will be at center of attention for further development through partnerships with local
and international development actors.
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RURAL WASH DEVELOPMENT

700 Shallow tube well
installation project
Adressing WASH needs of
marginalized communities,
the project has ensured access
to improved water source for
17,500 individuals of 7 unions
in Santhia, Bakshiganj and
Ullapara Upazila. Through 30 WASH

committees oriented on various issues; ranging
tube well management, waste water management,
hygiene promotion and practices, the project has
further sensitized communities about positive
impact of safe water.
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WATERCREDIT

The project enables underserved communities
to have access to safe drinking water and
improved sanitation facilities through provision of special loans as

part of the “WaterCredit Program”
implemented with the support of
Water.org. Affordable financing being
one of the key barriers to safe water
and sanitation, SAJIDA provides small
loans for water facilities and improved
sanitation systems through this
innovative program. This 4-year project
commencing in September 2016, is
in two phases; the first phase being 3
years and the last being a one year plan.
The project has introduced separate
loan products for installing new as well
as repairing existing deep tube wells,
and for building or renovating improved
sanitation facilities.

The loan amount varies
from BDT 5,000 to BDT
125,000 following 7 types
of loan products.

This project initially started through 43 Microfinance branches
to reach the 8,000 beneficiaries in one year. Till date, the project
has expanded to cover members across all of SAJIDA’s 231
Microfinances branches.
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Annual Program Achievements
4,378 Water Loans

48,78,44,000

20,204 Water Beneficiaries

Loan Capital

21,535 Sanitation Beneficiaries

4,582 Sanitation Loans
1,995 Water and Sanitation Loans
9,776 Water and Sanitation Beneficiaries

WASH Program Highlights
for the fiscal year July 2020 to June 2021

84,121
64

Training, Campaign
and Day Observation
(Community, Factory)

4,87,844,000

Beneficiary Coverage
(Water, Sanitation and Hygiene)

10,955

Number of Water
Credit Loan

Water Credit Loan Amount

32,606

Beneficiaries received
WASH Loans and
Hygiene Awareness
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PUBLIC SANITATION SERVICES

SAJIDA Foundation’s
Public Sanitation Services operates
11 public toilets under Dhaka South
City Corporation funded by WaterAid Bangladesh, these public

toilets are maintained by local officials who
regularly clean and stock them, while SAJIDA
monitors to ensure all WASH guidelines are
maintained. The project “Strengthening Public
Sanitation Services in Bangladesh’’ aims to ensure
improved public sanitation services in Dhaka city
through standardizing operation and management,
enhancing the capacity of local government
institutions and develop awareness to bring the
expected change among city dwellers to promote
hygienic behavior.

During 2020-21, hygienic
sanitation services have been
provided to 768,190
individuals
A two-day training program was organized on 29th and 30th
November 2020 as part of improving standard of efficiency of
public toilet attendants.
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COMMUNITY
DEVELOPMENT
SAMRIDDHI
DISASTER RESPONSE
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SAMRIDDHI

An integrated approach
to make communities
self-reliant focusing on components like

education, healthcare, nutrition,
youth development, employment
generation, beggar rehabilitation, etc.
ENRICH covers all aspects of human
life from the mother’s womb to the
grave leaving no one behind!
Since 2013, SAJIDA Foundation has
been implementing the Samriddhi
program at Battajore union of
Jamalpur district, funded by Palli
Karma Shohayak Foundation (PKSF).
The overall vision that underpins
ENRICH (SAMRIDDHI) is a long-term
program with no specific program
period that works with the poor,
creating dignified living standards of
universal human rights.
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Program Activities

Health Care and Nutrition
A Total of 2 ENRICH Health Officers and 17
Health Visitors are working in the Battajore
Union. Household visits, static clinics, satellite
clinics and health camps are being arranged
regularly. The program organized 32 satellite
clinics, 308 static clinics, 1 health camp, and 1
special eye camp this year.

Education
ENRICH education service primarily addresses
the problem of dropout of children at the
primary level. Students from Class I and II
are tutored to complete their homework in
the afternoon Education Assistance Centres.
Lessons on general knowledge, creative
education, and extra-curricular activities such as
recitation of poems, dancing, singing, drawing,
etc are all covered in the curriculum. A total of
33 Education Assistance Centres are helping
990 students to prepare their daily lessons
given by the schools, 256 sessions have been
completed till now.

Community-Based Development
In Battajore union, 53 tube wells, 55
community latrines and 500 family-based
sanitary latrines have been installed. More
than 5,000 people are benefitting from these.
180 tubewells funded by Pennyappeal UK is
to be installed this year. Construction of 1 pure
drinking water supply complex through 11
supply points at Datterchar village is underway,
assuring clean water for 250 families.
The project is being jointly conducted by SAJIDA
Foundation WASH and Pennyappeal UK.
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Enriched Centre and Enriched
Home (Samriddhi Bari)
So far, 9 ENRICH centres have been built in
Battajore union. The concept of the Enriched
home or Samriddhi bari has emerged from
the program’s focus on the best utilization
of existing resources of each household.
Environment-friendly vermicomposting is
produced by most of the ENRICH households.

Special Savings

Youth Development

A special savings scheme has been designed
for ultra-poor households with priority given to
families with disabled members and femaleled households. Each household is advised
to open a bank account and deposit a certain
amount of money (at least BDT 100) per month
continuously for 2 years. The savings amount is
matched by PKSF, in terms of grant and at the
end of 2 years, a maximum of BDT 20,000 is
provided as grant on the condition that the total
amount must be used to acquire an asset (e.g.
land, farm animals, or acquiring skills, which
help upgrade the lives of household members)
in consultation with the PO concerned. This
helps households move towards a socioeconomically viable future.

‘Youth in Development’ component has been
under operation since 2016.
The ongoing pandemic has seen the youth
playing a vital role in creating awareness,
spreading the message of good hygiene to keep
the virus at bay.

Till now, 105 families
have deposited BDT
10,84,582 so far and
BDT 8,89,467 grant
has been returned to
90 members after their
savings matured
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Rehabilitation of Beggar
Financing is extended to beggars to involve
them in income-generating activities. So far,
11 beggars have been rehabilitated at the
Battajore union and given BDT 1 lakh grant to
invest it in income-generating activities.

Bondhu Chula
‘Bondhu Chula’ and Solar System Bondhu
Chula, 143 eco-friendly cooking stoves, along
with 1,724 solar home systems have been
provided to the households at Battajore Union.

Bashok Plantation
Bashok cultivators are earning a handsome
revenue by selling the dry leaves of Bashok
plants to pharmaceutical companies. To date,
dry leaves of Bashok worth BDT 3,46,615 have
been sold.

Highlights

Day Observation
Celebrated International Women Day, 2021
at SAMRIDDHI Program Office, Battajore,
Bakshigonj, Jamalpur

Special Event

360 Students of SAMRIDDHI Schools

Received autobiography of Bangabandhu Sheikh Mujibur Rahman
Md. Mosharraf Hossain recieved first prize
among 50,000 perticipents and painting,
all encompassing the the theme of

“Bangabandhu”

COVID-19 Response
Awareness-raising Activities

such as home visits and leaflet has been undertaken

2 Handwashing Devices

Installed in the project area
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DISASTER RESPONSE
Humanitarian response for vulnerable
people affected by natural and
man-made disasters in the country,
is a regular mandate of SAJIDA
Foundation. In 2020-21, SAJIDA Foundation played an extremely significant

role for different disasters, especially for victims of flood and
cold in different regions of the country. Mutually, emergency and
recovery services were provided for the victimized groups.
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Response for the Flood Victims
In 2020, Bangladesh witnessed one of the worst floods in its history; affecting 5.4 Million and leaving
a Million families waterlogged. SAJIDA Foundation stayed true to its mandate and came to the aid of
inhabitants from the worst-hit districts: Munshiganj, Shirajganj, Manikganj, Madaripur, Shariatpur,
and Madaripur.

SAJIDA’s Working Areas
Emergency Response

Number Population
Covered
of HH
3,695

18,475

Branches
Covered

Districts
Covered

Grant
Amount

Aid & Dev.
Support

26

7

BDT
1,847,500

ORS, Water
Purifier

Branches
Covered

Districts
Covered

Grant
Amount

Aid & Dev.
Support

12

5

Livelihood
BDT
1,950,000 Development

1

Cattle
Vegetable &
Corn Seeds

Short Term Recovery/Rehabilitation

Number Population
Covered
of HH
*650
**200

3,250
1,100

01

BDT
1,000,000

NOTE: * Crescent Paper Mills, Bangladesh
** Mr Saber Salam and Ms Lyn Keithline, USA
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Beyond Working Areas
Emergency Response

Number Population
Covered
of HH
167

835

Implementing
Partners

Districts
Covered

Grant
Amount

Aid & Dev.
Support

Solidarity,
Kurigram

2

BDT
501,000

Livelihood
Development

Donor/
Partners

Districts
Covered

Grant
Amount

Aid & Dev.
Support

HSBC

5

BDT
3,080,000

Cock-hen
Seed,
Fertilizer/
Fence
Child Food

Long Term Recovery/Rehabilitation

Number Population
Covered
of HH
1,100

5,500

500

2,500

HSBC

1

BDT
375,000

750

3,750

HSBC

1

BDT
442,500

SUBTOTAL
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Number of
Household

2,517

Population
Covered

12,585

Supporting Cold Striken Communities

SAJIDA’s Working Areas
Emergency Response

Number Population
Covered
of HH
1,750

8,750

Branches
Covered

Districts
Covered

Grant type/
Amount

Donor/
Partner

15

5

Blanket,
BDT
787,500

Crescent
Paper Mills

Districts
Covered

Grant type/
Amount

Donor/
Partner

10

Blanket,
BDT
1,449,000

Crescent
Paper Mills

Out of SAJIDA’s Working Areas
Emergency Response

Number Population
Covered
of HH

3,220

16,100

Branches
Covered
North/
South
Region
of the
Country
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EMPOWERING WOMEN
WORKING WITH WOMEN PHASE II
ADHUNIKA

82 I

WORKING WITH WOMEN PHASE II

The Foundation
has been helping women
overcome their professional
and personal difficulties through a comprehensive

mental health support
system comprising of
Para counselling and legal
aid support since 2018.
In association with SNV
Netherlands Development
Organisation in
Bangladesh,

the program
aids
approximately
3,500 workers
in 4 garment
factories in
Tangail and
Naranyanganj.
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Project Activities

Para-Counselling by Welfare
Officers

Counselling Services by Psychosocial Counsellor

Upon completion of a supervision program
spanning 14 days, para-counsellors conducted
26 counselling sessions encompassing critical
issues of interpersonal relationships were
facilitated by trained para-counsellors.

Psycho-social counsellor conducted 3 psychosocial counselling session for factory staffs and
referral workers (issues beyond the capacity of
para-counsellors) to ensure their mental wellbeing, with an aim to increase their synergy and
efficiency in factories.

Meeting with Welfare Officers
and AHC members
6 meeting with welfare officers and AHC
members were held; in total 7 abuse
complaints regarding verbal and, physical and of
authoritative capacity within factory operations
were received throughout the year

Other Activities
SAJIDA Foundation and BILS with the support
of SNV Netherlands Development Organisation
organized a seminar at National Press Club,
Dhaka on 10 October, 2020. The objectives
of the seminar were to observe world mental
health day, encourage new investor to invest
in workforce mental health. Attended by Mr
Hanifur Rahman, Chairman, Health Standing
Committee, BGMEA , Mr Nazrul Islam Khan,
Secretary General and Executive DirectorBILS and Ms Rubina Jahan, AGM and Clinical
Psychologist, SMHP, SAJIDA Foundation.

Networking and Coordination
with Partners
SAJIDA Foundation and BILS are jointly working
as a partner organisation under the WWW-02
project.
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Major Successes

Under the project of Working with Women Phase II, Gender-Based
Violence Day (2021) was observed at N.R. Group and Comfit
Composite Knit Ltd.
Facilitated tele-counselling sessions with 2 non-partner factories
Collaborated with BILS in facilitating TOT on para-counselling which further
ensured training for 52 mid-level and 106 mid-level staff
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Achievements

3,500 Workers

received Orientation on GenderBased Violence and

Mental Health Wellbeing

3,190

received orientation (Refresher) on
GBV and Mental Health

44 Days

of Supervision Program

194 Sessions

Wellbeing

53 Sessions

of Counselling Services
provided by a psychosocial counsellor

on Para-counselling
by Welfare-officer

41 Staffs

received Mental Health

First Aid Training

158 Staffs

received Mid-level

Management Training

35 Welfare Officers

received Refresher’s on

Para-Counselling

69
- Member
Anti-Harassment Committee
established and received

69 complaints till date

15 Welfare Officers

received TOT on Para-

counselling
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ADHUNIKA INITIATIVES
The ADHUNIKA Foundation,
in association with SAJIDA
Foundation, has partnered to
empower women and enabled them to be involved

in development activities during
the three years of its operations
through a programmatic approach,
thus contributing to Sustainable
Development Goals by providing
accessibility to health, education,
jobs, training, and enfranchisement in
decision making. Women and young
girls will be trained for menstrual
and personal hygiene. Prevention of
Violence Against Women and Girls
(VAWG) is advocated through Change
Makers via skill development training,
apprenticeship, and networking.
This will enable women to be
financially independent and develop
a strong and supportive network
and opportunities to significantly
reduce poverty, gender disparity, and
violence.
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Program Activities
Reproductive Health Awareness

Cash Support

The program has conducted 15 sessions with
225 participants collectively on raising breast
and cervical cancer awareness and enhanced
health status.

According to SAJIDA’s research team’s baseline
survey, during the pandemic, 44.90% of
households were devoid of income. Adhunika
initiatives provided a one-off BDT 3,000 cash
support to 134 families.

Promoting Safe Pregnancy by
Ensuring ANC, PNC and Delivery
Care
This year the teams took proper measures
to maintain all safety protocols amidst
the pandemic and benefitted 5 program
participants with free-of-cost treatment pre/
during and post-delivery and ensuring safe
health of mother and baby.

Prevention of Violence Against
Women and Girls (VAWG) through
Change Makers
By initiating a mass awareness and prevention
campaign, 2 training sessions with 20 program
participants were conducted to ensure women’s
access to justice, protection, and freedom from
violence through engaging the community.

Personal Hygiene Awareness
Including Menstrual Hygiene
Management
The initiative provided education to 40 women
and adolescent girls on personal and menstrual
hygiene management by incorporating messages
in the school curriculum.

Mental Health Session
15 Adhunika graduates received a tutorial
session on declining mental health due
to persisting issues during the prolonged
lockdowns, and loss of employment only
exacerbated the problem.

COVID-19 Vaccine Campaign
and Registration
Under Adhunika initiatives, 292 program
participants have been registered to receive
vaccination, with 52 receiving two doses
while 120 program participants received their
first dose. The vaccine registration drive is still
ongoing.

Skill Development Training
This year Adhunika provided 19 unemployed
adolescent girls and women training on how
to start and run small businesses, teaching
them leadership skills and entrepreneurship,
which enables and empowers them to become
financially independent.
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Adhunika Junior Initiatives
A team initiated in August 2015
under the Adhunika Foundation to
generate funding for SAJIDA’s
Amrao Manush program with the objective to help children in

academics, skills development and ensure
proper nutrition, with the overall goal of
enhancing their quality of life so they are able
to reach their true potential. Adapting the new
norm, the initiative carried on paving a brighter
future for marginalized and underprivileged
children.

Awareness Sessions for Children,
Adolescents and Caregivers
60 program participants during 6 virtual
psychosocial sessions were made aware
on different topics such as COVID-19, drug
addiction, personal hygiene, menstrual
hygiene, road safety, stress management and
modification of behavior. Now, participants
have access to two 24-hour national hotline
numbers.

Nutrition Support
70 program participants were provided
nutritional support through a weekly lunch
menu prepared by a nutritionist to ensure a
healthy lunch providing optimum growth and
development of the child.

Tutorial Support
This year, Adhunika initiative has continued to
provide tele-education three times a week
to 45 children through tutorial support to
minimize learning gaps created by prolonged
closures of educational institutions

Safeguarding Session
50 children participated in 5 safeguarding
sessions, where topics of early marriage, child
abuse, child labor were elaborated upon.
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SOCIAL
ENTERPRISES
INNER CIRCLE
HOME AND COMMUNITY CARE
PSYCHOLOGICAL HEALTH
AND WELLNESS CLINIC
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INNER CIRCLE

Provides high-quality, scientifically proven
early interventions for children with
Autism Spectrum Disorders (ASD) and
developmental delay
The program was established in 2017
partnered with international experts from
Singapore, which has enabled it to reach
international standards of service quality.
With the goal to create an inclusive world for
all those who require special needs and to
create mass awareness, the program
continues to operate.
In 2020, in line with the official World Health
Organisation (WHO) guidelines, a comprehensive
health and safety protocol was developed and
implemented. Training sessions and simulations
were conducted with all personnel to enable
proper implementation, maintaining adherence to
the health and safety protocol. Protective gears
were also distributed among therapists and the
number of sessions being held at the centre were
also limited to reduce the risk of exposure. Inner
Circle further introduced online therapy sessions
for its clients as well as home sessions, which
has gone a long way to help some of the parents
manage their children’s behavior and maintain
acquired skills while at home.

The core belief of the program is that every child is a unique
individual with different strengths and abilities, and with the right
learning opportunities, the child will be able to maximize his/her
potential.
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Program Services
Inner Circle’s education programs are tailored to each individual child to provide significant learning
opportunities. The program initiated Applied Behavior Analysis and Verbal Behavior (ABA-VB) in
partnership with Autism Recovery Network, Singapore, and then introduced Occupational Therapy
(OT) in partnership with Guo Hua Therapy and Consultation, Singapore, followed by the introduction
of Speech and Language Therapy (SLT) in partnership with Sum Hui Ting, Summer’s Therapy Services
in Singapore as well.
Currently, the program is offering CogniAble services, a machine learning-driven assistive technology
for early detection and affordable treatment of ASD.

ABA-VB

Social Learning Class

ABA is a science of learning and behavior,
involving the application of principles of
learning to enable the child to function as
independently and successfully as possible in
a variety of environments. The advanced form
of ABA program provided at the center targets
specific developmental areas such as socially
significant behaviors that include reading,
academics, social skills, communication, and
adaptive living skills. Adaptive living skills
include gross and fine motor skills, eating and
food preparation, using the toilet, dressing,
personal self-care, domestic skills, time and
punctuality, money and value, home and
community orientation, and work skills. Each
child’s program is individualized and conducted
by trained behavioral technicians from Autism
Recovery Network (ARN) Singapore, a leading
ABA provider in Asia.

A program designed for children who need
additional support in developing social skills
with the goal to aid children in becoming
socially skilled and to acquire the ability to
respond to their social environment in a
manner that helps them produce, maintain and
enhance positive interpersonal relationships.

This year, 59 Children had
availed ABA-VB Therapy,
41 children availed Speech
and Language Therapy
and 25 children availed
Occupational Therapy
92 I

Shadow Teaching
The program provides additional support
to help fill in the gap by building selfconfidence to promote positive interaction in
the classroom by helping the student focus on
the important concept and to develop
academic and social skills.

Social Thinking Program
Social Thinking addresses social learning
and social interaction challenges that some
special needs children face, including coaching
students to recognize verbal and nonverbal
communication cues (e.g., eye movements,
tone, and gestures), and grasping the non-literal
meaning of a statement.

School Readiness Program
The objective of the School Readiness Program
is to integrate children with additional needs
into mainstream schools by orienting them to
classroom routines and facilities.

Speech and Language Therapy

D

Inner Circle’s Speech and Language program is
designed specifically for children with speech
and communication disorders which can include
physical exercise to strengthen the muscles for
speech or speech drills which helps improve the
sound production (clarity).

Occupational Therapy

Speech Therapy at Inner
Circle is led by Sum Hui
Ting, a registered and
experienced Singaporean
Speech Therapist

Occupational Therapy program is designed to
help children be independent including sensoryprocessing deficits, cognitive skills, fine motor
skills, and visual-perceptual skills. It helps
develop play skills as well as engagements
in appropriate age-related activities, thus
enhancing their sense of accomplishment and
improving self-esteem.
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Home and Community Care (HCCL)

HCCL is a social enterprise under
SAJIDA Foundation
applying knowledge, vision and drive
to better lives through at-home
healthcare services. HCCL’s goal is to
create a safe and convenient setting at
home for effective clinical recovery and
management for elderly and chronically
ill patients. With a focus on delivering
holistic healthcare service in the comfort
of the patient’s home, HCCL’s vision is to
be a one stop solution for home based
health services.
HCCL’s caregivers are devoted to patient
care, and assist many older adults with
everyday tasks, such as bathing, dressing,
feeding, mobility management, vital
tracking, medication management and
administration, while providing much
needed companionship that addresses
one’s emotional needs. The program has a
dedicated team of medical experts paving
the way for the caregivers to provide
compassionate care at-home.

Since 2019, HCCL has evolved into a comprehensive home health care
provider that focuses on the entirety of patients’ well-being
The program was undertaken as an initiative of
SAJIDA Foundation called “Elder Care” program
in February 2016 but began its own journey as
a separate entity in late 2019, named Home
and Community Care Ltd (HCCL).
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In addition, HCCL has successfully operated
and provided services through the full-scale
COVID-19 pandemic. In response to COVID-19,
HCCL developed its services to uphold client and
caregiver safety alike.

Program Activities
General Caregiving
HCCL’s caregivers help its patients in daily activities such as feeding, bathing, dressing, toileting, and
more. The General caregivers have intensive training in providing companion and personal care.
Companion Care
Personal Care (Bathing, Feeding, Dressing, Toileting)
Assisted Daily Living
Fall Prevention
Recovery Assistance
Medication Management
Mobility Management
Vitals Tracking
Digital Monitoring

Advanced Caregiving
Includes skilled medical caregiving for intensive recovery
assistance and long-term illnesses.
Skilled Clinical Caregiving
Bed-Ridden/Post-Op Care
IV/ IM Injections/Suctioning
Dementia/Alzheimer’s/Cancer Care
Stroke, Cardiac, Pulmonary Patient Care
Special Feeding Pathways

COVID-19 Caregiving
Includes advanced and skilled medical caregiving for Covid-19
management or recovery at home
Advanced Caregiving
Infection Prevention and PPE Kits
Nurses and Caregivers in Isolation
COVID-19 Tests for Patients, Nurses and Caregivers
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Semi Critical Caregiving
Semi critical unit at home is an intermediate unit between the ICU and hospital wards, set up
at the patient’s home for patients who can be treated at home and are not in a situation to go
to the hospital.
Skilled Clinical Caregiving through trained Caregivers
Doctors and Nurses Supervision round the clock through
visits and remote monitoring
ICU Bed rent (3/5 function)
ICU Monitor
Oxygen Support
Nebulizer
Suction Machine
Any other home medical equipment required for patient

Add-On Services
Oxygen support
Lab Tests or Diagnostics at home
Doctors/Nurse at home or in person consultation
Physiotherapy
Nutritionist
Ambulance Services
X-Ray, ECG, Blood and Pathology
Mental Health Support
Disinfection Services
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Achievements

Digital Operations and Training
and Uninterrupted Service
throughout the Pandemic
HCCL team transitioned its operations to
become fully digital and remotely executable.
The program remotely/digitally trained
caregivers, onboarded and scheduled caregiving
shifts, and communicated with clients and
their families remotely, all the while focusing
to bolster clinical supervision through in-house
doctors and senior nurses.

Clinical Panel Formation
HCCL formed a Clinical Panel comprised of
senior consultants and specialists from several
disciplines such as respiratory medicine,
cardiology, internal medicine, critical care, etc.
The program worked towards bringing hospitalbased services to the home front, to the limits
that its Clinical Panel of Doctors had deemed
safe to be managed at home. Where it was not
possible to manage a patient at home, HCCL
coordinated ambulances available to transport
to the nearest hospital.

COVID-19 Response
COVID-19 Management through Antiviral Injections
at Home and Cases of Palliative Care
In response to the pandemic, HCCL introduced stringent infection preventive policies, initiated doctor
visits and diagnostic at home, all the while ensuring a separate residence for its nurses and caregivers.
HCCL also saw some notable cases of active treatment of COVID-19 through antiviral injections (e.g.,
Remdesivir) by trained nurses under the supervision of consulting pulmonary specialists.
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Highlights

90%

Caregivers completed both Doses of Vaccine

98%

Caregivers completed First Doses

Residence Accommodation,
Isolation Centre, and Training facility
established for Nurses

Digital Operations and Digital
Patient On-boarding

Provision of Semi-Critical Care
at Home
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Patient Metrics

New Patient Intakes by HCCL over the Years
37

41

54

50

42

58

87

83

112

Unique patients

Unique patients

Unique patients

January 2019
to
December 2019

January 2020
to
December 2020

January 2021
to
October 2021

91 Active Caregivers
(as of Nov 2021)

Almost 43% of our clients are in their 70’s
Since January 2020 we trained 63 new
Caregivers in our pool
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Way Forward

The future of homecare is bright and HCCL wants
to pave its way towards that direction through
more specialised forms of care being delivered at
home – mental health focused caregiving, activity
day centres, concierge care, diverse therapy
services, just to name a few. HCCL is also focusing
on developing its own technological edges –
mobile apps for patients, caregivers, supervisors
have all been created and being piloted as of
November 2021.
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PSYCHOLOGICAL HEALTH
AND WELLNESS CLINIC (PHWC)
PHWC is a global standard
mental health clinic, founded
in 2018, Psychological Health and Wellness Clinic (PHWC)

is a global standard mental health clinic, founded
in 2018, working for people experiencing
psychological distress and offering corporate
wellness services. PHWC served around 50
corporate clients, 20 EAP clients and around
3,000 individual clients in counselling since
inception and have expanded horizons with
wellness services for corporates, development
organisations and educational institutes. The
range of services include customized training,
tele counselling, crisis management, employee
assistance and many more.
Currently, PHWC is working closely behind
initiating new services and developing the old
services in order to reach out and support more
people.

In 2020, almost 800 new
clients received psycho-social
support, in addition to PHWC’s
existing clients. In 2021,
PHWC has provided services to
over 600 new clients.
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Range of Services of PHWC
PHWC has been expanding its services in promoting mental wellness in both corporate and clinical
sectors, impacting 20,000 lives across 40 organisations from multiple industries by creating easy
access to emergency emotional support. Over the last 3 years, it has conducted 200 workshops and
training. Furthermore, as part of the COVID-19 Response Initiative, PHWC has been providing free of
cost one-stop mental health support to all healthcare professionals across the nation.

Clinical Services Offer
Individual Psychiatric Assessment to gather
information about a person within a psychiatric
service, with the purpose of making a diagnosis.

Family and Relationship Clinic usually
provided by a therapist to help families improve
communication and resolve conflicts.

Bio-Psycho-Social Triage to assign respective
levels of treatment for interested clients. A
preliminary assessment is done by the senior
staff members to better allocate psychiatrists
and/or counsellors for the client’s needs.

Memory Clinic to ensure specialized
service for people with memory disorders
and related mood and personality-driven
functional changes. The clinic provides a
comprehensive assessment and intervention by
a multidisciplinary team for people concerned
about changes in their memory.

Psychiatric Assessment and Treatment to
treat anxiety/depression disorders, dementia,
substance abuse disorders, as well as psychotic
illnesses such as bipolar disorder, includes
clinical follow-up and/or medication.
Individual Psychological Counselling also
known as “talk-therapy” provides support for
anxiety/depression disorders, substance abuse
disorders, low self-esteem, relationship issues
as well as psychotic illnesses such as bipolar
disorder.
Group Counselling to cater to common themes
of mental health wellness concerns shared by
the members.
Couples Counselling to treat relationship
distress for both individuals and couples.
Support Group provides support to suicide
survivors, women’s support and many more.
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EMDR (Eye Movement Desensitization and
Reprocessing) is a psychotherapy treatment to
alleviate the distress associated with traumatic
memories. It is an effective treatment for
trauma and post-traumatic stress disorder
(PTSD).
CBT (Cognitive Behavioural Therapy) to
help one manage one’s problems through a
variation of “talk therapy” by changing the way
one thinks and behaves, mostly used to treat
anxiety and depression.
DBT (Dialectical Behavioural Therapy) is a type
of psychotherapy or ‘talk therapy’ that utilizes a
cognitive-behavioral approach.
Home Visit to provide in home care through
Therapists and Psychiatrists to clients who are
not able to visit the clinic for their sessions.

Individual Mindfulness
Mindfulness is the basic human ability to be
fully present, be aware of where we are and
what we are doing. When we are mindful, we
reduce stress, enhance performance, gain
insight, and increase our attention to others’
well-being.

Wellness Day Centre
A multipurpose space designed to promote
independence, social skills and for adults
(16+), social skills, and overall wellness,
where wellness-based activities ranging from
workshops and seminars, group therapies,
creativity/art-based classes, mindfulness
sessions, yoga, and other activities

Corporate and On-Site Services Include
EAP (Employee Assistance Program) provides
a wide range of support services to the
organisation’s employees and their immediate
family members. There are many components,
but at the core of the EAP is short term,
solution-based counselling, either via telephone
or face-to-face.
Corporate Workshops to provide seminars and
talks utilizing a pool of expert psychologists
and psychiatrists catering to corporations or
universities regarding mental health.
Mental Health Training Sessions
• Mental Health First Aid Training
• Para-Counsellor Training
• Psychological Skills Training
Group Counselling to cater to common themes
of mental health wellness concerns shared by
group members. Through sharing and different
forms of activities, clients gain a deeper
understanding of their emotions, personal
relationships, and their current lifestyles.
Face-to-Face Counselling
Each employee can have a set number of faceto-face sessions per condition per year with
a qualified counsellor if deemed necessary
during a telephone consultation. The number of
sessions available to employees depends on the
nature of the contract with the client company
and varies between 3-6 sessions.

Crisis Intervention
An immediate and short-term psychological
care aimed at assisting individuals in a crisis to
restore equilibrium to their bio-psycho-social
functioning and to minimize the potential of
long-term psychological trauma.
School Wellness Day – Student Counselling
to set up workshops and wellness activities
for students on topics like empathy, tolerance,
bullying, stress management and life
management tools.
University Counselling offer’s collaborations
with local universities to provide weekly
individual counselling for university students
and staff members.
Emergency Counselling designed to assist
those who are confronting life-threatening
circumstances, current or recent traumatic
crises, and serious mental illness.
Cox’s Bazar Remote Counselling – PsychoSocial Support (PSS) is a service specifically
tailored to provide on-site psycho-social
support to staff members of an organisation
who work in highly stressful and traumatic
work environments. PHWC initiated this service
in response to the growing crisis faced in
Cox’s Bazar, Bangladesh, supporting the many
employees working directly with the distressed
migrating Rohingya refugees to Bangladesh.
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Client Organisations Served
EAP (Telecounselling for
all staff and Life
Management
Services)

EAP

EAP +
Workshops

Onsite
counselling
+ Workshops
+ Group
counselling

Workshops

Onsite
counselling

HSBC

Cathay Pacific

Terre Des
Hommes

Danchurch Aid

Save the
Children

Urmi Group

Delivery Hero
(Foodpanda) Danish Refugee
Council
S.C. Johnson
and Son
Plan
International
KAS Pty
Bangladesh
Christian Aid
Bayer
CropScience
ActionAid
Bangladesh
SAJIDA
Foundation

UNICEF
MetLife
World Bank
International
School Dhaka
Sunbeams
Aga Khan
School

PHWC Thrive
Innovation has become the key mandates in
the local landscape of Bangladesh, PHWC has
launched a Learning and Development Unit, led
by Md Salim Hossain, Assistant Professor and
Coordinator (MS in I-O Psychology), Department
of Psychology, University of Dhaka and
Convener of Bangladesh Society for IndustrialOrganisational Psychology.
The main goal of PHWC THRIVE is to introduce
a new approach to learning and development
by incorporating emotional wellness and
mental wellbeing. With the team of experienced
trainers and psychologists, these training
programs will help grow efficiency, healthy
culture, and workplace satisfaction, creating
long-term social impact for corporates,
NGOs, academic institutions and individuals.
Boasting a range of experienced trainers and
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psychologists. Thrive offers a gateway to better
understanding of our professional and personal
relationships.
Thrive’s signature training modules are
Motivational Interviewing and its Effective Use,
Employee Counselling and Communication
Skills, Communication Styles and Non-Violent
Communication (NVC), Sexual Harassment and
Workplace Bullying, and Motivation and Team
Building. Apart from that, PHWC Thrive is planning
to organize workshops and discussions with
corporates on 20 different mental health topics.
Thrive has conducted the 12 sessions of Employee
Counselling and Communication Skills with 20
participants and 3 facilitators from August untill
October. After the successful completion, the
second batch will start in Mid January.

JHARNA
Entrepreneur,
Jurain, Dhaka

’’
Jharna, like so many, shares the same story. Born
into poverty, Jharna was married off at 15 to a
rickshaw puller who, due to his ill health, struggled
to pay the rent of Tk. 1000. The birth of her two
children saw Jharna start work as a day laborer
to meet daily ends, and coupled with her and her
husband’s meagre income, a stable and dignified
life seemed like a dream.
To fulfill Jharna’s dream, an officer from SAJIDA
Foundation’s “Amrao Manush” program came
forward and introduced her to its IGA training. With
an additional block grant of BDT 6,000, Jharna was
set to start her clothing business.
However, Jharna faced obstacles when the Jurain
slum was demolished and her clients left without
paying their dues. With her savings, she decided

to start a crockeries business. The unconditional
grant of BDT 3,000 she received from the program
helped her take care of her dues. Eventually, her
tireless work made her business prosper.
Jharna stated that SAJIDA Foundation’s AMRAO
Manush Project has helped her fulfill her dreams
and establish herself in the society. She was able
to leave that slum hut behind and now dreams of
making her business more successful and build
her own house.
“Amrao Manush gave me hope, taught me how
to work and always stayed beside me when I
needed them. It paved the way for me to lead a
dignified life”
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“As a caseworker I operate in a tight-knit society run by women,
where I mentor families with a focus on developing skills and
opportunities.”

’’
Sabiha Akter
Social Development Officer
SAJIDA Urban Extreme Poor Program
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Abdul Hakim
Entrepreneur,
Jurain, Dhaka

’’

Md Noor Islam Abdul Hakim, son of late Haji
Abdul Kader, is one of the prominent examples of
successful entrepreneurs of SAJIDA Foundation who
carried on his legacy through the next generation.
Starting a pavement garment business in 1984
due to his father’s poor financial condition, Noor
Islam established his own garment factory with Tk.
40,000. Although he later raised Tk. 240,000, it was
not sufficient to operate successfully.
Through SAJIDA’s Lalbagh branch, he was granted
a total loan of BDT 24,00,000 in 16 phases till
2019. His diligence enabled him to repay the
loan honorably and hit the Tk 8 crore production
target of summer clothes even during Covid-19.

Starting with 5 machines and 6 workers, the
business operations now are handled by his
son Md Najim Uddin, with 65 machines and
workers respectively, and a business capital of Tk.
12300000.
Najim Uddin now ensures a good living standard
for his family and plans to export his products
abroad in the near future. He runs his factory
operations under required surveillance and
considers himself a successful businessman.
Noor Islam is the perfect example of how
organisations supporting promising entrepreneurs
will ensure the cycle extends to future
generations.
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Jannatul

Teacher, Noli Muslim Secondary School and College
Borguna

’’

The increasing absenteeism of some of her most
regular students worried Jannatul, class teacher at
Noli Muslim Secondary School and College, located
in Noli village of Dhalua union in Sadar Upazila
of Barguna district. Jannatul pondered over fears
of child marriage as most of the absentees were
females.
The root of the problem lay closer to home, as
she discovered. One of the oldest educational
institutions in the area, Noli Muslim Secondary
School and College lacked adequate funds to invest
on improved WASH facilities or even provide basic
hygiene service. There was a lack of female only
sanitation facility, causing discomfort to manage
menstrual hygiene, especially as the journey to
school was tedious.
For the students’ well-being, ‘An integrated
approach to sustainable WASH in coastal zone;
Dhalua Union, Barguna, Bangladesh’ project
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by Penny Appeal, with implementing partner
SAJIDA Foundation, has provided safe water
supply to the institution. WASH facilities for
females – two chambers with a disposal unit,
hand washing device, a seating area, an ablution
facility for prayers, solar panels to alleviate power
shortages, and a running water system were
set up. A rainwater harvesting system was also
established. Awareness sessions were conducted
to emphasize the importance of good hygiene
behaviour.
Jannatul stated that simple and practical solutions
went a long way to promote a healthier future.
“Proper sanitation goes hand in hand with
personal freedom and health, two primary
catalysts for positive change in society.”

“My homesickness even during holidays was overshadowed
by the earnest requests made by my patients to look after them. It only
fortified my wish to stay and serve at the COVID unit, to
continue my care for them.”

Dipty

’’

Medical Officer, COVID Unit
250-bed General Hospital, Jashore
I 109

GOVERNANCE
Legal Status, Registration
and License
SAJIDA Foundation is registered with the Registrar
of Joint Stock Companies under the Societies Act of
1860 and at the NGO Affairs Bureau of Bangladesh
under Foreign Donation Regulations Ordinance
1978. In 2008, SAJIDA was also enlisted with
Micro-Credit Regulatory Authority and received a
license for conducting Microfinance.

General Body
The General Body of SAJIDA comprises of 2 members who are involved in policy-making, approval of
the annual audit report, budget planning and electing the Governing Body. The 27th Annual General
Meeting was held in 31st December 2020. The members adopted the audited financial report for the
financial year ended 30th June 2020, appointed external auditors for the 2020-21 and decided on the
annual budget of the organisation.

Members of the General Body
Sajida Humayun Kabir
Syed S. Kaiser Kabir
Abdul-Muyeed Chowdhury
Dr Erum Mariam
Mujtaba Rahman Khan
Dr Sarwar Ali
Md Shafiul Alam
Asadot Daullah
Barr Junayed A Chowdhury
Rabeya Yasmin
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Zareen Mahmud Hosein
Junaid K. Doja
Kaiser Tamiz Amin
Mridul Chowdhury
Mohammed Bin Quasem
Iresh Zaker
Sukhendra Kumar Sarkar
Sayeda Tahya Hossain
Tanya Tazeen Karim
Safi Rahman Khan

Governing Body
The Governing Body comprises of seven members selected for their wide-ranging expertise and
knowledge. They are distinguished professionals, activists and entrepreneurs. Elected for three years,
the Governing Body also reviews operational performances and gives approval for strategic decisions. In
the fiscal year 2020-2021 the Governing Body held four meetings with an overall attendance of 90%.
Meeting Number

Date of Meeting

Number of
Members

Number of
Members Attended

96th

30th Sep, 2020

10

10

97th

31st Dec, 2020

8

7

98th

30th Mar, 2021

7

6

99th

28th July, 2021

7

6
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Members of the Governing Body
Abdul Muyeed

Sukhendra

Chowdhury

Kumar Sarkar

Chairperson

Member

Mr Chowdhury
is the Founder,
first Chairman,
and current CEO
of Tiger Tours Ltd.
Upon completion of his MA with First Class in
Modern History from University of Dhaka, he
started his 33-year-long career in Civil Service.
He served as Secretary to the Government in
various Ministries including Communication,
Finance and was ex-officio Chairman of the
National Board of Revenue (NBR). Assigned as
Deputy Commissioner of greater Faridpur and
Dhaka district, and Commissioner of Chittagong
Division, Mr Chowdhury served as an Adviser to
the caretaker Government of Bangladesh. He is
also the Founder Chair of the SME Foundation
and Federation of NGOs in Bangladesh (FNB),
Mr Chowdhury has previously served as the
Executive Director of BRAC for seven years.
Mr Chowdhury attended the University of
Tennessee as a Fullbright Scholar to study
Public Administration.

Mr Sukhendra
Kumar Sarkar
has been the
Chairman of BURO,
a reputed national
NGO. Prior to this he was the Treasurer of
BRAC University. He was also the Director
of Administration, Monitoring and Audit at
BRAC, further overseeing the Partnership
Strengthening Unit and Transport departments.
Throughout his career he has been dedicated
to several important projects including the Oral
Therapy Extension Programme, Child Survival
Programme, Women’s Health Development, the
Rural Credit Programme and the Management
Development Programme. He was the founding
Chairperson of Credit and Development Forum
(CDF). Apart from being a member of SAJIDA
Foundation’s governing body, Mr Sarkar is
also a member of the general committees of
BRAC, CDF and Srizony and a member of the
Governing Body of Nova Consultancy Bangla.
Mr Sarkar earned his Masters in Management
from the Asian Institute of Management in
Manila, and his Bachelors of Education (B.Ed.)
and Bachelors of Science (B.Sc.) degrees from
Rajshahi University.

Rabeya Yasmin
Member
Ms Rabeya Yasmin has 24 years’ experience in policy, strategy and
implementation of financial and social inclusion, livelihoods and social
protection programmes in Bangladesh; advising government and nongovernment agencies in countries across Asia, Africa and Caribbean
belt in their poverty reduction programmes. Currently she is working at
Nathan Associates, London managing and leading the task of establishing
the first ever Credit Information Bureau (CIB) for the Micro Finance industry in Bangladesh. She
was a Director in BRAC, served the organisation for 19 years in different capacities; played a key
role in designing, developing and leading BRAC’s Flagship Graduation programme for the Ultra
Poor. She acquired her MSS in Political Science from the University of Dhaka and MA in Poverty and
Development from the Institute of Development Studies, Sussex, UK.
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Iresh Zaker

Zareen Mahmud

Member

Hosein

Mr Iresh Zaker is the
Managing Director
of Asiatic 3sixty, a
leading marketing
communication
conglomerate
in Bangladesh. In addition to his work as a
marketeer, he has also been involved with the
television and film industry as an actor and
producer.
Mr Iresh obtained his bachelor’s degree from
Lawrence University in 2001, and his master’s
degree in development economics from the
University of Illinois at Urbana–Champaign in
2002.

Mohammed Bin
Quasem
Member
Mr Quasem is a
member of the
governing body of
SAJIDA Foundation.
He also holds the
post of Director of Operations of Fareast Group
Knitting and Dyeing (FEKDIL). He started his
career at MM Ispahani Ltd and then worked
as a banker in various senior management
capacities with an international Bank in Hong
Kong. In 1991, he joined a buying house in Hong
Kong where he gained experience in textile and
garments. He has been engaged in social work
with Impact Foundation and Children’s Hope.
Mr Quasem is a shareholder director of wellestablished 5 manufacturing concerns in and
around Dhaka with cumulative turnover of over
US $150 Million: Equity Resources Ltd., Echotex
Ltd., Echo Sourcing (Pvt) Ltd., Far East Yarn
Dyeing Industries Ltd., National Tea Co. Ltd.
He completed his post-graduation degree in
Economics from Northern Eastern University,
Boston, USA.

Member

Ms Zareen
Mahmud Hosein
is the Founder and
Executive Director of
HerStory Foundation.
The organisation focuses on empowerment of
women and girls in Bangladesh through art,
story-telling and capacity building. She is also
the Founding Partner of Snehasish Mahmud &
Co., Chartered Accountants. Ms Hosein serves
on the Board of the Aga Khan Foundation
Bangladesh and is the Treasurer of Ghashful, an
NGO focusing on women and child welfare and
microcredit. Ms Hosein has a BA in Economics
from Smith College and a Masters in Public
Administration from New York University. She
is a Certified Public Accountant and a Fellow
Chartered Accountant of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of Bangladesh.

Barr Junayed
A Chowdhury
Member

Mr Barrister
Junayed Ahmed
Chowdhury is
the managing
partner of Vertex
Chambers, a leading law firm in Bangladesh.
He is a Barrister and Advocate of the Supreme
Court of Bangladesh and a Registered Foreign
Lawyer under the Law Society of New South
Wales, Australia specializing in Corporate
and International Taxation, Oil and Gas
law, Infrastructure and Construction, M&A,
Structuring Venture Capital and Private Equity
Transactions, International Finance, and
International Environmental Law. He completed
his LLB degree from the University of London
and went on to earn a Post Graduate Diploma
from the Inns Court School of Law under City
University, London, and an LLM degree from the
University of Chicago Law School.
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Committees

SAJIDA Foundation has formed 12 committees at the management level for ensuring smooth
functioning and transparency as a whole

EMC
The Executive Management Committee (EMC)
comprises of SAJIDA’s Executive Leaders who
meet once a month. This monthly strategic
discussion aims to facilitate sharing of
important agendas regarding the direction,
progress, and challenges of the Organisation.
Important decisions are taken at this meeting,
which establishes effective communication
within SAJIDA’s Executive Management to
support strategic decision-making.

Monitoring, Code of Conduct and
Shudhachar Committee
The Executive Management Committee (EMC)
comprises of SAJIDA’s Executive Leaders who
meet once a month. This monthly strategic
discussion aims to facilitate sharing of
important agendas regarding the direction,
progress, and challenges of the Organisation.
Important decisions are taken at this meeting,
which establishes effective communication
within SAJIDA’s Executive Management to
support strategic decision-making.

Service Price Determination Committee
The Committee determines the price of services offered by enterprises under SAJIDA while ensuring
the principles of affordability, service quality and organisational mandate.
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Sexual Harassment Elimination
Committee (SHEC)

Program Development Committee

As part of its commitment, to uphold court
verdict and to ensure gender equality, SAJIDA
Foundation has taken numerous initiatives to
cultivate anti-sexual harassment values and
culture in the organisation. To achieve this
goal, SAJIDA Foundation has formed an eightmember committee, titled ‘Sexual Harassment
Elimination Committee, along with members
of other organisations having extensive
experience in human rights, gender and sexual
harassment.

The Committee provide yes or no decisions on
concept note and/or proposal development for
both external and internal programs, along with
technical inputs. Members also provide inputs
in budget development and evaluate proposals
which program managers want to launch with
SAJIDA’s funds.

Investment Management
Committee
Formed in 2019, the Investment committee
assists SAJIDA’s Governing Body in taking
core investment decisions. It invests SAJIDA’s
restricted and unrestricted funds in different
movable and immovable assets, securities,
bonds, and shares, analyze the performance of
current investments, and assist management
to decommission investments that provide
poor returns.

Prevention of Money Laundering
& Terrorist Financing, and
Compliance Committee
The purpose of the committee is to review
the regulatory and policy level compliance
status of the organisation while protecting
the organisation from internal and external
risks through the implementation of timely
measures. The Committee also provides
oversight on whether all the financial
transactions follow the Anti-money laundering
and Combatting Terrorist Financing laws and
regulations. The committee meets quarterly to
review and address any suspicious transaction
within SAJIDA and with external stakeholders.

Staff Welfare Management
Committee
The Staff Welfare Management Committee
has been formed to manage provident fund,
gratuity, staff savings scheme, staff loan and
grants to employee. It is the sole mission to
ensure staff wellbeing is maintained through
financial security and in any other way as and
when required. The committee meets once
every month to sure all processes are running
smoothly.

Audit Review Committee
The audit review committee was formed with
SAJIDA’s Senior Management to assist the
audit committee in the financial reporting and
budgeting processes, system of internal controls
and risk assessment, compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements; the qualifications,
independence, and performance of the external
auditors and internal audit function.

Organisational Fund Management
Committee
The purpose of the committee is fund
mobilization as per fund requirement of all
Microfinance branches and projects, planning
and scheduling credit line facility with local
and international financial institutions, and
repayment of loan and interest payment as per
loan schedule.
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MANAGEMENT
Human Resource
This year, Human Resource has launched
the Employee Assistant Programme (EAP)
to ensure the mental well-being of all staff
of SAJIDA Foundation. As well as orientation
on EAP, Workshop on Stress Management,
Workshop in Emotional Intelligence to ensure
a healthy work-life and personal life balance.
In addition system enhancement has led to
facilitating salary transfer directly from HR to
the staff’s bank account and introduction of
online attendance and leave management.

Administration
Department is the backbone of SAJIDA
Foundation. The Department establishes links
between various departments and ensures
the smooth flow of information from one
part to the other part to run the organisation
professionally and smoothly.
Equally, like other successfully operated
departments within SAJIDA Foundation,
the Administrative Department has done a
remarkable task during the last year, updating
all licensing and regulatory work of NGOAB,
City Corporation, DC Office, DG Health
Service, and other Government agencies in a
timely manner. Developed and implemented
COVID-19 Protocol effectively, conduct several
surveys to all branch and project offices to
keep COVID Free office, launched One-Stop
Ambulance Service for SF Staff and their family
members, provided administrative support to
all other departments to ensure organisational
rules and regulations. During the reporting
year, developed sop procedure for support
staff, safety manual, and awareness programs,
ensuring office staff pick and drop service. In
the future, Administration Department will be
working towards developing robust, timely
strategies to aid the organisation in performing
to its optimum level.
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Information Technology
Department (IT)
SAJIDA Foundation’s IT department provides
vital support to all departments and programs
to ensure fluidity of work processes while data
sharing within the organisation is secured and
its integrity maintained. SAJIDA Foundation
has been making significant investments
to strengthen IT infrastructure, business
process automation and digitization to achieve
organisational strategic objectives. Common
protocol tools have also been implemented
to enable inclusive communication between
all employees in one platform, benefitting
field staff who may not have access to
smartphones.
The introduction of MIS Dashboard system
has enabled Senior Management allows
them to stay informed of key details of
SAJIDA’s performance in the microfinance
and development sector. Moreover, the team
provides necessary support to local offices and
ensures a secure IT environment for software
operation.
SAJIDA Foundation will continue to invest
in innovations and ensure that Information
Technology systems evolve in line with new
trends and deliver value to staff and thus help
the business of the organisation.

Hospital Management System
[HMS]
Hospital Management System (HMS) is an
integrated software that handles different
directions of clinic workflows, enabling
streamlined healthcare performance along with
administrative, medical, doctor prescription,
legal and financial control.

Infrastructure Development

Research

Infrastructure Development unit play a vital
role to the overall infrastructure development
and expansion of SAJIDA Foundation. Since the
inception of the unit is working construction
and development of all Branch, Project,
Hospital and development of land.

SAJIDA has 25+ years of hands-on experience
serving the underprivileged, has laid down a
strong foundation for multidisciplinary research
activities. In 2020, the research department
was established to complement the
organisational shift to design evidence-based
programmes and impactful interventions. SF
research department collaborates with external
research consultants to conduct needs,
baseline and endline assessment for effective
project implementation. Furthermore, SAJIDA
research department engages in academicNGO affiliation with the idea of facilitating
community-based research partnerships to
co-create new knowledge. SAJIDA Foundation
aims to drive sector level and national level
policy formulation to create an inclusive society
Within the last 12 months, SAJIDA Foundation
research department has undertaken research
initiatives aiming to publish research work in
peer-reviewed journals and formed a strategic
partnership with icddrb to facilitate and
implement collaborative research activities in
priority areas of public health

This year, the department conducted
development of Manikganj, Bhulta, Ashulia
and Manikganj, along with renovation and
maintenance work at MF Branch Office, Project
Offices, PDC, Hospitals. In addition to these,
the unit completed restructuring of existing
SAJIDA Hospital into a COVID Isolation Center
at Keraniganj.

COVID-19 Support
From the very beginning of the outbreak in
Bangladesh, Administrative Department was
directly involved and provided extensive logistic
support for the Infrastructural development
of SAJIDA Hospital, Narayanganj to turn into
COVID-19 Treatment Hospital and successfully
run the operation till 31st January 2021.
During the 2nd wave of COVID-19 outbreak
in Bangladesh, SAJIDA Hospital, Keraniganj
started COVID Treatment at Jessore Sadar
Hospital under the MOU between DGHS and
SAJIDA Foundation with logistic support from
Administration department; SAJIDA Hospital,
Keraniganj setup for COVID Treatment,
arranging accommodation, procure BIOMedical equipment and logistical support to
run the project effectively and efficiently.

Creating a Productive Work-FromHome Environment
COVID-19 has caused remote work to become
a necessity for many professionals. SAJIDA
Foundation ensures work environment that
allows its staff to be more productive at home
or the physical office. The MIS team has built
supporting application (mySAJIDA) to get ready
for regular work and ensure proper home office
by an applied monitoring tool.

Communications
Founded in 2017, SAJIDA’s Communications
Department has come a long way in realizing
the vision and goals of the Foundation.
What started as a small team, branched
out over the years into Internal and
ExternalCommunications, each with their own
set of strategies and goals to uphold SAJIDA’s
core values.During this year and amidst the
pandemic, the Team diligently worked towards
disseminating knowledge,supporting programs
in their endeavours, creating timely awareness
about Covid-19, and aiding the organization
fight through the crisis. Conforming to
the ‘new normal’ of cloud workspace and
digital collaborations, the Team took timely
measurements to unite the organization and
keep the spirit alive even during the pandemic
through online interventions and regular
check-ins
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Management Information System (MIS)

Safeguarding Initiatives

The MIS department has carried out the
implementation of web based centralized online
solutions for the Microfinance Management
System, and Human Resource Management
System (EMPRESS -Employee Productivity
Escalation System) through respective applications
for each. These projects operate with greater ease
and efficiency due to elevated speed, accuracy,
security and synchronization of relevant program
data. The team has recently developed a platform
named “Field Force Management System” with
the objective to enable staffs movement to come
under automated process.

SAJIDA strives to create an environment in the
organization that promotes mutual respect
irrespective of gender, sex, ethnicity and race.
With the goal to empower its change-makers
and advance gender equity, safeguarding
program was launched during January 2020.
SAJIDA Foundation has formed a sevenmember committee titled ‘Sexual Harassment
Elimination Committee’, members consist of
three reputed gender specialists and legal
experts hailing from other organizations
with extensive experience in the fields of
human rights, gender and sexual harassment
alongside four members from within SAJIDA.

SAJIDA Foundation’s Central
Reporting System [ Monthly MIS
portal ]

SAJIDA Foundation’s MIS is a combination of
centralized and decentralized systems. Off-line
and decentralized operations upload data into
a central database system for consolidation.
Hence, overall operations get consolidation
reports conveniently at the end of each month.
The development of a fully functional
development environment allows the
generation of various MIS reports. It acts as
a data warehouse system to generate any
kind of Regulatory (MRA, BANKs and PKSF)/
MIS/History reports. Special reports from the
system are also produced for programs to
gather quantitative information about their
development activities. Programs run various
promotional and motivational (INCENTIVE)
activities based on those reports.

Digital Tools [SAJIDA Pro-274] for
COVID-19 Response Data Capture
SAJIDA Pro-274 is used as information system
platform for integrated data management and
reporting for COVID-19 Response activities.
It is primarily used for reporting of routine
response activities data; but also serves as
data repository for further analysis. The digital
tool has enabled smooth reporting whilst
increasing productivity by reducing human
involvement.
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An additional four-member team is assigned
to raise awareness among the employees
and also investigate the Safeguarding related
issues. The Safeguarding team of SAJIDA works
towards ensuring the safety and well-being of
all employees, beneficiaries, partners, donors
and volunteers from abuse, sexual harassment,
sexual exploitation and code of conduct
violation.
Five policies which are: Code of Conduct,
Sexual Harassment Elimination Policy, Child
Protection Policy, Vulnerable Adult Policy and
Whistleblowing Policy are included under the
umbrella of Safeguarding.
Objective of the Safeguarding initiatives are:
To ensure zero tolerance on safeguarding
related issues
To ensure security of victims
To ensure fast resolution of complains
To work as an independent program
To create a gender-friendly environment

Challenge Fund

Fundraising Team

To promote key aspects of its core values,
innovation, sustainability and technologically
driven solutions, SAJIDA Foundation launched
the Challenge Fund - a unique and transparent
mechanism that aims to maximize the impact
of innovative, socially-driven, sustainable
initiatives of early-stage NGOs, social
enterprises or start-ups. The initiative further
extends support to organisations working
in the fields of health (physical and mental),
agriculture, education, environment and WASH.
The Challenge Fund will offer financial and
business development support to accomplish
pre-defined objectives, with a focus on social
impact and innovation; aligning development
and business objectives, stimulating innovation
and promoting problem-solving ideas.

The fundraising team engages in donor
sourcing and pipeline development by aiming
to raise funds from international donors, large
corporations, large non-profit and individual
donors based on SAJIDA’s mandate and
cultivate relationships with them. The team
also develops concept notes and proposals
through a full proposal submission cycle and
donor report through compliance and liaison.

Capacity Building Department
Non-Microfinance
SAJIDA Foundation has set its long-term
goal to completely understand the return on
investment from each employee in the new
capacity building strategy. The organization
wants to achieve this goal by increasing
investment on capacity building. The entire
talent management process will be restructured and streamlined with complete
transparency in three phases.
Microfinance
The microfinance capacity building team
focuses on making its workforce capable
to ensure providing best service to the
community. Along with assessing trainees to
determine their progression, capacity building
further supports the digitalization strategy of
the organization through developing necessary
skills and adapting contemporary practices.

By being the primary point of interaction with
assigned donors, the fundraising department
responds to technical queries from donors
whilst gathering necessary inputs from the
program team. This team is responsible for
drafting technical reports (monthly, quarterly,
half yearly, and project closure – as per
requirement) for assigned projects and also
develop proposals and concept notes for
potential donors taking support from the
program team.

Fundraising
For the fiscal year 2020-2021, the fundraising
department raised BDT 118,172,855 for
SAJIDA’s COVID - 19 interventions such as
overall COVID response, Hospital, Food and
Hygiene Package distribution for Vulnerable
Households, Amrao Manush Program, Food
and Hygiene Package for RMG workers
(Mallzee), COVID Support for Urban Extreme
Poor Project.
For existing projects such as PROSHOMON,
the team raised BDT 7,920,045 and for
new projects like WASH, BDT 47,563,812
was raised. For Flood Response and Winter
Support, BDT 8,199,911 and BDT 2,493,530
was collected.
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DONORS AND PARTNERS
Corporations

Development Agencies

• Mallzee
• Citi N.A
• SCB
• HSBC
• Unilever
• Kazi Farms Group
• Crescent Paper mills
• Eastern Bank Ltd (EBL)
• Epyllion Group
• Nestle
• IUB Trust
• City Group
• Community Bank
• IDLC
• The Very Group, UK
• BSRM
• ABC Real Estates Ltd
• IPDC
• Grameen Telecom
• Reliance Insurance Ltd
• MTB
• Akij Trust
• Center for Zakat Mgt
• CVC Finance Ltd
• ISOL
• Jubilant Golden Harvest Ltd
(Dominos Pizza Inc)
• Eskayef Pharmaceutical
• Executive Motors
• Coca Cola

• Metlife Foundation (CAF & Give2Asia)
• WaterAid
• Gates Foundation
• Penny Appeal
• ICCO Cooperation (CORDAID)
• Briish Asian Trust
• Water.org
• Adhunika
• American Chamber of Commerce
• New Zealand High Commission
• Spreeha
• ActionAid
• Metropolitan Chamber of Commerce
(MCCI)
• Save the children
• Give Bangladesh
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AWARDS & RECOGNITION
2011 - 2021
Year

Award

Awarding Body

2011

1st Prize under the NGO/NPO Sector
for Best Published Accounts and Reports

Institute of Chartered Accountants of
Bangladesh

2nd Prize under the NGO/NPO Sector
for Best Published Accounts and Reports

Institute of Chartered Accountants of
Bangladesh

Best Microfinance Institution under
Citi Micro-entrepreneurship Awards

The Citi Foundation

2nd Prize under the NGO/NPO Sector
for Best Published Accounts and Reports

Institute of Chartered Accountants of
Bangladesh

2nd Prize for Best Corporate Award
in the NGO Sector

Institute of Cost and Management
Accountants of Bangladesh

Joint Second Runner-up

South Asian Federation of
Accountants

2nd Prize under the NGO/NPO Sector for Best
Published Accounts and Reports

Institute of Chartered Accountants of
Bangladesh

2nd Prize for Best Corporate Award
in the NGO Sector

Institute of Cost and Management
Accountants of Bangladesh

Joint Second Runner-up

South Asian Federation of
Accountants

2016

2nd Prize under the NGO/NPO Sector
for Best Published Accounts and Reports

Institute of Chartered Accountants of
Bangladesh

2017

2nd Prize under the NGO/NPO Sector
for Best Published Accounts and Reports

Institute of Chartered Accountants of
Bangladesh

1st Prize the Entrepreneurs Organization

The Entrepreneurs Organization

2nd Prize under the NGO/NPO Sector
for Best Published Annual Report

Institute of Chartered Accountants of
Bangladesh

1st Prize under the NGO/NPO Sector for Best
Published Annual Report 2019

Institute of Chartered Accountants of
Bangladesh

1st Prize under the NGO/NPO Sector
for Best Published Annual Report 2020

Institute of Chartered Accountants of
Bangladesh

Iconic Companies Creating a Better World for All

Women’s Indian Chamber of Commerce &
Industry

2013

2014

2015

2018

2020

2021
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Finance
SAJIDA Foundation

Statement of Financial Position
As at 30th June 2021

FY 2020-21 FY 2019-20 FY 2018-19 FY 2017-18 FY 2016-17
Financial Position
Fixed Assets
Investments
Loan portfolio
Advance and Deposits
Current Assets
Current Liabilities
Net Current Assets
Net Assets

261
2,279
13,552
487
882
570
312
16,891

472
1,153
17,855
394
3,915
321
3,593
23,469

579
734
14,980
267
1,110
214
895
17,457

524
594
11,855
201
526
128
398
13,572

455
758
7,493
167
176
90
86
8,959

4,628
358
4,266
638
7,001

3,916
370
4,728
947
13,507

3,127
247
3,658
640
9,784

2,328
197
3,022
340
7,685

1,777
149
2,367
151
4,515

Total

16,891

23,469

17,457

13,572

8,959

Cash Flow
Operating Activities
Investing Activities
Financing activities
Cash and cash equivalents at year-end

(1.76)
4,459
(6,977)
371

264
(2,836)
4,808
2,891

801
(3,244)
2,724
655

936
(4,500)
3,847
373

582
(3,357)
2,768
90

4,698
3,662
1,036

4,958
4,142
816

4,176
3,481
695

2,874
2,300
574

2,021
1,452
569

Represented by:
Capital Funds
Other Funds
Member Savings
Loan Loss Provision
Term Loan

Income & Expenditure
Income
Expenditure
Operating Surplus

Taka in Million

Five Years' Comparative Data (in Million BDT)
Income

6,000
5,000
4,000

Expenditure

Operating Surplus

4,958

4,698

4,142
3,662

4,176
3,481
2,874

3,000

2,300

2,000
1,000
0
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2,021
1,452

1,036

FY 2020-21

816

FY 2019-20

695

FY 2018-19

574

FY 2017-18

569

FY 2016-17

Income
6,000
5,000

4,698

4,958

4,000

Expenditure
5,000

4,176

4,000
2,021

2,000
0

2,300

2,000

1,452

0
FY
2020-21

FY
2019-20

FY
2018-19

FY
2017-18

5,000

1,036
816

800

695

600

FY
2020-21

FY
2016-17

Operating Surplus

1,000

4,628

574

569

FY
2019-20

FY
2018-19

FY
2017-18

FY
2016-17

Capital Funds
3,916

4,000

3,127

3,000

2,328

2,000

400

1,777

1,000

200
0
FY
2020-21

FY
2019-20

FY
2018-19

FY
2017-18

FY
2016-17

FY
2020-21

Loan Portfolio
20,000
15,000

3,481

1,000

1,000

1,200

4,142

3,000

2,874

3,000

3,662

5,000

14,980

4,266

FY
2017-18

FY
2016-17

4,728
3,658

4,000

11,855

10,000

FY
2018-19

Member Savings

17,855
13,552

FY
2019-20

7,493

5,000

3,000

3,022

2,367

2,000
1,000

0

0
FY
2020-21

FY
2019-20

FY
2018-19

FY
2017-18

FY
2016-17

FY
2020-21

FY
2019-20

FY
2018-19

FY
2017-18

FY
2016-17
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Source of Fund BDT in Million

SAJIDA Foundation
June 2021

Source of Fund
BDT in Million
Financing from Financial Institution
7,001
Members savings deposits
4,266
Capital fund and Reserve
4,951
Grants advance and others
543
Total Sources of Fund
16,761

%
41.77%
25.45%
29.54%
3.24%
100%

543,3%

4,266,25%

7,001,42%

Financing from Financial Institution

Members savings deposits

Capital fund and Reserve

Grants advance and others

Application of Fund BDT in Million

SAJIDA Foundation
June 2021

Application of Fund
Loans to members
Investments
Grants, receviable and Advance
Property, plant and equipment
Total Application of Fund

4,951,30%

BDT in Million
13,552
2,279
669
261
16,761

%
80.85%
13.60%
3.99%
1.56%
100%

669,4%

261,1%

2,279,14%

13,552,81%

Loan to members

Investments

Grants, receivables and Advance

Property, plant and equipment

Programs Income BDT in Million

SAJIDA Foundation
June 2021

Programs Income
Microfinance Program
Other Development Program
Investment
Total

661,14%

BDT in Million
3,468
569
661
4,698

%
73.82%
12.11%
14.07%
100%

569,12%

Microfinance Program

3,468,74%

Other Development Program

Investment

Programs Expenditure BDT in Million

SAJIDA Foundation
June 2021

Programs Expenditure
Microfinance Program
Other Development Program
Total

BDT in Million
2,685

%
73.32%

977
3,662

26.68%
100%

977,27%

Microfinance Program
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2,685,73%

Other Development Program

Financial Highlight
Five Years Data

Vertical Analysis

Taka in Million

Particulars
FY 2020-21
Income & Expenditure
Income
4,698
Expenditure
3,662
Operating Surplus
1,036
Capital and Liabilities
Capital Funds
Other Funds
Member Savings
Loan Loss Provision
Term Loan
Current Liabilities
Total

%

FY 2019-20

%

FY 2018-19

%

FY 2017-18

%

FY 2016-17

%

100%

4,958

100%

4,176 100%

2,874 100%

78%

4,142

84%

3,481

83%

2,300

80%

2,021 100%
1,452

72%

22%

816

16%

695

17%

574

20%

569

28%

4,628 27%
358
2%
4,266 24%
638
4%
7,001 40%
570
3%
17,461 100%

3,916 16%
370
2%
4,728 20%
947
4%
13,507 57%
321
1%
23,790 100%

3,127 18%
247
1%
3,658 21%
640
4%
9,784 55%
214
1%
17,671 100%

2,328 17%
197
1%
3,022 22%
340
2%
7,685 56%
128
1%
13,700 100%

1,777 20%
149
2%
2,367 26%
151
2%
4,515 50%
90
1%
9,049 100%

261
1%
2,279 13%
13,552 78%
487
3%
882
5%
17,461 100%

472
2%
1,153
5%
17,855 75%
394
2%
3,915 16%
23,790 100%

579
3%
734
4%
14,980 85%
267
2%
1,110
6%
17,671 100%

524
4%
594
4%
11,855 87%
201
1%
526
4%
13,700 100%

455
5%
758
8%
7,493 83%
167
2%
176
2%
9,049 100%

Assets
Fixed Assets
Investments
Loan portfolio
Advance and Deposits
Current Assets
Total

Horizontal Analysis

Particulars

FY
2020-21

Change
over
preceding
Year (%)

FY
2019-20

Change
over
preceding
Year (%)

FY
2018-19

Change
over
preceding
Year (%)

FY
2017-18

Change
over
FY
preceding 2016-17
Year (%)

Income & Expenditure
Income
Expenditure
Operating Surplus

4,698

-5%

4,958

19%

4,176

45%

2,874

42%

2,021

3,662

-12%

4,142

19%

3,481

51%

2,300

58%

1,452

1,036

27%

816

17%

695

21%

574

1%

569

4,628

18%

3,916

25%

3,127

358

-3%

370

50%

4,266

-10%

4,728

29%

247
3,658

2,328
197
3,022
340
7,685
128

31%
32%
28%
125%
70%
43%

1,777
149
2,367
151
4,515
90

Capital and Liabilities

638

-33%

947

48%

640

7,001

-48%

13,507

38%

9,784

570

78%

321

50%

214

34%
26%
21%
88%
27%
67%

Total

17,461

-27%

23,790

35%

17,671

29%

13,700

51%

9,049

Assets
Fixed Assets
Investments
Loan portfolio
Advance and Deposits
Current Assets

261
2,279
13,552
487
882

-45%
98%
-24%
24%
-77%

472
1,153
17,855
394
3,915

-19%
57%
19%
47%
253%

579
734
14,980
267
1,110

11%
24%
26%
33%
111%

524
594
11,855
201
526

15%
-22%
58%
20%
199%

455
758
7,493
167
176

Total

17,461

-27%

23,790

35%

17,671

29%

13,700

51%

9,049

Capital Funds
Other Funds
Member Savings
Loan Loss Provision
Term Loan
Current Liabilities
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CREDIT RATING
The Credit Rating Agency of Bangladesh Limited (CRAB) has affirmed the credit rating of SAJIDA
Foundation with an “AA3” (Double A Three) rating in the long term and “ST-2” rating in the short
term. CRAB performed the rating based on audited financial statements up to June 30, 2020 and
other relevant quantitative and qualitative information. Microfinance Institutions (MFIs) rated
“AA3” have very strong capacity to meet their financial commitments.
The summary of SAJIDA’s ratings, dating 28th January 2021 and valid till 31st December 2021 is
as follows:

2021

2020

Long Term

Long Term

AA3

AA3

Short Term

Short Term

ST- 2

ST- 2

Definition
Strong capacity & High quality, MFIs rated ‘AA3’ have strong capacity to meet their financial
commitments but are somewhat more susceptible to the adverse effects of changes in
circumstances and economic conditions than MFIs in higher-rated categories. ‘AA3’ is judged to
be high quality and are subject to low credit risk.
ST-2: MFls rated in category are considered to have strong capacity for timely repayment. MFls
rated in this category are characterized with commendable positing in terms of liquidity, internal
fund generation and access to alternative sources of funds.
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AUDITORS’
REPORT

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
AND
AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
OF
SAJIDA FOUNDATION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

Main Office: Gulshan Pink City, Level: 7, Plot # 15, Road # 103, Gulshan, Dhaka-1212, Bangladesh;  +880-2-8881824-6,  aqasem@aqcbd.com
Chattogram Office: Faruk Mahal (3rd Floor), Plot # 93, Agrabad C/A, Chittagong-4100, Bangladesh;  +880-31-715656, 718066  aqasem@aqcbd.com
Tax & Company Affairs Office: Ivory Krishnachura (5th Floor), 3/1-E, Purana Platan, Dhaka-1000, Bangladesh; +880-2-9551103, 9584925  aqasem@aqcbd.com
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AQC
S I N C E

1 9 5 3

ECOVI S
BA N G L A D E S H
IIndependent Auditor’s Report
To the Members of Governing Body of SAJIDA Foundation
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion
We have audited the financial statements of SAJIDA Foundation (the entity), which comprise the statement of
financial position as at June 30, 2021, and the statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in fund
and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.
In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
the entity as at June 30, 2021, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs).
Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Entity in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board
for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code) together with the ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Bangladesh, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code and the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Bangladesh (ICAB)
Bye Laws. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.
Other Information
Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in
the annual report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.
Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.
In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Main Office: Gulshan Pink City, Level: 7, Plot # 15, Road # 103, Gulshan, Dhaka-1212, Bangladesh;  +880-2-8881824-6,  aqasem@aqcbd.com
Chattogram Office: Faruk Mahal (3rd Floor), Plot # 93, Agrabad C/A, Chittagong-4100, Bangladesh;  +880-31-715656, 718066  aqasem@aqcbd.com
Tax & Company Affairs Office: Ivory Krishnachura (5th Floor), 3/1-E, Purana Platan, Dhaka-1000, Bangladesh; +880-2-9551103, 9584925  aqasem@aqcbd.com
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ECOVI S
BA N G L A D E S H
Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with
IFRSs, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the entity’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the entity or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.
Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the entity’s financial reporting process.
Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:








Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity’s internal control.
Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.
Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the entity’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the entity to cease to continue as a going concern.

Main Office: Gulshan Pink City, Level: 7, Plot # 15, Road # 103, Gulshan, Dhaka-1212, Bangladesh;  +880-2-8881824-6,  aqasem@aqcbd.com
Chattogram Office: Faruk Mahal (3rd Floor), Plot # 93, Agrabad C/A, Chittagong-4100, Bangladesh;  +880-31-715656, 718066  aqasem@aqcbd.com
Tax & Company Affairs Office: Ivory Krishnachura (5th Floor), 3/1-E, Purana Platan, Dhaka-1000, Bangladesh; +880-2-9551103, 9584925  aqasem@aqcbd.com
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Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.
We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
A. Qasem & Co.
Chartered Accountants
RJSC Firm Registration No.: PF 1015

Ziaur Rahman Zia, FCA
Partner
Enrolment Number: 1259
DVC: 2111241259AS768635
Place: Dhaka
Date: 20 November 2021
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SAJIDA Foundation

(Registered in Bangladesh under the Societies Registration Act, 1860)
Statement of financial position
as at 30 June 2021

Amount in BDT
Assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Capital work in progress
Right-of-use assets
Deferred expenditure
Investment in related undertaking
Investment in securities and others

Notes

30 June 2021

30 June 2020

5
6
7
8
9
10

261,256,324
53,531,070
20,780,570
143,956,933
4,599,324
484,124,221

301,302,342
170,895,869
10,093,852
4,908,458
129,184,562
6,818,576
623,203,658

11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18

13,551,708,758
2,130,249,937
267,275,195
190,150,037
297,271,342
163,908,782
5,417,979
371,255,253
16,977,237,282

17,855,389,224
1,017,316,505
849,533,621
168,489,172
225,968,619
152,896,716
6,075,487
2,891,048,143
23,166,717,486

17,461,361,503

23,789,921,144

9
20

4,627,958,607
322,702,835
4,950,661,441

3,916,148,003
299,448,232
4,215,596,235

Non current liabilities
Lease liabilities
Term loans
Deferred income
Loan loss provision
Member savings deposits

7
21
22
23
24

Current liabilities
Lease liabilities
Short term loans
Loan loss provision
Member savings deposits
Grants received in advance
Other current liabilities

52,693,880
1,062,253,971
1,794,255
183,765,731
1,374,340,459
2,674,848,296

5,541,688
773,049,998
29,031,582
419,738,928
1,327,641,846
2,555,004,042

7
21
23
24
25
26

9,039,756
5,939,046,602
454,689,874
2,891,670,649
33,023,578
508,381,306
9,835,851,766

4,996,190
12,734,398,245
527,471,379
3,400,513,973
41,289,502
310,651,579
17,019,320,868

Total liabilities

12,510,700,062

19,574,324,910

Total funds and liabilities

17,461,361,503

23,789,921,144

Current assets
Loan to members
Short term investment
Grants and accounts receivables
Advance, deposits and prepayments
Advance income tax
Staff loans and advance
Inventories
Cash and cash equivalents
Total assets
Funds and liabilities
Funds
Capital fund
Reserve fund and others
Total funds

Footnotes:
1. Audit report in page 1 to 3.
2. The annexed notes form an integral part of this statement of financial position.
A. Qasem & Co.
Chartered Accountants
RJSC Firm Registration Number: PF1015

Ziaur Rahman Zia, FCA
Partner
Enrolment Number: 1259
DVC: 2111241259AS768635
Place: Dhaka
Date: 20 November 2021
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SAJIDA Foundation

(Registered in Bangladesh under the Societies Registration Act, 1860)
Statement of comprehensive income
For the year ended 30 June 2021

Amount in BDT
Notes
Particulars
Income
Income from microfinance
Donor grants
Income from investment
Income from bank interest (STD & FDR)
Income from hospital
Income from enterprises & training center
Income from community contribution
Total Income
Expenditure
Microfinance program
Social enterprises
Emergency response program-COVID-19
Hospital
Health awareness program
Wash program
Amrao manush program
Other development projects
Education program
SAJIDA Contribution to development programs
Emergency response program-COVID-19
Health awareness program
Wash program
Amrao manush program
Other development projects
Education program
Head office overhead expenses
Tax Expense
Total program expenditure
Net surplus/(deficit) for the year

27
28
29

30 June 2021

30 June 2020

3,412,086,103
449,659,723
607,368,444
106,371,529
120,013,181
2,673,389
20,470
4,698,192,839

4,017,641,972
277,781,165
455,249,006
67,486,764
126,778,174
12,822,217
206,523
4,957,965,821

2,685,364,118
225,178,619
170,215,107
92,557,594
70,273,536
47,827,067
13,807,515
174,381

3,528,383,873
3,674,580
100,908,121
206,834,886
65,508,551
58,318,061
32,007,321
24,469,404
1,876

61,509,882
41,605,810
1,495,527
5,350,070
23,341,709
348,000
147,028,258

74,773,471

76,299,949

47,330,772

3,662,377,143
1,035,815,696
4,698,192,839

4,142,210,916
815,754,905
4,957,965,821

Footnotes:
1. Audit report in page 1 to 3.
2. The annexed notes form an integral part of this statement of comprehensive income.
A. Qasem & Co.
Chartered Accountants
RJSC Firm Registration Number: PF1015

Ziaur Rahman Zia, FCA
Partner
Enrolment Number: 1259
DVC: 2111241259AS768635

Director (Finance & Accounts)
SAJIDA Foundation

Place: Dhaka
Date: 20 November 2021
Chief Executive Officer
SAJIDA Foundation

Chairperson, Governing Body
SAJIDA Foundation
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SAJIDA Foundation

(Registered in Bangladesh under the Societies Registration Act, 1860)
Statement of cash flows
for the year ended 30 June 2021

Amount in BDT

A. Cash flows from operating activities:
Excess of income over expenditure
Adjustment for non-cash items:
a) Operating profit before working capital changes
Increase (decrease) in reserve fund and others
Increase (decrease) in loan loss provision
Increase (decrease) in deferred income
Increase (decrease) in other current liabilities
Decrease (increase) in Short Term Investment
Decrease (increase) in advance, deposits & prepayments
Decrease (increase) in advance income tax
Decrease (increase) in Staff loans and Advance
Decrease (increase) in grants & accounts receivable
Decrease (increase) in inventories
b) Adjustment for changes in working capital
Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities
B. Cash flows from investing activities:
Acquisition of property, plant & equipment
Adjustment for leases
Sale of property, plant & equipment
Work in progress (Building)
Deferred expenditure
Investment in related undertaking
Investment in Securities and Others
Disbursement of loan to members
Net Cash Provided by/(used in) investing activities
C. Cash flows from financing activities:
Grant received during the year
Grant utilized during the year:
Operational expenditure
Investment of property, plant and equipment
Grants receivable realized during the year
Grants receivable
Received from member savings deposit
Term loan received during the year
Term loan repayment during the year
Short Term loan received during the year
Short Term loan repayment during the year
Inter project loan account
Net cash provided by/(used in) financing activities
Net Increase (decrease) (A+B+C)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the Year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Notes

30 June
2021
2020-2021

30 June2019-2020
2020

30

1,035,815,696
(361,351,795)
674,463,902

815,754,905
332,445,595
1,148,200,500

23,254,603
(235,973,196)
(27,237,327)
197,729,727
(1,112,933,432)
(21,660,865)
(71,302,723)
(11,012,066)
582,258,425
657,509
(676,219,346)
(1,755,444)

86,376,456
(34,041,648)
22,002,645
96,159,002
(357,266,605)
(79,687,978)
(47,330,772)
2,297,829
(571,930,500)
(506,438)
(883,928,010)
264,272,490

(72,669,243)
(8,202,566)
93,241,564
170,895,869
(15,872,112)
(14,772,371)
2,219,252
4,303,680,467
4,458,520,860

(88,469,030)
444,026
188,438,099
(11,370,539)
11,725,416
(61,483,502)
(96,054)
(2,875,157,028)
(2,835,968,612)

449,786,794

285,461,405

(448,759,283)
(149,801)
(13,199,993)
4,056,358
(462,144,711)
1,098,748,479
(809,544,506)
42,871,121,196
(49,666,472,839)
(6,976,558,305)

(286,201,387)
(24,914,525)
(9,252,884)
49,007,441
1,070,151,463
890,000,000
(827,666,666)
12,766,822,693
(9,105,246,020)
4,808,161,520

(2,519,792,890)
2,891,048,143
371,255,253

2,236,465,398
654,582,745
2,891,048,143

Footnotes:
1. Audit report in page 1 to 3.
2. The annexed notes form an integral part of this statement of cash flows.
A. Qasem & Co.
Chartered Accountants
RJSC Firm Registration Number: PF1015

Ziaur Rahman Zia, FCA
Partner
Enrolment Number: 1259
DVC: 2111241259AS768635
Place: Dhaka
Date: 20 November 2021
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SAJIDA Foundation

(Registered in Bangladesh under the Societies Registration Act, 1860)
Statement of changes in fund
as at 30 June 2021

Capital fund
Opening balance (01 July 2020)
Net surplus for the year
Less: Service charge waiver of microfinance
Add: Prior years adjustment, reversal of excess provision
Less: Transferred to MF reserve fund
Closing balance (30 June 2021)

Notes
0

Amount in BDT
30 June 2021
30 June 2020

3,916,148,003 3,127,462,485
1,035,815,696
815,754,905
(321,217,368)
45,891,371
31,334,933
(48,679,095)
(58,404,321)
4,627,958,607 3,916,148,003

Footnotes:
1. Audit report in page 1 to 3.
2. The annexed notes form an integral part of this statement of changes in fund.
A. Qasem & Co.
Chartered Accountants
RJSC Firm Registration Number: PF1015

Ziaur Rahman Zia, FCA
Partner
Enrolment Number: 1259
DVC: 2111241259AS768635
Place: Dhaka
Date: 20 November 2021

Director (Finance & Accounts)
SAJIDA Foundation

Chief Executive Officer
SAJIDA Foundation

Chairperson, Governing Body
SAJIDA Foundation
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SAJIDA Foundation

Notes to the financial statements
as at and for the year ended 30 June 2021
1.00

About the organization
In 1987, SAJIDA Foundation (“SAJIDA”) started as private family-funded charity with a small garage school in
SAJIDA’s founder’s residence. By 1993, the organization evolved into a formal institution offering micro-credit to
poor urban women in old Dhaka.
SAJIDA Foundation is a reputed national development organization, which has been working on reducing poverty
and improving the livelihood of the poor since 1993. The organization has implemented many major development
activities including Microfinance, Micro-insurance, Health, Education and oather specialized programs, specially
designed for the poor. Currently SAJIDA working across 26 districts, covering a population of over 6.0 million people
transforming the quality of their lives with positive impact. SAJIDA Foundation is registered under the Registrar of
Joint Stock Companies and Farms, NGO Affairs Bureau and Micro Credit Regulatory Authority of Bangladesh.
SAJIDA owns 51% shares of Renata Limited. Dividend earning from Renata Limited constitutes a great part of
SAJIDA’s financial sustainability. SAJIDA also works with a consortium of national and international donors.

2.00

Corporate Information of SAJIDA Foundation
Legal form of the entity

SAJIDA Foundation is a non-government, non-profit voluntary organization
registered with –
1. Registrar of Joint Stock Companies registration no. S1403(37)/91 dated
08/05/1991.
2. NGO Affairs Bureau registration no. 984 dated 31/10/1995.
3. Micro credit Regulatory Authority registration no.00251-00155(Ka)-00155, dated
16/03/2008.

Country of incorporation
and domicile of the entity

Bangladesh

Address of the registered
office

OTOBI Center, 5th floor, plot 12, Block CWS(C), Gulshan South Avenue, Dhaka 1212,
Bangladesh

The nature of the entity’s
operations and its
principal activities

Microfinance Program, Nirapotta, Samriddhi, Agriculture & Livestock, Hospital,
Malaria Control Program, Adhunika Women’s Centre, Access to WASH, Wash4Urban
Poor, Safe Water Supply, Wash Crisis, Amrao Manush Project, LUEP, PROSHOMON,
ILOD, SNV Project, SAJIDA Training Center, Rohingya and COVID-19 Response
Program, BAT Mental Health, Urban Extreme Poor.

3.00

Basis of preparation of financial statements

3.01

Basis of accounting and measurement
SAJIDA prepares its financial statements on a going concern basis, under the historical cost convention in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS). SAJIDA follows the accrual basis of accounting
(except for donation on cash basis). The investment in subsidiaries is accounted in accordance with IAS 27 Separate
Financial Statements in these separate financial statements as described under note 4.12.
SAJIDA Foundation processes its accounting data in a systematic way ensuring required control. It receives
donations and funds from different sources through bank account (mother account). Then funds are transferred to
the related programs and branch accounts. Transactions are recorded in the systems on daily basis and vouchers,
ledgers, trial balance and financial statements are produced on periodical basis. Head office general fund accounts
and other project accounts are also maintained in software system.

3.02

Use of estimates and judgments
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management to make judgments,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets,
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liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates. Estimates and underlying
assumptions are reviewed on an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in
which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected.
Judgements
In the process of applying the entity’s accounting policies, management has made the following judgements, which
have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements:


Determining the lease term of contracts – SAJIDA as lessee

The management determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any periods
covered by an option to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to be exercised, or any periods covered by an
option to terminate the lease, if it is reasonably certain not to be exercised.
Estimates and assumptions
The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date,
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year, are described below:


Provision for expected credit losses (loan loss provision)

The management uses a provision matrix as described under note 4.09 to calculate the loan loss provision. The
provision rates are based on days past due.


Leases - Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The management cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in the lease, therefore, it uses its incremental
borrowing rate (IBR) to measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that the entity would have to pay to
borrow over a similar term, and with a similar security, the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to
the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment. The IBR therefore reflects what the entity ‘would have to
pay’, which requires estimation. Further details on leases are disclosed in Note 4.06.
3.03

Reporting period
The financial period of the SAJIDA Foundation covers one-year period from 01 July 2020 to 30 June 2021.

3.04

Comparative information and rearrangement thereof
Comparative information has been disclosed in respect of the one-year period from 01 July 2019 to 30 June 2020
for all numeric information in the financial statements and also the narrative and descriptive information where it
is relevant for understanding of the current year's financial statements.
Figures for the period ended on 30 June 2020 have been rearranged wherever considered necessary to ensure
comparability with the current period.

3.05

Going concern
Management has assessed SAJIDA’s ability to continue as a going concern and is satisfied that SAJIDA has access
to resources to continue in business for the foreseeable future. Furthermore, management is not aware of any
material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt upon the SAJIDA’s ability to continue as a going concern.
Therefore, the financial statements continue to be prepared on the going concern basis.

3.06

Currencies
The financial statements are presented in Bangladeshi Taka (BDT) which is SAJIDA’s functional currency. All financial
information presented in Bangladesh Taka (BDT) has been rounded off to the nearest Taka.

3.07

Offsetting
The organization reports separately both assets and liabilities, and income and expenses, unless required by an
applicable accounting standard or offsetting reflects the substance of the transaction and such offsetting is
permitted by applicable accounting standard.
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3.08

Current versus non-current classification
The entity presents assets and liabilities in statement of financial position based on current/non-current
classification. An asset is current when it is:
i.
ii.
iii.
iv.

expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle, or
expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period, or
held primarily for the purpose of trading, or
cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.
A liability is current when it is:
i.
ii.
iii.
iv.

expected to be settled in normal operating cycle, or
due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or
held primarily for the purpose of trading, or
there is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the
reporting period.

The entity classifies all other liabilities as non-current.
3.09

Standards issued but not yet effective
The new and amended standards and interpretations that are issued, but not yet effective, up to the date of
issuance of the entity’s financial statements are disclosed below. The entity intends to adopt these new and
amended standards and interpretations, if applicable, when they become effective.
The following amended standards and interpretations are not expected to have a significant impact on the entity’s
financial statements.
- Amendments to References to Conceptual Framework in IFRS Standards,
- IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts,
- Definition of Material (Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8),
- Definition of a Business (Amendments to IFRS 3).

4.00

Summary of significant accounting policies
The significant accounting policies followed in the preparation and presentation of these financial statements are
summarized below:

4.01

Revenue recognition
IFRS 15 supersedes IAS 11 Construction Contracts, IAS 18 Revenue and Related Interpretations and it applies to all
revenue arising from contracts with customers, unless those contracts are in the scope of other standards. The
new standard establishes a five-step model to account for revenue arising from contracts with customers. Under
IFRS 15, revenue is recognized at an amount that reflects the consideration to which an entity expects to be
entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services to a customer. The standard requires entities to exercise
judgement, taking into consideration all of the relevant facts and circumstances when applying each step of the
model to contracts with their customers. The standard also specifies the accounting for the incremental costs of
obtaining a contract and the costs directly related to fulfilling a contract.
Most of the revenue items of SAJIDA are out-of-scope as these are subject to other standards like IFRS 9.
Recognition of revenue for the remaining revenue items, which are in scope for IFRS 15, does not change when the
five-step model is applied. Based on the assessment made, implementation of this standard has minimal impact
on the financial statements.
The accounting policies relating to the recognition of revenue under IFRS 9 is presented below. The following
specific recognition criteria is met before revenue is recognized:
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Service charge on loans
In accordance with IFRS 9, income is recognized in the statement of comprehensive income based on the effective
interest rate method. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
or receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period to the net
carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, SAJIDA
estimates cash flows considering all contractual terms of the financial instrument. The calculation includes all
amounts paid or received between parties to the contract that are an integral part of the effective interest rate of a
financial instrument including transaction costs, and all other premiums or discounts.
Rebate on service charge
Special rebate is given to beneficiaries on payment of due installments. During the period of first waive and
lockdown of COVID 19, the installment realization was halted from March 26, 2020 to May 14, 2020. The interest
was calculated on the halted dues of this period. Considering the insufficiency of liquidity in hands of borrowers and
overall situation, Sajida management decided to render the waiver of additional interest for these 50 days period
and decision was implemented accordingly.
Interest on saving deposits
Interests on saving accounts and fixed deposits are recognized as the interest is accrued unless collectability is in
doubt.
Income from Investment
Income from investment is recognized when SAJIDA's right to receive the payment is established. This income from
investment is shown separately in the note 29 of the financial statements.
Other income
All other incomes are recognized when SAJIDA's right to receive such income has been reasonably determined and
all conditions precedent is satisfied.
Revenue from different segments/activities are separately presented in Annexure C.
4.02

Expenses
Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs are interest and other costs that SAJIDA incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.
Borrowing costs are recognized as an expense in the period in which they are incurred in accordance with IAS 23,
except where such costs are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset,
in which case these costs are capitalized as part of the cost of that asset. Qualifying assets are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale.
Interest paid on savings of beneficiaries
Interest paid on savings is accounted for on accrual basis and shown as expenses in the related period.
Program expenses
Program related expenses arise from goods and services being distributed to beneficiaries in accordance with the
program objectives and activities.
No recurrent expenditure has been charged to the fund account.

4.03

Cost allocation policy between Microfinance and Development Program
SAJIDA uses an allocation methodology and ensures each project or program is charged with its fair share of shared
costs, and to provide compliance with rules and regulations. Expenses of the management employees are booked
based on involvement of the individual in respective project or program. Direct expenses of the support
departments are booked based on their activities in respective projects or programs. Utility bills and other expenses
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are charged to the projects or programs based on the actual space utilization or relevant head count by respective
projects or programs or as per management guidance.
4.04

Property, plant and equipment
Recognition
All items of property, plant and equipment are initially recorded at cost in accordance with IAS 16. The cost of an
item of property, plant and equipment is recognized as an asset if, and only if all the following conditions are met:




It is probable that future economic benefits will flow to Sajida Foundation,
The cost of the item can be measured reliably,
It is expected to be used for more than one year.

Depreciation
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is charged for on a
straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives at the following annual rates. Provided that when the
depreciated value of an item becomes nil, SAJIDA’s policy is to assign Tk.1 value for recognition of the asset.
Group of PPE
Building
Furniture & fixtures
Equipment -IT and Medical
Equipment
Vehicles
Motorcycles
Software

Annual depreciation rate (%)
2.5 to 5
10
33.33
15
15
15
33.33

Subsequent recognition
The cost of replacing part of an item of property or equipment is recognized in the carrying amount of the item, if it
is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the part will flow to the organization and its cost
reliably measured. The cost of the day to day servicing of the property, plant & equipment is recognized in the
statement of income and expenditure as incurred expenditure.
Sale of property, plant and equipment
Sale price of property, plant and equipment are determined based on fair value of the assets. Gain or losses on sale
of property, plant and equipment are recognized in the statement of income and expenditure incurred as per
provision of “IAS-16, property, plant and equipment.”
4.05

Capital work-in-progress
Property, plant and equipment under construction/acquisition have been accounted for as capital
work-in-progress until construction/acquisition is completed. Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost and not
depreciated. Depreciation on capital work-in-progress commences when the assets are ready for their intended
use.

4.06

Leases
IFRS 16 is applied using the modified retrospective approach and therefore the comparative information has not
been restated and continues to be reported under IAS 17 and IFRIC 4.
SAJIDA Foundation as a lessee
SAJIDA Foundation recognizes a right of use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date. The right
of use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any
lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate
of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is
located, less any lease incentives received.
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The right of use asset is depreciated using the straight-line methods from the commencement date to the earlier
of the end of the useful life of the right of use asset or the end of the lease term. In addition, the right of use asset
is periodically reduced by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain remeasurements of the lease liability.
The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date, discounted using incremental borrowing rate. SAJIDA Foundation presents right of use
assets and lease liabilities as separate captions in the statement of financial position.
The lease contracts for which the lease term ends within 12 months as of the date of initial application, and lease
contracts for which the underlying asset is of low value, SAJIDA elected to use the exemptions proposed by the
standard.
4.07

Loan to beneficiaries
SAJIDA's activities include providing micro credit to group and individual members without collateral, on service
charge basis under various programs and recognize this as financial instrument in accordance with IFRS 09.
SAJIDA's core micro credit program is implemented through Group Model, whereby members form a group of five,
and subsequently form Center composed of roughly six groups. Center meetings are held each week/ month by
field/ credit officers (F/CO). At such meetings, members can submit loan application, make loan repayment and
deposit savings. Target clients are identified on the basis of sex, age and household income, after which interested
persons are invited for group discussion regarding SAJIDA's micro credit products and regulations.
This represents various loans outstanding with the clients in the following categories:
Suchona-Jagoron Loan
This is to allow rural and urban people to finance their economic activities. Jagoron Loans are working capital loans
given to poor and disadvantaged households. Jagoron ranges from Tk. 20,000 up to Tk. 75,000 are given for refund
within one year and service charge 24% (declining rate) per year, grace period is 15 days.
Suchona-Pragrosor Loan
This category of loan allows members to borrow from BDT 75,000 to BDT 500,000 which repaid within 12-18
months. All persons availing the Pragroshor loan are eligible for the Agrosor or Special Loan ifa. They had maintained all stipulations within the scope of the loan and had paid their loan premiums in a timely
fashion
b. They had availed the Pragrosor loan at least twice
Members of other microfinance organizations who have a history of following rules and regulations or previous
members of SAJIDA Foundation with good records are eligible to avail this loan as well. The member must present
his/ her passbook/ a copy of subsidiary ledger/ transaction record/ and any other relevant documentation in order
to avail such loan. The member must also be able to prove that s/he has a minimum of a year’s experience in the
area which they would use the loan. These loans have a declining service charge of 24%.
Agrosor Loan (Microenterprise)
Loans falling within the scope of Agrosor includes Agrosor, Migration, Remittance and are ranged within Tk.
1,00,000 and Tk. 10,00,000. These loans must be repaid within one of four payment periods: 12/15/18/24 months
and have a declining service charge of 19%-24%. Agrosor Loans can be taken by both group and individual members.
However, the Migration, Remittance or Service Holder Welfare Loans are not available for groups.
Sonali Loans
These loans can fall within the scope of any of the prior mentioned loans only for individual member with the
exception that loans falling within this category exceed Tk. 10,00,000 and would need to be repaid within
12/15/18/21/24/33/36 months. Loans falling within the scope of the Agrosor and Pragrosor loans must have a
record of having taken loans within the scope of those loans at least twice previously. All investments and
businesses undertaken with this loan within 12-36 months and development of fixed assets such as building/
repairing homes, buying land, taking mortgages etc. should be completed within 36 months. It is proposed that it
would be better to take loans for periods less than 18 months on investments that do not involve the development
of fixed assets. The Migration/ Remittance or Service holder welfare loans are not available for groups. These loans
have a declining service charge up-to 20%.
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Agriculture Loan
This loan is provided to marginalized farmers at a declining service charge of 19% with the view to support cereal
crop cultivation, seasonal farming, dairy or cattle rearing, fish culture, the purchase of agricultural machineries or
any agriculture related activities. The loan ceiling from BDT 1,00,000 to BDT 2,00,000, can be taken individually or
as group for 12 months duration. Repayment is through monthly instalments.
KGF-Sufolon Loan
This loan is exclusive for agriculture, enterprise, livestock etc. activities and is designated to increase the farm and
business activities. The seasonal loan also enhances “Social Food Security Net” of the households. Seasonal loan
ranges up to Tk. 3,00,000 are given for Agri Production. Repayment within 12 months and service charge 24%
(declining rate) per year.
Small and Marginal Sized Farmers Agricultural Productivity Improvement and Diversification Financing Project
(SMAP)
This loan is exclusive for agricultural productivity and diversity of the small and marginal farmers through providing
agricultural loan and technical support service. This loan is ranges from Tk. 5,000 to Tk. 2,00,000. Repayment
within 12 months and service charge 19% (declining rate) per year.
Ultra-Poor Loan (Buniad)
This product specifically targets the ultra-poor who have no particular source of income or livelihood. Any man or
woman identified as ultra-poor on the basis of these criteria can avail this loan at declining service charge 15%. This
Loan is ranges from Tk. 5,000 to Tk. 60,000 with repayment through weekly or monthly instalments.
Water and Sanitation Loan
SAJIDA offers water and sanitation loan for improved access to water and sanitation. The loan amount varies
between Tk. 5,000 to Tk. 1,50,000 with declining service charge of 24%. Borrowers are encouraged to partially
invest in the cost of installing or repairing facilities with their own funds. This loan is eligible for both groups and
individuals.
Suchona-Remittance loan
This loan is exclusively disbursed to migrant people are staying abroad. The Remittance loan ranges Tk. 150,000 to
Tk. 5,00,000. Repayment within 1-2 year and service charge 24% (declining rate) per year.
4.08

Impairment of Financial Assets
The previous ‘incurred loss’ model under IAS 39 delayed the recognition of credit losses until there was a trigger
event which resulted in a mismatch in timing of the recognition of interest income and charge of credit loss of a
particular financial instrument. IFRS 9 adopts an expected loss model for impairment of financial assets which
provides users of financial statements with more useful information about an entity’s expected credit losses on
financial instruments. The model requires an entity to recognize expected credit losses (‘ECL’) at all times and to
update the amount of expected credit losses recognized at each reporting date to reflect changes in the credit risk
of financial instruments.
Measurement of expected credit loss/loan loss provision
IFRS 9 does not prescribe measurement methods. Also, an entity may use various sources of data that may be
internal (entity-specific) and external. For the measurement of ECL, IFRS 9 distinguishes between three
impairment stages. All loans need to be allocated to one of these stages. Stage 1 loans are loans where since
inception no significant increase in credit risk occurred (12M ECL), while stage 2 loans are those loans where since
inception credit risk has significantly increased (lifetime ECL). Stage 3 loans are so-called credit-impaired loans.
Approach taken by SAJIDA
SAJIDA has calculated ECL for its loan portfolios following the approach described in note 4.09.

4.09

Loan loss provision
SAJIDA reviews its non-performing loans at every month end to assess the adequacy of the allowance for credit
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loss as recorded in the statement of comprehensive income. Due to the nature of the business, i.e. micro credit to
low-income clients, the loan portfolio consists of a very high number of individual customers with a relatively low
number of individual outstanding exposures.
SAJIDA uses a provisioning methodology as prescribed by the regulator. SAJIDA records a provision for credit loss
based on a percentage of outstanding loans with percentages increasing as loans are outstanding for a longer
period. At the end of every month, SAJIDA calculates required provision for loan loss based on the loan classification
and provisioning methodology which is shown below and any adjustment, if required, are made and accounted for
in the financial statements:
Loan classification
Regular

Days in arrears
Current (no arrears)

Provision required (%)
1

Watchful

1 - 30

5

Sub-standard

31 - 180

25

Doubtful
Bad

181 - 365
Over 365

75
100

Loans written off
The write-off of loans, if necessary, are charged against the provision for loan losses. Loans within their maturity
period are classified as "regular loan”. Loan which remains outstanding after their maturity period are classified as
per prescribed methodology. Generally, loans are written off in every quarter. Any collections realized from loans
previously written off are credited to the statement of income and expenditure. Loan loss provision and expenses
regarding the loan losses are shown separately in the financial statement.
It is to be mentioned here that on 22 March 2020, the Microfinance Regulatory Authority issued a circular (letter
number 53) whereby the authority has restricted the classification of loans from 01 January 2020 to 30 June 2020.
On 23 June 2020, the authority extended the restriction up to 30 September 2020 (letter number 58) and on 23
December 2020, the authority further 2nd time extended the restriction up to 31 December 2020 (letter number
59) and 3rd time extended the restriction up to 30 June 2021 (letter number 62). However, the restriction does not
apply for the borrowers who have repaid their dues during this period under the circulars.
4.10

Policy on savings collection
There are three types of member’s savings:




Compulsory Savings
Voluntary Savings (Samriddhi)
Voluntary Savings (Astha)

Compulsory savings
SAJIDA's Microfinance Program has a mandatory savings provision, with a view to facilitating and encouraging
savings by Center Members/ Individual Member. The interest rate on mandatory savings is 6%. Savings amounts
are decided at the center level with a minimum weekly savings requirement of Tk. 50. Each center members
deposits a minimum of Tk. 50 in a weekly meeting, 200-500 in a monthly meeting. During the first loan period
members are unable to withdraw savings. For consecutive loans members are eligible to withdrawal savings as
long as they maintain a savings balance of 7.50%-10.00% of the loan amount. This savings is to be mentioned in the
pass book, subsidiary ledger, general ledger individually/separately.
While savings differ from member to member, the minimum agreed upon saving must be Tk. 50 a month. For the
first loan period, it is mandatory for the client to retain 2% of the total loan amount in savings and s/he is unable to
withdraw the saving. For those who had already availed loans, they are able to draw from the savings as long as
they maintain a balance of 2 to 10% of the total disbursed loan amount regarding the category of product such as
Suchana, bibortan and Sonali.
The savings can be withdrawn if following incidents happen:
1. Death of the member
2. Disabilities of the member by accident
3. Death of principal earning member of the family
4. Suffering from incurable diseases
5. Marriage of daughter etc.
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The entire amount of savings deposits of a center member or individual will be refunded when the member retires
or is terminated from membership.
Voluntary Savings (Samriddhi)
SAJIDA implemented an optional savings program called Samriddhi. The interest on this program is 7% annually,
compounded monthly. The special savings account is like a current account. Beneficiaries can save monthly one
time or withdraw the amount on demand. This savings stands for those who deposit voluntarily beyond their
regular savings. The minimum depositing amount of this fund is Tk. 200 and maximum depositing amount is Tk.
10,000. This special savings is to be mentioned in the pass book, subsidiary ledger and general ledger individually.
While refunding the special savings the beneficiaries have to come to office and complete the required process for
withdrawal.
Voluntary Savings (Astha)
SAJIDA offers another voluntary fixed deposit savings product called Astha Tk. 10,000 minimum to 10,00,000. The
interest rate of Astha savings is min 6%-8.50%. There is another sub category of this loan as Astha Monthly Deposit
Scheme for 3 and 5 years with a monthly payment of Tk. 200 to 20,000
Interest on saving deposits is separately presented in the financial statement.
4.11

Grants/Donation accounting
Grants are recognized as income in accordance with International Accounting Standard (IAS) 20, "Accounting for
Government Grants and Disclosure of Government Assistance", over the periods necessary to match them with the
corresponding costs as incurred.
Income from donor grants is recognized when conditions on which they depend have been met. Substantially,
SAJIDA’s donor grants are for the funding of projects and programs, and for these grants, income is recognized to
equate the expenditure incurred on projects and programs. For donor grants which involve funding for fixed assets,
grant income is recognized as the amount equivalent to depreciation expenses charged on the fixed assets
concerned. All donor grants received are initially recorded at fair value as liabilities in Grants Received in Advance
Account. For grants utilized to purchase fixed assets, the donor grants are transferred to deferred income accounts
whilst for grants utilized to reimburse program-related expenditure, the amounts are recognized as income.
Income recognition of such grants follows that of cash-based donor grants and would thus depend on whether the
grants are to be utilized for the purchase of fixed assets or spent as program-related expenditure. For ongoing
projects and programs, any expenditure yet to be funded but for which funding has been agreed upon at the end of
the reporting period is recognized as grant receivable.
The amount of donation received from the donors during the period for the projects are separately presented in
Annexure D.

4.12

Investment in subsidiaries
In the separate financial statements, in accordance with IAS 27 Separate Financial Statements, investment in
subsidiaries is accounted for at cost. No gain or loss is recognized in respect of fair value of such investments.
SAJIDA applied the same accounting policy for its all subsidiaries.
Investment in Psychological Health and Wellness Center Ltd. (PHWC)
SAJIDA Foundation established a company in the name of “Psychological Health and Wellness Center Limited” in
the year 2017. The authorized share capital of the company is Tk. 30,000,000 (three crores only) divided in to
300,000 (three lacs only) ordinary shares of Tk. 100 (one hundred only) each. The paid-up capital of the company is
Tk. 49,01,900 divided in to 49,019 shares of Tk. 100 each. SAJIDA holds 25,000 shares @ Tk.100 each which is 51%
of total share capital. The investment was recognized at cost.
An Agreement signed between SAJIDA and PHWC Ltd. Dated on 19th November, 2019 SAJIDA Foundation has
deposited BDT. 1 crore as advance share money deposit in PHWC for which 100,000 lac shares will be allocated to
SAJIDA Foundation. To maintain the shareholding ratio Dr. Ashique Selim and Onward Consultation Services Ltd.
Will be allocated with 64,706 & 31,373 new shares respectively.
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Investment in Renata Limited
SAJIDA Foundation purchased 2,155,390 shares of Tk. 10 each of Renata Limited from Pfizer Corporation for
Tk. 32,546,389 (Tk. 15.10 per share) vide agreement between Pfizer Corporation and SAJIDA Foundation dated 07
July 1993. As at 30 June 2021 SAJIDA Foundation holds total 49,698,145 shares including 47,542,755 bonus
shares received to date. Market value of such shares on 30th June 2021 is Tk. 65,586,637,865 (Tk. 1,319.70 per
share). SAJIDA owns 51% share of Renata Limited. The investment was recognized at cost.
Investment in Inner Circle Limited
The Authorized Share Capital of the Company Tk. 1,00,00,000 (one crore) divided in to 1,00,000 (one lac) ordinary
shares of Tk. 100 (one hundred) each. The Paid-up Capital of the Company Tk. 1,000,000 divided in to 10,000 shares
of Tk. 100 each. SAJIDA Foundation purchased 10,000 shares @ Tk.100 each. The investment was recognized at cost.
Till June 2020, in total SAJIDA Foundation has invested an amount of 45,685,297 in the form of equity & loan.
During this 2020-21 period a loan amount of BDT. 2,41,25,800 (two forty-one twenty-five eight hundred) is
converted into equity divided into 2,41,258 (two lacs forty-one thousand two hundred fifty-eight) ordinary shares
and allocated to SAJIDA Foundation.
Investment in Home and Community Care Limited (HCCL)
The Authorized Share Capital of the Company Tk. 1,00,00,000 (one crore) divided in to 1,00,000 (one lac) ordinary
shares of Tk. 100 (one hundred) each. The Paid-up Capital of the Company Tk. 1,000,000 divided in to 10,000
shares of Tk. 100 each. SAJIDA Foundation purchased 10,000 shares @ Tk. 100 each. The investment was
recognized at cost.
4.13

Investment in FDR and interest income recognition
Interest earned on investment in Fixed Deposit Receipts (FDR) before maturity date is recognized as income on
accrual basis. When FDR reached in maturity date, Investment in FDRs debited, and receivable interest is credited.

4.14

Investments in securities
Investments in securities are accounted for under IFRS 9 as financial assets held for trading. As per IFRS 9, such
financial assets are accounted for at fair value and gain/loss is accounted through statement of comprehensive
income.

4.15

Inventories
Retail inventories are stated at cost in accordance with IAS 02. The cost of inventories includes expenditure
incurred in acquiring the inventories and bringing them to their existing location and condition. Provision is made
for obsolete or slow-moving items, to reduce their carrying amounts to net realizable value. Inventories are
measured at the lower of cost and net realizable value. The cost of inventories comprised all cost of purchase, cost
of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.
Expenditure is recognized at the moment when such inventory is delivered or consumed; obsolete inventories are
written off. In case of write off of inventories; such amount is recognized as an expense in the period.

4.16

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances and call deposits with maturity of three months or less that are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in their fair value and are used by the entity in the management of its
short-term commitments.
Statement of cash flows
Statement of cash flows has been prepared in accordance with the International Accounting Standard IAS-7, under
indirect method.

4.17

Employee benefits
SAJIDA maintains both defined contribution plan and defined benefit plan for its eligible permanent employees. The
eligibility is determined according to the terms and conditions set forth in the respective trust deeds and rules.

I 145

Defined contribution plan (employees’ provident fund)
SAJIDA maintains recognized contributory provident fund for its eligible permanent employees. The fund is
operated by the Board of Trustee. All confirmed employees are contributing 10% of their basic salary as subscription
of the fund. SAJIDA also contributes equal amount of the employees' contribution to the fund each month. Interest
earned from the investment is credited to the employees' accounts on a yearly basis and this fund is audited every
year by a Chartered Accountants Firm.
Defined benefit plan (employees’ gratuity fund)
SAJIDA makes provision for an Employee Gratuity fund, on the basis of two months basic salary for each completed
year in employment (based on basic salary of the last month). Gratuity is disbursed upon retirement or resignation
of employees provided the employee has completed three years’ service at the rate of one month's basic salary last
drawn for each completed year of service. After the employee has completed Seven years uninterrupted service the
gratuity is disbursed at the rate of one and half month basic salary for each completed year, based on the final
salary drawn. After the employee has completed Ten years uninterrupted service the gratuity is disbursed at the
rate of two-month basic salary for each completed year, based on the final salary drawn.
Short-term employee benefits
Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the related
service is provided. A provision is recognized for the amount of annual leave encashment based on the latest basic
salary.
Staff Group Insurance
As part of SAJIDA’s continuous and dedicated efforts to prioritize the health and wellbeing of SAJIDA’s employees,
the Foundation has introduced a Life and Health Insurance for all full-time staff effective from 1st May 2019.
SAJIDA Foundation signed an agreement with Pragati Life Insurance in May 2019. This inclusive insurance package
will not only provide health and life insurance for employees, but also cover their immediate family members. The
family will be able to avail financial benefits of up to BDT 400,000 per year (Taka 100,000 per each family member)
if receiving medical services from a licensed hospital. The insurance ensures death coverage in this manner - 50
monthly salaries in case of natural causes of death and 100 monthly salaries in case of accidental death.
4.18

Financial instruments other than loan to members and members’ saving deposits
Financial instruments are recognized in accordance with IFRS 09 in the statement of financial position when SAJIDA
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
Receivables
Receivables are carried at anticipated realizable values. Bad debts are written off when identified and an estimate
is made for doubtful debts based on a review of all outstanding amounts as at the balance sheet date.
Payables
Payables are stated at cost which is the fair value of the consideration to be paid in the future for goods and
services received.
Interest-bearing borrowings
Interest-bearing bank loans, overdrafts and securitized financing are recorded at the amount of proceeds received,
net of transactions costs. For borrowings made specifically for the purpose of acquiring a qualifying asset, the
amount of borrowing costs eligible for capitalization is the actual borrowing costs incurred on that borrowing
during the period less any investment income on the temporary investments of funds drawdown from that
borrowing facility. All borrowing costs are recognized as per policy described in note 4.02.
The carrying values of these financial instruments approximate their fair values due to their short-term maturities.

4.19

Taxation
Current tax
Under the Income Tax Ordinance (ITO), 1984 as amended, SAJIDA is subject to taxation for some of its enterprise
incomes and dividend incomes. As per 6th Schedule, Part-A, para-1A of ITO 1984, Income from Microfinance
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activities is tax exempted. SAJIDA submits its return for tax for the organization SAJIDA as a whole and TIN Number
is 829491386477/Circle 101 (Companies) Dhaka.
Deferred tax
Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates
that are expected to be applied to the temporary differences when they are reversed, based on the laws that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date. As per 6th Schedule, Part-A, para-1A of ITO 1984,
Income from Microfinance activities is tax exempted. Under the said law, SAJIDA Foundation is liable for tax on
interest on saving instruments and dividend income which are calculated on gross receipts not on profit. Hence,
there is no temporary difference between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting
purposes and the carrying amounts used for taxation purposes. Accordingly, deferred tax is not required to
recognize under IAS 12 as at the reporting date.
Indirect tax
Under Value Added Tax and Supplementary Duty Act, 2012, SAJIDA obtained a central registration on 12 August
2018 vide BIN 001335028. SAJIDA’s microfinance program and social development program are exempted from
Value Added Tax and Supplementary Duty.
4.20

Accruals, provision and contingencies
Accruals
Accruals are liabilities to pay for goods or services that have been received or supplied but have not been paid,
invoiced or formally agreed with the supplier, including amounts due to employees. Accruals are reported as part of
trade payables and others.
Provisions
Provisions for liabilities are recognized in accordance with IAS 37 when SAJIDA has a present obligation as a result
of a past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate of the amount can be made. Provisions are reviewed at each balance
sheet date and adjusted to reflect the best current estimate. Where the effect of the time value of money is
material, the amount of a provision is the present value of the expenditure expected to be required to settle the
obligation.
Contingencies
A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed
only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of
the company; or a present obligation that arises from past events but is not recognized because it is not probable
that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation; or the amount
of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.
A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the
company. We recognize any amount as an asset only if recovery of that amount is virtually certain.
Contingent liabilities and assets are not recognized in the statement of financial position of the company. These are
disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. The organization had no contingent liability or contingent asset
as of the reporting date.

4.21

Capital commitment
There was no capital commitment as at the reporting date.

4.22

Capital management
For the purpose of the SAJIDA’s capital management, capital includes capital fund, reserve fund and others. The
primary objective of the SAJIDA’s capital management is to maximize the value for the beneficiaries. No changes
have been made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the year ended 30 June 2021.
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4.23

Financial instruments risk management objectives and policies
SAJIDA’s principal financial liabilities comprise trade and other payables. The main purpose of these financial
liabilities is to finance the operations. SAJIDA’s principal financial assets include trade receivables, loan to members
and cash and short-term deposits that derive directly from its operations. SAJIDA is exposed to market risk, credit
risk and liquidity risk. SAJIDA’s senior management oversees the management of these risks.
Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and other price
risk, such as equity price risk and commodity risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk include loan to
members, term loans (borrowings), saving deposits, debt and equity investments.
Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in market interest rate. Exposure to fair value movement relates to fixed rate instruments subject to fair
value accounting and exposure to cash flow fluctuation relates to variable rate instruments. SAJIDA is primarily
exposed to cash flow fluctuation arising from variable rate borrowings. The objective of interest rate risk
management for SAJIDA is to reduce financial cost and ensure predictability.
Foreign currency risk
SAJIDA’s exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the commitments by the
donor for donation/grants which are recognized as income on cash basis. Foreign currency risk is not hedged.
Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer
contract, leading to a financial loss. SAJIDA is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily loan to
members) and from its financing activities, including deposits with banks and financial institutions. Information
about the credit risk exposure on loan to members using a provision matrix is set out in Note 4.09. Carrying amount
represents the maximum exposure to credit risk.
Liquidity risk
SAJIDA monitors its risk of a shortage of funds using a liquidity forecast. SAJIDA’s objective is to maintain continuity
of funding through efficient use of working capital. SAJIDA assessed the concentration of risk with respect to
financing and concluded it to be low.

4.24

Related party transactions
During the period from 01 July 2020 to 30 June 2021, SAJIDA entered into a number of transactions with related
parties in the normal course of business. The names of the significant related parties, nature of these transactions
and amounts are set out below in accordance with the provisions of IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures. Nature of
relationship and significance of the amounts have been considered in providing this disclosure.

4.25

Name of related parties

Nature

Nature of transactions

Renata Limited
PHWC Limited
Inner Circle Limited
HCC Limited

Subsidiary
Subsidiary
Subsidiary
Subsidiary

Sale of land
Investments
Investments
Investments

2020-2021
BDT (000)
177,522
5,000
9,772

2019-2020
BDT (000)
190,000
9,840
46,685
4,958

Events after the reporting period
Amounts recognized in the financial statements are adjusted for events after the reporting period that provide
evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the reporting period. There have been no material events after the
reporting date that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting date that require disclosure or
adjustment as at the reporting date in accordance with IAS 10.
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Authorization for issue

Notes

Amount in BDT
30 June 2021
30 June 2020

These financial statements have been authorized for issue by the Governing Body of the organization on 28th
November 2021.
4.26

Prevention of Money Laundering and Terrorist Financing
SAJIDA Foundation fully comply the guidelines of Prevention of Money Laundering and Terrorist Financing for all the
transactions. SAJIDA Foundation makes payment through bank transfer and A/C payee cheque. Any transfer above
taka one lac is made through banking channel. SAJIDA has a Money Laundering policy. As per policy “Chief AML/CFT
Compliance Officer (CAMLCO)” and Branch AML/CFT Compliance Officer BAMLCO regularly monitor the
transactions and ensure all transactions are transacted and recorded properly.

4.27

Accounting considerations of the coronavirus pandemic (COVID-19)
Bangladesh reported its first confirmed COVID-19 case on 08 March 2020. Subsequently the government declared
a general holiday for two months from 25 March 2020. On 22 March 2020, the Microfinance Regulatory Authority
issued a circular (letter number 53) whereby the authority has restricted the classification of loans from 01 January
2020 to 30 June 2020. On 23 June 2020, the authority extended the restriction up to 30 September 2020 (letter
number 58) and on 23 December 2020, the authority further 2nd time extended the restriction up to 31 December
2020 (letter number 59) and 3rd time extended the restriction up to 30 June 2021 (letter number 62). However, the
restriction does not apply for the borrowers who have repaid their dues during this period under the circulars.

5.00

Property, plant and equipment
Opening balance cost
Add: Acquisition during the year
Less: Adjustment/write-off during the year
Property, plant and equipment at cost
Less: Accumulated depreciation as on 01.07.20
Less: Depreciation charged during the year
Less: Adjustment/write-off during the year
Accumulated depreciation as on 30.06.21
A schedule of property, plant and equipment is given in Annexure-A

6.00

Capital work in progress
Opening balance
Add: Addition during the year
Less: Adjustment/ write-off during the year

517,644,789
72,669,243
93,241,564
497,072,468
216,342,447
49,861,250
30,387,553
235,816,144
261,256,324

595,254,092
88,469,030
166,078,333
517,644,789
175,374,823
47,821,520
6,853,896
216,342,447
301,302,342

170,895,869
5,528,000
(176,423,869)
-

159,525,330
13,793,897
(2,423,358)
170,895,869

A Training Center was under construction at Mouchak, Gazipur and sold in current financial year.
7.00

Leases
Right-of-use assets
Opening balance
Addition during the year
Less: Adjustment/write-off during the year
Less: Accumulated amortization as on 01 July 20
Less: amortization charged during the year
Less: Adjustment/write-off during the year
Accumulated amortization as on 30 June 21
Lease liabilities
Non-current portion
Current portion

15,245,367
60,569,311
75,814,679
5,151,516
17,132,092
22,283,608
53,531,070

15,245,367
15,245,367
5,151,516
5,151,516
10,093,852

52,693,880
9,039,756
61,733,636

5,541,688
4,996,190
10,537,878

I 149

Notes

Amount in BDT
30 June 2021
30 June 2020

Right-of-use asset and opening lease liability has been calculated as NPV of lease payments adjusted by monthly
adjustable advance rent.
8.00

Deferred expenditure
Opening balance
Add: Addition during the year
Less: Transfer
Less: Amortization during the year

4,908,458
30,083,614
(377,434)
(13,834,068)
20,780,570

16,633,874
2,625,347
(3,644,048)
10,706,715)
4,908,458

SAJIDA Foundation is maintaining its head office, One hospital and microfinance program in rental building. Due to
requirement of program operation, renovation work and surgical equipment needed in every year. Yearly renovation
expenses considered as deferred expenditure. Amortize yearly on the basis of 1/3 of addition during the year.
9.00

Investment in related undertaking
Investment in Renata Limited
Investment in PHWC Limited
Investment in Inner Circle Limited
Investment in HCC Limited

9.01

Investment in Renata Limited
Shares at cost

9.01
9.02
9.03
9.04

32,546,389
49,994,671
56,457,668
4,958,205
143,956,933

32,546,389
44,994,671
46,685,297
4,958,205
129,184,562

32,546,389
32,546,389

32,546,389
32,546,389

SAJIDA Foundation purchased 2,155,390 shares of Tk. 10 each of Renata Limited from Pfizer Corporation for Tk.
32,546,389 (Tk. 15.10 per share) vide agreement between Pfizer Corporation and SAJIDA Foundation dated 07 July
1993. As at 30 June 2021 SAJIDA Foundation holds total 49,698,142 shares including 47,542,752 bonus shares
received to date. Market value of such shares on 30th June 2021 is Tk. 65,586,637,865 (Tk. 1,319.70 per share).
SAJIDA owns 51% share of Renata Limited. The investment was recognized at cost.
9.02

Investment in PHWC Limited
Opening balance
Add: Investment during the year as advance share money deposit
Loan opening Balance
Add: Loan paid during the year

7,500,000
5,000,000
12,500,000
37,494,671
37,494,671
49,994,671

2,500,000
5,000,000
7,500,000
32,654,671
4,840,000
37,494,671
44,994,671

The Authorized Share Capital of the Company Tk. 3,00,00,000 (three crore) divided in to 3,00,000 (three lac)
ordinary share of Tk. 100 (one hundred) each. The Paid-up Capital of the Company Tk. 49,01,900 divided in to
49,019 share of Tk. 100 each. SAJIDA Purchases 25,000 share @ Tk.100 each which is 51% of total share capital.
Dr. Ashique Selim Purchases 100 share @ Tk.100 each and 16,076 shares allocated for a consideration other than
cash as goodwill of service, total share 16,176 which is 33% of total share capital. Onward Consultation Services
Ltd. Purchases 100 share @ Tk.100 each and 7,743 shares allocated for a consideration other than cash as
goodwill of service, total share 7,843 which is 16% of total share capital.
An Agreement signed between SAJIDA and PHWC Ltd. Dated 14th December 2017 for payment loan to PHWC Ltd.
to meet its establishment and operational cost @ 8% effective interest on the date of disbursement amount.
Agreement period from 14th December 2017 to 30th June 2020. Within this time period a new amended
Agreement signed between SAJIDA and PHWC ltd. dated on 19th November, 2019 to restructure the terms of the
Loan and equity.
9.03

Investment in Inner Circle Limited
Opening Investment
Add: Equity converted from loan
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18,567,268
6,558,532
25,125,800

1,000,000
17,567,268
18,567,268

Notes

Loan opening Balance
Less: Loan converted to equity
Add: Loan paid during the year
Less: Loan adjusted during the period

Amount in BDT
30 June 2021
30 June 2020

28,118,029
(6,558,532)
12,100,000
(2,327,629)
31,331,868
56,457,668

28,118,029
28,118,029
46,685,297

The Authorized Share Capital of the Company Tk. 1,00,00,000 (one crore) divided in to 1,00,000 (one lac) ordinary
shares of Tk. 100 (one hundred) each. The Paid-up Capital of the Company Tk. 1,000,000 divided in to 10,000 shares
of Tk. 100 each. SAJIDA Foundation Purchases 10,000 share @ Tk.100 each. In total SAJIDA Foundation has
invested an amount of 46,685,297 in the form of equity & loan.
During this 2020-21 period Inner Circle Pvt. Ltd. increased it's authorised share capital from 1,00,00,000 (one crore)
to 8,00,00,000 (eight crore), divided in to 8,00,000 (eight lac) ordinary shares of 100 (one hundred) each. In addition
to that, an amount of BDT. 17,567,268 (one crore seventy five lacs sixty seven thousand two hundred sixty eight)
was shown last year as advance share money deposit and a BDT. 6,558,532 is added this year which is in total a
BDT. 24,125,800 (two crore forty one lacs twenty five thousand eight hundred) is converted into equity divided into
2,41,258 (two lac forty one thousand two hundred fifty eight) ordinary shares.
9.04

Investment in Home & Community Care Limited
Opening Balance
Investment during the year for paid up Capital
Investment during the year Net Assets of IC

4,958,205
4,958,205

1,000,000
3,958,205
4,958,205

The Authorized Share Capital of the Company Tk. 1,00,00,000 (one crore) divided in to 1,00,000 (one lac) ordinary
shares of Tk. 100 (one hundred) each. The Paid-up Capital of the Company Tk. 1,000,000 divided in to 10,000 shares
of Tk. 100 each. SAJIDA Foundation Purchases 10,000 share @ Tk.100 each. Additionally SAJIDA Foundation has
invested a amount of 3,958,205 in the form of Net asset transfer of 3,899,927 and after incorporation 58,278
provided as loan amount.
10.00

Investment in Securities and Others
Opening balance
Add: Addition during the year profit
Less: Unrealized gain/(loss)
Less: Transfer to receivable

11.00

Loan to members
Opening balance
Add: Addition during the year
Less: Realized during the year
Less: Write-off

12.00

Short Term Investment
Fixed deposits:
Opening balance
Add: Addition during the year
Less: Encashment during the year
Program wise fixed deposits:
Members' savings fund (microfinance)
Surplus fund (microfinance)
Poor fund (own fund)
Scholarship fund (own fund)
Dividend fund (own fund)
Insurance fund (Nirapotta)
Institute of Health Science
Members' savings fund (Amrao Manush)

6,818,576
75,192
(1,538,060)
(756,384)
4,599,324

6,722,522
96,054
6,818,576

17,855,389,224 14,980,232,196
22,162,111,000 23,282,565,275
(26,229,818,270) (20,373,366,599)
(235,973,197)
(34,041,648)
13,551,708,758 17,855,389,224

1,017,316,505
1,938,826,276
(825,892,844)
2,130,249,937

660,049,900
441,527,977
(84,261,372)
1,017,316,505

639,149,298
290,277,932
200,000
1,195,896,644
1,616,522
3,109,541
2,130,249,937

458,594,180
238,388,361
450,000
300,000
315,080,000
1,532,098
2,971,866
1,017,316,505
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13.00

Grants and accounts receivables

Notes

Interest on fixed deposits
Grant receivables
Other receivables
Interest Receivable
14.00

Advance, deposits and prepayments
Employees, suppliers and Others
Office rent
Security deposits
Prepaid Insurance Premium

15.00

Advance income tax
Opening balance
Add: Addition during the year
Less: Adjusted during the year

16.00

Staff loans and Advance
Staff loan
Motor cycle loan

17.00

Inventories
Stock of medicine
Optical frame
Health instrument

18.00

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash in hand
Cash at bank

19.00

Capital fund
Opening balance
Add: Net surplus for the year
Less: Service charge waiver of microfinance
Add: Prior years adjustment, Short (Excess) provision
Add: Transferred from Nirapotta reserve fund
Less: Transferred to MF reserve fund

20.00

Reserve fund and others
Reserve fund (microfinance)
Reserve fund (Nirapotta)
Zakat
Poor fund
Scholarship fund
Amrao Manush fund
Challenge Fund
Disaster fund

20.01
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Reserve fund (microfinance)
Opening balance
Add: Transferred from Capital Fund
Less: Nirapotta adjustment during the year

20.01

Amount in BDT
30 June 2021
30 June 2020

45,134,492
5,347,143
18,652,899
198,140,661
267,275,195

18,830,482
15,918,683
61,523,884
753,260,573
849,533,621

13,387,592
38,997,986
129,170,568
8,593,891
190,150,037

59,267,572
42,880,332
66,341,268
168,489,172

225,968,619
71,302,723
297,271,342

178,637,847
47,330,772
225,968,619

22,599,305
141,309,477
163,908,782

10,041,749
142,854,967
152,896,716

5,398,584
19,395
5,417,979

6,047,492
27,995
6,075,487

21,202,407
350,052,846
371,255,253

23,227,890
2,867,820,253
2,891,048,143

3,916,148,003
1,035,815,696
(321,217,368)
45,891,371
(48,679,095)
4,627,958,607

3,127,462,485
815,754,905
31,334,933
(58,404,321)
3,916,148,003

312,444,169
3,756,179
1,428,999
2,742,459
870,286
1,460,742
322,702,835

263,765,074
995,683
100,000
(846,627)
1,703,612
320,286
29,643,945
3,766,259
299,448,232

263,765,074
48,679,095
312,444,169

205,360,753
58,404,321
263,765,074

Notes

Amount in BDT
30 June 2021
30 June 2020

In compliance with MRA rules No.20 Page no. 421, SAJIDA Foundation makes reserve 10% of cumulative
Microfinance Program surplus of cut off date and invest in FDR against the reserve fund.
21.00

21.01

Term loans
Non-current Portion
Palli Karma Shahayak Foundation (PKSF)
Bangladesh Bank (SMAP)
FMO Netherlands

21.01
21.03
21.04

Current Portion
Palli Karma Shahayak Foundation (PKSF)
Other commercial banks with FMO

147,333,332
400,000,000
514,920,639
1,062,253,971

21.02
21.05

304,050,000
484,666,667
5,634,996,602 12,249,731,578
5,939,046,602 12,734,398,245

Palli Karma Shahayak Foundation (PKSF)
Non-current Portion
Opening balance
Add: Received during the year
Less: Repayments during the year
Less: Payable within one year

21.02

Palli Karma Shahayak Foundation (PKSF)
Current Portion
Opening balance
Add: Payable during the year
Less: Paid during the year
Borrowing from Palli Karma Sahayak Foundation (PKSF)

393,049,998
380,000,000
773,049,998

393,049,998
65,000,000
458,049,998
(6,666,666)
(304,050,000)
147,333,332

460,716,664
510,000,000
970,716,664
(92,999,999)
(484,666,667)
393,049,998

484,666,667
304,050,000
788,716,667
(484,666,667)
304,050,000

506,950,000
484,666,667
991,616,667
(506,950,000)
484,666,667

Jagoron, Agrosor, Sufolon loan (Seasonal and agriculture) , KGF-Sufolon and IGA loan are taken from PKSF and the
duration of those loans is three years with a grace period of six months. The loan is repaid to the Funding agency
on quarterly basis with a declining balance method of interest @ 7.5%. Livelihood and Assets creation loans are
taken from PKSF and the duration of those loan 2.5 and 3.5 years. The loan is repaid to the Funding agency on
quarterly basis with a declining balance method of interest @ 2%. Buniad loan is taken from PKSF and the duration
of this loan is two years. The loan is repaid to the funding agency on quarterly basis with a declining balance method
of interest of 1%.
21.03

Bangladesh Bank (SMAP)
Non-current Portion
Opening balance
Add: Received during the year
Less: Refunded during the year
Less: Payable within one year

380,000,000
400,000,000

250,000,000
380,000,000

780,000,000
(380,000,000)
400,000,000

630,000,000
(250,000,000)
380,000,000

SAJIDA Foundation has been manitaining separate bank account solely for SMAP. The bank account details: Account
Name: SAJIDA Foundation, Bank Name: Dhaka Bank Ltd. Branch:Gulshan, Account No. 2151500001812.
21.04

Nederlandse Financierings-Maatschappij voor Ontwikkelingslanden N.V (FMO Netherlands)
Non-current Portion
Opening balance
Add: Received during the year
Less: Refunded during the year
Less: Payable within one year

633,748,479
633,748,479
(118,827,840)
514,920,639

-
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21.05

Other Commercial banks with FMO

Notes

Amount in BDT
30 June 2021
30 June 2020

Current Portion
Opening balance
Add: Received during the year
Add: Payable during the year

12,249,731,578
8,565,871,572
42,448,243,356 12,282,156,026
118,827,840
54,816,802,774 20,848,027,598
(49,181,806,172) (8,598,296,020)
5,634,996,602 12,249,731,578

Less: Paid during the year
Borrowing from commercial banks

Loans from commercial banks are taken for Jagoron, Agrosor, Sufolon and Buniad component disbursement and the
duration of this loan is six month to one year.
22.00

Deferred income
Opening balance
Add: Fund used for property, plant and equipment for the year
Less: Amortization
Less: Adjusted with donor Fund/write-off

23.00

Loan loss provision
Opening balance
Provision made during the year
Less: Written off during the year
Non-Current Portion (365+ days)
Current Portion

24.00

Member savings deposits
Opening balance
Deposits during the year
Withdrawals during the year
Interest credited

Ashtha Savings (Fixed Deposit)
Special Savings (Monthly)
Savings (Amrao Manush Project)
Current Portion:
Mandatory Savings (microfinance)

Grants received in advance
Opening balance
Received during the year
SAJIDA Contribution
Bank interest received
Other income
Less: Transferred to grant income
Less: Fund used for property, plant and equipment for the year
Less: property, plant and equipment write-off for the year
Less: Fund transferred to Donor
Less: Last year grant receivable adjustment
Add: Receivable as on 30 June 2021
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7,028,937
24,914,525
(2,931,958)
20,078
29,031,582

947,210,307
(72,781,505)
(235,973,196)
638,455,606

640,344,832
340,907,123
(34,041,648)
947,210,307

183,765,731
454,689,875
638,455,606

419,738,928
527,471,379
947,210,307

4,728,155,819
3,658,004,356
3,037,173,027
2,961,494,377
(3,713,307,712) (2,146,907,109)
213,989,974
255,564,195
4,266,011,108 4,728,155,819

Non-Current Portion:

25.00

29,031,582
525,784
(955,465)
(26,807,646)
1,794,255

28.00

709,518,625
663,400,492
1,421,342
1,374,340,459

622,051,075
704,059,812
1,530,959
1,327,641,846

2,891,670,649
2,891,670,649

3,400,513,973
3,400,513,973

41,289,502
364,258,537
85,312,658
215,599
(448,759,283)
(525,784)
221,525
154,458
42,167,213
(13,199,993)
28,967,220
4,056,358
33,023,578

27,189,452
198,711,612
86,749,793
273,988
(286,455,298)
(24,914,525)
(20,078)
1,534,944
(9,252,884)
(7,717,940)
49,007,441
41,289,502

Notes

26.00

Other current liabilities
Provision for expenses
Security deposits
Accounts payable
Tax Payable
Loan with gratuity fund/ Current Account

27.00

Income from Microfinance
Microfinance Service charge
Sale of pass books & admission fees
Nirapotta Service Fee

28.00

Donor grants
Transferred from grants as expenses
Bank interest received
Other income
Amortization of deferred income-investment in PPE
Other fund expenses

29.00

Income from Investment

25.00

Income from investment (Dividend-Renata Ltd.)
Security market and Others
30.00

Non-cash items
Loan loss provision expenses
Depreciation & Amortization
Service charge waiver of microfinance
(Gain)/loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Assets disposal/accumulated depreciation
Prior Year adjustments

31.00

Contingent loss

Amount in BDT
30 June 2021
30 June 2020

307,538,891
2,291,761
74,060,059
123,630,721
859,874
508,381,306

196,937,986
2,420,000
63,594,754
47,330,772
368,067
310,651,579

3,373,608,000
12,132,849
26,345,253
3,412,086,103

3,914,161,718
9,222,519
94,257,734
4,017,641,972

448,759,298
(214,752)
213,158
902,019
449,659,723

286,437,064
(273,988)
2,931,958
(11,313,868)
277,781,165

587,462,097
19,906,347
607,368,444

410,728,994
44,520,013
455,249,006

(72,781,505)
63,695,316
(321,217,368)
2,127,040
(30,387,553)
(2,787,724)
(361,351,795)

340,907,123
58,528,235
(39,920,375)
(27,069,388)
332,445,595

FMO - Loss Under Litigation
SAJIDA entered into an agreement with Dutch development bank, FMO, Netherlands (“FMO”) on 18.12.2019 to
receive a 5 (five) year term loan of USD 7.5 million from FMO. After subsequent amendment on 04.11.2020, SAJIDA
received the term loan from FMO on 14.12.2020. SAJIDA’s first interest payment was due on 10.03.2021 for an
amount of USD 82,416.67. It was later found that during the correspondence between SAJIDA and FMO regarding
the payment due on 10.03.2021, two fake domains were created by unidentified imposters to deceive the two
corresponding parties. Using these fake domains, the imposters induced SAJIDA to instruct its’ intermediary Bank,
BRAC Bank Limited, to make the payment due on 10.03.2021 to a wrong bank account. The correct recipient of USD
82,416.67 was supposed to be HSBC Bank USA. However, the imposters induced SAJIDA to make the payment to
ING Bank NV instead. As a result, SAJIDA suffered a loss of USD 82,416.67 (BDT 7,001,296.12) as this payment was
fraudulently redirected to a different bank account by the imposters. The scam was discovered on 8th April, 2021.
SAJIDA immediately took the following steps to resolve the said matter:
(i) On 27.04.2021, SAJIDA reported this transaction to Bangladesh Financial Intelligence Unit (BFIU), Bangladesh
Bank by submitting a form in fulfilment of our statutory duty as a ‘reporting agency’ under Prevention of Money
Laundering Act 2012 and Anti-Terrorism Act 2009;
(ii) On 01.05.2021, SAJIDA sent a legal notice to ING Bank demanding payment of the sum of USD 82,416.67;
(iii) On 03.05.2021, SAJIDA lodged a complaint with the Cyber Security and Crime Division of Dhaka Metropolitan
Police to initiate investigation into the matter
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(iv) On 16.09.2021 Appointed JahaeRaymakers, a Dutch law firm to lodge a criminal complaint on behalf of SAJIDA
to the Dutch police, and to obtain other necessary legal services required for recovering the said amount from
the unidentified imposters.
Loss on Share
During this financial year investment in various shares in stock market devalued and SAJIDA faced a loss of BDT.
15,38,060 in total.
Loss on FDR
During this financial year loss on FDR recognized BDT. 450,000 as the Internatioanl Leasing Company Ltd. has failed
to pay the FDR deposited by SAJIDA Foundation dated November 10, 2016.
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1,293,437

27,762,685

Motor cycles

Software
88,469,030

72,669,243

8,542,847

-

8,772,746

51,128,084

4,021,904

-

166,078,333

93,241,564

62,700

478,486

11,269,580

60,307,637

4,139,370

5,152,918

11,830,873

the year

during

Disposals

10%

2%-5%

-

Rate

25,525,083

2,761,779

-

01-07-2020

balance

Opening

517,644,789

497,072,468

36,242,832

814,951

57,863,647
33.33%

15%

15%

175,374,823

216,342,447

20,013,583

635,819

42,837,665

184,064,003 15 to 33.33% 124,568,518

79,360,780

12,549,764

126,176,491

30-06-2021

balance

Closing

-

47,821,520

49,861,250

7,699,870

122,243

3,041,654

30,146,626

8,599,862

250,995

the year

during

Charged

6,853,896

30,387,553

62,700

403,595

774,813

25,842,586

1,985,302

1,318,557

-

during the year

for disposals

Adjustment

Depreciation

value

down

216,342,447

235,816,144

27,650,753

354,467

45,104,505

128,872,559

32,139,643

1,694,217

-

301,302,342

261,256,324

8,592,079

460,484

12,759,142

55,191,444

47,221,137

10,855,547

126,176,491

30-06-2021 as at 30-06-2021

balance

Closing

Written

Annexure-A

15,615,173

533,259,962

Closing balance as on 30.06.2021

Grand Total

102,752,857

30,083,614

30,083,614

the year

01-07-2020

15,615,173

during

Additions

balance

Deferred expenditure

Particulars

Opening

Cost

93,872,736

631,172

631,172

the year

during

Disposals

542,140,083

45,067,615

45,067,615

30-06-2021

balance

Closing

33.33%

Rate

227,051,666

10,709,219

10,709,219

01-07-2020

balance

Opening

Schedule of Amortization of Deferred Expenditure

63,695,318

13,834,068

13,834,068

the year

during

Charged

30,643,795

256,242

256,242

during the year

for disposals

Adjustment

Amortization
Closing Balance

260,103,189

24,287,045

24,287,045

282,036,894

20,780,570

20,780,570

30-06-2021 as at 30-06-2021

balance

Closing

During the year, an amount of Tk. 902,019 has been transferred to the statement of income and expenditure from Deferred income - investment in property, plant and equipment to cover the depreciation
charge for donor funded property, plant and equipment as disclosed in Note 28

595,254,092

60,360,481

Closing balance as on 30.06.2020

193,243,556

Equipment

Vehicles

517,644,789

79,478,246

Furniture and fixtures

Closing balance as on 30.06.2021

17,702,682

Building

Cost

203,662

the year

01-07-2020

137,803,702

during

Additions

balance

Land

Particulars

Opening

SAJIDA Foundation

(Registered in Bangladesh under the Societies Registration Act, 1860)
Schedule of Property, Plant and Equipment
as at 30 June 2021
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Total liabilities
Total funds and liabilities

Current liabilities
Lease liabilities
Short term loans
Loan loss provision
Member savings deposits
Grants received in advance
Other current liabilities
Interproject adjustments

Non current liabilities
Lease liabilities
Term loans
Deferred income
Loan loss provision
Member savings deposits

Funds
Capital fund
Reserve fund and others
Total funds

Funds and liabilities

773,049,998
419,738,928
1,326,110,887
2,518,899,813

12,734,398,245
527,471,379
3,400,513,973
850,142
194,053,102
380,537,971
17,237,824,813
19,756,724,625
22,404,235,682

5,939,046,602
454,689,874
2,891,670,649
157,435
333,814,031
(27,529,100)
9,591,849,491
12,210,788,311
15,335,230,006

2,382,750,300
264,760,757
2,647,511,057

1,062,253,971
183,765,731
1,372,919,117
2,618,938,819

2,811,997,526
312,444,170
3,124,441,695

-

-

-

-

22,404,235,682

Total assets

15,335,230,006

-

17,855,389,224
696,982,541
783,774,773
86,229,681
22,411,316
152,631,678
2,712,193,473
22,309,612,687

2020-2021

Current assets
Loan to members
13,551,708,758
Short term investment
929,427,230
Grants and accounts receivables
218,789,812
Advance, deposits and prepayments
139,368,554
Advance income tax
32,962,926
Staff loans and advance
163,015,819
Inventories
Cash and cash equivalents
224,759,299
15,260,032,396

2019-2020
-

75,197,610
75,197,610

2020-2021

-

-

-

-

-

-

2019-2020

Social enterprises

91,179,817
634,886
2,808,293
94,622,996

Assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Capital work in progress
Right-of-use assets
Deferred expenditure
Investment in related undertaking
Investment in securities and others

Particulars

Microfinance program

(Registered in Bangladesh under the Societies Registration Act, 1860)
Statement of financial position
As at 30 June 2021
Amount in BDT

SAJIDA Foundation

21,470,546
2,403,427
(1,165,793)
22,708,180
22,708,180
22,708,180

-

-

22,708,180

1,058,905
21,649,275
22,708,180

-

12,310,853
24,539,683
(8,223,436)
28,627,100
51,359,443
51,359,443

22,732,343
22,732,343

-

51,359,443

45,962,364
6,270,484
(23,605,748)
28,627,100

22,732,343
22,732,343

Emergency response program
COVID-19
2020-2021
2019-2020

4,420,069
9,604,194
134,039,138
148,063,401
149,825,071
62,049,489

1,761,669
1,761,669

(87,775,582)
(87,775,582)

62,049,489

1,616,522
1,397,856
7,385,796
636,914
892,963
5,417,979
2,954,478
20,302,508

34,380,809
5,710,757
1,655,415
41,746,981

2020-2021

4,996,190
4,921,407
79,341,244
89,258,841
94,800,529
54,849,092

5,541,688
5,541,688

(39,951,436)
(39,951,436)

54,849,092

1,532,098
1,695,234
8,774,256
1,218,562
265,038
6,075,487
2,797,996
22,358,671

21,540,652
10,093,852
855,918
32,490,422

2019-2020

Hospital

1,142,638
306,772
1,449,410
1,737,459
1,737,459

288,049
288,049

-

1,737,459

1,449,410
1,449,410

288,049
288,049

2020-2021

17,616,700
73,838
17,690,538
18,333,437
18,333,437

642,899
642,899

-

18,333,437

60,000
17,630,538
17,690,538

642,899
642,899

2019-2020

Health awareness program
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2,387,902
413,786
769,050
3,570,738
4,797,333
4,797,333

1,226,595
1,226,595

-

4,797,333

448,760
80,000
3,041,978
3,570,738

1,226,595
1,226,595

2020-2021

2,232,736
3,157,088
85,000
5,474,824
7,153,330
7,153,330

1,678,506
1,678,506

-

7,153,330

1,382,222
353,096
3,739,506
5,474,824

1,678,506
1,678,506

2019-2020

Wash program

Total liabilities
Total funds and liabilities

Current liabilities
Lease liabilities
Short term loans
Loan loss provision
Member savings deposits
Grants received in advance
Other current liabilities
Interproject adjustments

Non current liabilities
Lease liabilities
Term loans
Deferred income
Loan loss provision
Member savings deposits

Funds
Capital fund
Reserve fund and others
Total funds

Funds and liabilities

Total assets

Current assets
Loan to members
Short term investment
Grants and accounts receivables
Advance, deposits and prepayments
Advance income tax
Staff loans and advance
Inventories
Cash and cash equivalents

Assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Capital work in progress
Right-of-use assets
Deferred expenditure
Investment in related undertaking
Investment in securities and others

Particulars

2,971,866
10,638
172,000
117,996
5,744,717
9,017,217

3,109,541
7,394
506,800
135,693
5,802,494
9,561,921

375,257
1,530,959
1,906,216
4,871,632
106,825
4,978,457
6,884,673
9,392,474

3,750,653
441,426
1,269,522
5,461,601
7,114,422
9,793,400

2,507,800
2,507,800

231,479
1,421,342
1,652,821

2,678,978
2,678,978

9,392,474

375,257
375,257

231,479
231,479

9,793,400

2019-2020

2020-2021

Amrao manush program

(Registered in Bangladesh under the Societies Registration Act, 1860)
Statement of financial position
As at 30 June 2021
Amount in BDT

SAJIDA Foundation
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4,114,403
283,773
638,611
5,036,787
5,084,919
5,393,309

48,132
48,132

308,390
308,390

5,393,309

981,327
5,303
4,404,975
5,391,605

1,704
1,704

2020-2021

4,013,702
7,482,800
2,247,548
13,744,050
13,949,585
16,729,032

205,535
205,535

2,779,447
2,779,447

16,729,032

4,152,240
17,900
5,303
12,331,056
16,506,499

222,533
222,533

2019-2020

Other development projects

-

-

-

-

-

-

2020-2021

163,516
25,964
420,294
609,774
609,774
609,774

-

-

609,774

412,101
197,673
609,774

-

2019-2020

Education program

4,619,687
161,113,897
(108,021,428)
57,712,157
108,644,367
2,019,652,327

50,932,210
50,932,210

1,900,749,295
10,258,665
1,911,007,960

2,019,652,327

1,196,096,644
44,591,141
42,808,887
263,530,507
107,193,345
1,654,220,524

149,930,078
47,820,313
19,125,155
143,956,933
4,599,324
365,431,803

2020-2021

2019-2020

(769,779)
76,290,872
(454,408,621)
(378,887,528)
(375,490,486)
1,227,258,880

3,397,042
3,397,042

1,568,061,891
34,687,475
1,602,749,366

1,227,258,880

315,830,000
12,144,049
66,611,755
202,215,441
160,018,932
756,820,178

162,930,335
170,260,983
1,244,247
129,184,562
6,818,576
470,438,703

SAJIDA Own Fund

9,039,756
5,939,046,602
454,689,874
2,891,670,649
33,023,578
508,381,306
9,835,851,766
12,510,700,062
17,461,361,503

52,693,880
1,062,253,971
1,794,255
183,765,731
1,374,340,459
2,674,848,296

4,627,958,607
322,702,835
4,950,661,441

17,461,361,503

13,551,708,758
2,130,249,937
267,275,195
190,150,037
297,271,342
163,908,782
5,417,979
371,255,253
16,977,237,282

261,256,324
53,531,070
20,780,570
143,956,933
4,599,324
484,124,221

2020-2021

2019-2020
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4,996,190
12,734,398,245
527,471,379
3,400,513,973
41,289,502
310,651,579
17,019,320,868
19,574,324,910
23,789,921,144

5,541,688
773,049,998
29,031,582
419,738,928
1,327,641,846
2,555,004,042

3,916,148,003
299,448,232
4,215,596,235

23,789,921,144

17,855,389,224
1,017,316,505
849,533,621
168,489,172
225,968,619
152,896,716
6,075,487
2,891,048,143
23,166,717,486

301,302,342
170,895,869
10,093,852
4,908,458
129,184,562
6,818,576
623,203,658

Grand Total
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7,723,469

4,350,233

Printing and stationery

Staff training & workshop

5,215,922

-

HO Logistics & Management

Net surplus/(deficit) for the year

552,828,951

4,081,212,824

782,889,363

3,528,383,873

-

41,569,602

-

-

30,556,646

340,907,123

307,610,052

970,638,652

3,468,253,480

2,685,364,118

-

Inter project transfer

Total expenditure

-

28,515,636

Depreciation & Amortization

-

(72,781,505)

Loan loss provision expenses

Overhead deficit

315,141,276

Interest on member savings

Tax expense

689,239,251

Interest paid to other commercial bank

-

55,078,362

49,730,938

Other program expenses

Interest paid on PKSF loan

67,305,517

165,949,095

76,796,502

Maintenance and general expenses

25,521,403

9,502,327

Repair and maintenance

Audit fees and consultancy

4,485,174

16,639,109

23,377,250

Communication expenses

1,083,516

1,211,420

423,889

24,348,957

9,318,355

78,661,685

100,306,529

1,343,058,569

4,081,212,824

-

-

-

6,185,208

57,385,644

4,017,641,972

2019-2020

Publicity and advertisement

20,028

89,012,551

Office rent and utilities

Beneficiaries' training and workshop

96,497,734

1,306,732,724

Travelling and transportation expenses

Expenditure
Salary and allowances

-

Income from investment

3,468,253,480

-

Income from enterprises & training center

Income from community contribution
Total Income

-

3,712,296

52,455,082

3,412,086,103

2020-2021

Microfinance program

Income from hospital

Donor grants

Income from bank interest (STD & FDR)

Income from microfinance

Income

Particulars

(Registered in Bangladesh under the Societies Registration Act, 1860)
Segmental statement of comprehensive income
for the year ended 2021

SAJIDA Foundation

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

2020-2021

12,500

(3,662,080)

3,674,580

-

(4,725)

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

333,230

-

138,771

25,957

18,900

-

42,158

17,511

754,143

37,503

2,311,132

12,500

-

12,500

-

-

-

-

2019-2020

Social enterprises

225,178,619

-

225,178,619

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

156,169,536

3,571,756

4,386,364

2,367,551

1,436,344

147,568

-

1,610,457

825,511

7,150,588

4,051,699

43,461,245

225,178,619

-

-

-

225,178,619

-

-

2020-2021

100,908,121

-

100,908,121

-

-

-

-

1,561,971

-

-

-

-

40,357,886

30,518,668

2,450,080

1,233,787

-

3,881

-

-

1,004,850

2,951,104

936,203

19,889,691

100,908,121

-

-

-

100,908,121

-

-

2019-2020

Emergency response program
COVID-19

120,052,481

(50,162,627)

170,215,107

-

-

-

-

17,085,374

-

-

-

-

2,795,142

22,233,532

8,037,324

7,265,077

513,292

481,485

-

189,847

1,118,529

12,862,819

4,412,468

93,220,218

120,052,481

-

-

120,013,181

-

39,300

-

2020-2021

126,887,068

(79,947,818)

206,834,886

-

-

-

-

13,753,238

-

-

-

-

103,986

19,937,899

8,369,932

6,145,452

499,230

1,313,097

-

806,558

1,561,795

17,508,549

6,795,044

130,040,105

126,887,068

-

92,557,594

-

92,557,594

-

-

-

-

58,213

-

-

-

-

71,167,426

202,486

6,658

376,410

358,790

1,299,310

230,917

120,658

118,231

1,348,273

666,189

16,604,032

92,557,594

-

-

-

-

92,540,599

-

16,995

-

2020-2021

65,508,551

-

65,508,551

-

-

-

-

192,462

-

-

-

-

44,105,821

222,916

-

544,031

198,885

-

116,571

72,850

210,540

1,651,565

1,163,762

17,029,148

65,508,551

-

-

-

65,478,652

29,899

-

2019-2020

Health awareness program

126,778,174

108,894

-

2019-2020

Hospital

Development programs

70,273,536

-

70,273,536

-

-

-

-

652,309

-

-

-

-

49,744,752

173,995

180,601

407,750

287,207

36,851

681,232

224,107

119,521

1,344,465

1,702,141

14,718,607

70,273,536

-

-

-

70,100,014

173,522

-

2020-2021

58,318,061

-

58,318,061

-

-

-

-

701,612

-

-

-

-

42,585,791

1,945,937

157,500

200,302

222,733

4,219

322,469

597,436

56,650

758,097

1,023,881

9,741,435

58,318,061

-

-

-

58,127,730

190,332

-

2019-2020

Wash program
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-

20,489,774

Salary and allowances

9,196

Printing and stationery

236,200

Depreciation & Amortization

-

Net surplus/(deficit) for the year

-

274,085

32,281,406

171,178

32,007,321

47,998,245

47,827,067

HO Logistics & Management

Total expenditure

-

-

-

-

Overhead deficit

Inter project transfer

-

-

412,624

-

Tax expense

136,141

-

-

-

-

Interest paid to other commercial bank

-

6,183,360

Loan loss provision expenses

-

241,963

-

679,191

285,453

-

370,641

32,283

189,531

4,022,409

1,302,704

18,151,021

206,523
32,281,406

-

Interest on member savings

20,314,094

Interest paid on PKSF loan

2,315,175

-

Other program expenses

Maintenance and general expenses

Audit fees and consultancy

403,260

250,077

Communication expenses

Publicity and advertisement

Repair and maintenance

-

-

Beneficiaries' training and workshop

27,917

2,726,297

Office rent and utilities

Staff training & workshop

1,055,077

Travelling and transportation expenses

Expenditure

20,470
47,998,245

Income from community contribution
Total Income

-

Income from investment

-

-

-

-

Income from hospital

31,859,581

47,801,494

215,302

-

176,281

2019-2020

2020-2021

Amrao manush program

Income from enterprises & training center

Donor grants

Income from bank interest (STD & FDR)

Income from microfinance

Particulars

(Registered in Bangladesh under the Societies Registration Act, 1860)
Segmental statement of comprehensive income
for the year ended 2021

SAJIDA Foundation

Income
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12,874,122

(933,393)

13,807,515

-

-

-

-

420

-

-

-

-

4,039,643

440,510

61,355

25,310

138,871

52,992

57,311

2,557,363

23,243

89,336

619,051

5,702,108

12,874,122

-

2,673,389

-

10,163,186

37,547

-

2020-2021

28,106,861

3,637,457

24,469,404

-

-

-

-

71,329

-

-

-

-

4,203,968

6,562,678

40,000

393,291

112,845

-

390,998

514,643

77,413

568,731

865,576

10,667,932

28,106,861

-

12,809,717

-

15,219,998

77,146

-

2019-2020

Other development projects

Development programs

174,381

-

174,381

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

174,381

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

174,381

-

-

-

163,516

10,865

-

2020-2021

1,876

-

1,876

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

1,876

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

1,876

-

-

-

1,876

-

-

2019-2020

Education program

569,108,977

(50,924,842)

620,033,819

-

-

-

18,032,516

-

-

-

-

304,230,592

29,111,834

12,672,302

10,692,175

3,137,764

2,018,206

969,460

4,730,349

2,214,231

25,521,778

12,506,625

194,195,985

20,470
569,108,977

-

2,673,389

120,013,181

445,947,427

454,509

-

2020-2021

412,011,945

(76,036,275)

488,048,220

-

-

-

16,693,236

-

136,141

-

-

137,540,812

59,431,937

11,017,512

9,196,054

1,319,146

1,321,197

1,200,679

2,023,770

660,830,382

303,851,176

356,979,206

-

-

-

76,299,949

17,147,164

-

-

-

-

133,650,998

28,253,797

6,398,258

1,302,463

651,232

651,232

-

1,302,463

651,628

18,221,644

27,460,455
3,100,779

6,586,221

65,862,156

660,830,382

607,368,444

-

-

-

53,461,938

-

2020-2021

464,728,552

342,624,310

122,104,242

-

(41,564,877)

-

47,330,772

10,964,019

-

-

-

-

9,407,800

50,853,613

663,046

-

-

-

-

7,586

-

-

-

44,442,283

464,728,552

455,249,006

-

-

-

9,479,546

-

2019-2020

SAJIDA Own Fund

12,087,171

205,519,332

206,523
412,011,945

-

12,809,717

126,778,174

271,595,957

621,574

-

2019-2020

Total development program

4,698,192,839

1,035,815,696

3,662,377,143

-

-

-

76,299,949

63,695,316

(72,781,505)

315,141,276

689,239,251

49,730,938

492,959,952

134,162,133

24,286,482

21,496,966

27,166,246

3,880,858

989,488

10,383,045

10,589,329

132,755,974

115,590,579

1,566,790,866

20,470
4,698,192,839

607,368,444

2,673,389

120,013,181

449,659,723

106,371,529

3,412,086,103

2020-2021

4,957,965,821

815,754,905

4,142,210,916

-

-

-

47,330,772

58,213,901

340,907,123

307,746,193

970,638,652

67,305,517

146,948,612

276,567,875

16,165,732

34,856,228

17,984,212

2,423,613

1,624,568

26,422,471

12,436,645

106,876,283

112,431,203

1,595,331,316

206,523
4,957,965,821

455,249,006

12,822,217

126,778,174

277,781,165

67,486,764

4,017,641,972

2019-2020

Grand Total
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SAJIDA Foundation

(Registered in Bangladesh under the Societies Registration Act, 1860)
Schedule of donation received
for the year ended 30 June 2021

Annexure-D
Amount in BDT
2021
2020

Name of the projects

Donor

Malaria Control Program
Promoting and Empowering Bangladeshi
Women
Education Program
Access to WASH
WASH-RMG
Gates Foundation-Partnership to support Covid
response in Bangladesh
Mallzee-Covid-19 Response Fund for Garment
workers through Food Aid
Safe Water Supply and Hygiene Promotion (700
STW)
BAT-Mental health support strategy for COVID-19
affected population
Urban Pavement Dwellers -UPD
ILUEP
Promoting Inclusive Business in the Garment
Sector of Bangladesh
WASH4Urban Poor
WASH-Crisis
PROSHOMON
Rohingya
Health Training
DFS
ILOD
COVID Action
Citi Foundation- COVID Response
WASH-Barguna
WASH-RMG
Covid-19 First Responders Fund (Give2Asia)
Wash-COVID
Prime, Samriddhi and Agri Project
Access to WASH
Gates Foundation-Partnership to support Covid
response in Bangladesh
Urban Extreme Poor
ILUEP
Home Isolation
Mask Making
PROSHOMON
Emergency Response-COVID-19
Emergency Response-COVID-19
Rohingya
Adhunika
Citi Award
Amrao Manush Project
Total

BRAC-GFATM

3,238,322

6,878,555

Adhunika (USA)

6,036,866

2,515,275

BRAC
Water.Org-USA
WaterAid

8,569,975

7,390,607
-

27,029,477

-

124,462,518

-

Penny Appeal, UK

13,574,881

-

British Asian Trust

7,324,194

-

40,174,500

7,973,071
25,947,383

2,108,019

3,523,350

25,319,429
19,946,450
65,168,788

3,723,331
2,000,000
-

25,434,558
29,132,491
57,737,460
5,365,564
8,713,868
2,161,397
1,316,108
12,621,925
2,000,000
-

SAJIDA Contribution

4,068,371

-

SAJIDA Contribution
SAJIDA Contribution
SAJIDA Contribution
SAJIDA Contribution
SAJIDA Contribution
Various Local Donor
SAJIDA Contribution
Various Local Donor
Various Local Donor
SAJIDA Contribution
SAJIDA Contribution

6,340,000
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Gates Foundation
Mallzee

Concern Worldwide-Bangladesh
Concern Worldwide-Bangladesh
SNV Netherlands
WaterAid-Bangladesh
WaterAid-Bangladesh
Concern Worldwide-Bangladesh
Penny Appeal, UK
Team Broken Earth
WaterAid
Penny Appeal, UK
Concern Worldwide-Bangladesh
Citi Foundation
Penny Appeal, UK
The Very Group, UK
Metlife Foundation-USA
Penny Appeal, UK
PKSF
SAJIDA Contribution

1,778,695
1,976,994
8,306,400
3,519,698

158,418
175,892
23,295,541
51,274,436
449,571,195

759,101
77,886,814
7,600,000
500,000
5,754
285,463,281

SAJIDA Foundation

Five years Performance Analysis

INDICATORS

FY 2020 - 21

FY 2019 - 20

FY 2018 - 19

FY 2017 - 18

FY 2016 - 17

232
1,746.14
462.80
469.82
366.24
103.58
2,761

202
2,378.99
391.61
495.80
414.22
81.58
3,617

202
1,767.11
312.75
417.59
348.11
69.49
3,556

178
1,370.00
232.78
287.38
229.95
57.43
2,672

188
904.87
177.65
202.12
145.19
56.93
2,353

26.50%
2.28
77.61%

16.46%
4.33
75.05%

17.70%
4.02
84.77%

16.99%
4.31
86.54%

19.63%
3.61
82.80%

5.02%
24.25%
108.79%
128.28%

3.94%
23.16%
107.07%
119.69%

4.43%
25.47%
108.41%
119.96%

5.05%
27.98%
111.35%
124.97%

7.74%
38.52%
112.38%
139.21%

20.60%
22.05%
17.14%

22.58%
16.45%
20.05%

25.62%
16.64%
23.07%

24.16%
19.98%
21.42%

26.49%
28.16%
21.21%

20.97%
6.04%
12.65%
7.60%
5.40%

17.41%
5.66%
13.49%
7.70%
4.14%

19.70%
6.32%
15.07%
8.68%
4.27%

16.78%
5.00%
14.19%
8.18%
4.20%

16.05%
4.45%
14.26%
8.40%
4.83%

268,914
1,355.17
50,394
24.10%
15,417
4.39%

334,380
1,785.54
53,398
19.19%
11,318
4.65%

282,367
1,498.02
53,052
26.36%
9,202
5.05%

236,338
1,185.55
50,163
58.23%
6,811
3.89%

193,280
749.26
38,765
62.37%
5,134
1.96%

183
92.25

212
113.22

181
96.03

200
100.47

201
77.80

1.50%
5.05%
117.85%
15.18%

0.21%
4.83%
121.79%
17.00%

0.22%
3.65%
93.34%
7.86%

0.19%
2.54%
92.13%
7.06%

1.32%
2.54%
122.16%
9.38%

GENERAL INFORMATION
Number of Branch
Total Assets (Taka in Crore)
Total Equity (Taka in Crore)
Total Revenue (Taka in Crore)
Total Expenditure (Taka in Crore)
Net Income during the year (Taka in Crore)
Total Staff
FINANCING STRUCTURE
Capital/Asset Ratio
Debt to Equity Ratio
Portfolio to Assets
OVERALL FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
Return on Assets
Return on Equity
Operational Self - Sufficiency
Overall Self - Sufficiency
REVENUES
Financial Revenues/Assets
Profit Margin
Yield on Gross Portfolio
EXPENSES
Total Expenses/Assets
Financial Expenses/Assets
Operating Expenses/Assets
Personnel Expenses/Assets
Administrative Expenses/Assets
OUTREACH INDICATORS
Number of Borrower
Loan Portfolio (Taka in Crore)
Average Loan Balance per Borrower
Growth in Average Outstanding
Cost per Loan
Portfolio at Risk
PRODUCTIVITY
Borrower per Field Staff
Loan Outstanding per Field Staff (In Lac)
RISK COVERAGE AND LIQUIDITY
Write - off Ratio
Loan Loss Rate
Risk Coverage Ratio
Non - earning Liquid Assets as % of Total Assets
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Donor and Partner wise source of funds
as of June 2021

A. Grants and Donations:
Name of Donor/Partner

Programs
Microcredit
Health Program
Vocational Training

Project Life
July 2001-December 2004
July 1998-December 2006
January-December 2000

CARE Bangladesh

Family Savings Program
Poverty Assessment

January 2002-December 2005
March 2006

Sub Total
BRAC
GFATM through BRAC
GFATM through BRAC
Sub Total

Education Program
Malaria Control Program
TB Control Program

January 1999 – December 2018
May 2008 – 31st December 2020
August 2010 to June 2015

Amrao Manush Project
Amrao Manush Model Project
DIPECHO-VIII
Urban Pavement Dwellers-UPD
ILUEP
PROSHOMON

March 2008 – Dec. 2016
October 2010 – September 2014
June 2015 – August 2016
January 2017 – Dec. 2020
February 2017 – Dec. 2021
February 2018 – Jan.. 2021

Training on Rehabilitations of NMT Pullers Poor Owners
Palli Paramedic Training
Prime
Samriddhi
Agri
KGF
DIISP
CCCP

October 2007 – June 2009
March 2012 to April 2012
July 2013 to June 2017
July 2013 to June 2020
July 2013 to June 2018
July 2015 to June 2019
January 2014 to Aug. 2016
Sept.2015 to Dec. 2016

Integrated Eye Project
Education Program
Nirapad Palli Sanchay Project
Blue Peter Meal and Deal Project
Chittagong Hill Tracts Development Facility (CHTDF)
CCCP
Amrao Manush Project
Amrao Manush Manik Nagar Project
Poor Fund
Darud & Zakat Fund
Scholarship Fund
AdhunikaWomen's Centre
Adhunika Women's Centre
IMPACT
WASH-RMG
WASH4Urban Poor
WASH-Crisys
Access to WASH
WASH-RMG
DFS
Citi Award
OPTIX
SNV Project
Training
UPD Project
UPD Project
Rohingya
Rohingya
ILOD
Covid-19 First Responders Fund (Give2Asia)
Emergency Response-COVID-19
Emergency Response-COVID-19
Endowment
Gates Foundation-Partnership to support Covid response in Bangladesh
Mallzee-Covid-19 Response Fund for Garment workers through Food Aid
Safe Water Supply and Hygiene Promotion (700 STW)
WASH-Barguna
Integrated approach to sustainable water supply and management
BAT-Mental health support strategy for COVID - 19 affected population
COVID Action
Citi Foundation - COVID Response
COVID Response
Relief and rehabilitation of flood victims in Jamalpur
COVID Response
COVID Response

March 2005 – February 2008
January 1993 – June 2010
July 2007 – March 2009
Feb. 2009 – March 2010
February 2010 – December 2011
Sept.2015 to Dec.2016
July 2017 to June 2018
July 2017 to June 2018
July 2017 to June 2018
July 2017 to June 2018
July 2017 to June 2018
July 2013 to June 2021
July 2013 to June 2021
Oct.2012 – March 2018
June 2016 – March 2019
January 2017 to April 2022
August 2018 to March 2021
Sept. 2016 to Aug. 2020
May 2020 to July2020
July 2017 to June 2019
July 2015 to June 2018
January 2015 to December 2018
Jan.2018 to June 2021
July 2018 to June 2020
July 2017 to June 2018
July 2017 to June 2018
July 2017 to December 2018
Nov. 2018 to September 2020
March 2020 to Feb. 2021
May 2020 toNov. 2020
March 2020 to June 2020
March 2020 to June 2020
July 2017 to June 2018
September 2020 to April 2021
June 2020 to June 2021
January 2021 to June 2021
December 2020 to May 2021
February 2020 toJune 2020
July 2020 to March 2021
December 2020 to June 2021
May 2020 to August 2020
June 2020 to October 2020
November 2020 to January 2021
July 2021 to 30th August 2021
July 2020 to June 2021

Neimeth Foundation
Sub Total

Concern Worldwide Bangladesh

Sub Total
Palli Karma Sahayak Foundation

Sub Total
ORBIS International
Mr. S.H. Kabir & his Family
DFID through CLP
Save the Children-UK
UNDP
Community Contribution
Local Donor
Local Donor
Local Donor
Local Donor
Local Donor
Adhunika Women's Centre USA
Adhunika Women's Centre Local Donor
WaterAid
WaterAid
WaterAid
WaterAid
Water.Org-USA
The Very Group, UK
WaterAid
United Way Worldwide-USA
Rockefeller Philanthropy Advisors (RPA)
SNV Netherlands
Team Broken Earth
Team Broken Earth
ABN-AMRO MeesPierson
Broken Earth
Penny Appeal, UK
Penny Appeal, UK
Metlife Foundation-USA
Renata Ltd.
Local Donor
Local Donor
Gates Foundation
Mallzee
Penny Appeal, UK
Penny Appeal, UK
Penny Appeal, UK
British Asian Trust
Concern Worldwide-Bangladesh
Citi Foundation
Standard Chartered Bank Ltd
HSBC Ltd.
Bangladesh Steel Re - Rolling Mills Ltd (BSRM)
Corporate Agencies and Individual Donors
Sub Total
Grand Total
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Amount (BDT)
11,191,132
8,614,258
1,216,359
21,021,749
1,810,641
82,835
1,893,476
8,059,702
40,979,846
12,900,307
61,939,855
121,325,583
17,098,339
4,675,873
50,995,387
129,960,156
157,131,318
481,186,656
9,723,720
1,702,179
72,366,887
20,631,160
6,618,207
2,747,215
924,538
14,563,039
129,276,945
8,647,214
7,605,524
9,147,578
1,700,538
78,484,033
2,309,934
1,839,880
3,660,743
1,034,093
330,000
120,566
15,075,846
1,312,729
42,532,281
25,685,660
68,847,265
57,231,028
30,500,545
1,316,108
3,673,979
22,019,229
40,348,261
8,553,060
17,425,938
1,901,076
928,736
4,044,503
5,365,564
3,940,092
12,621,925
50,000,000
27,886,814
100,000
27,029,477
124,462,518
13,574,881
3,519,698
3,723,331
7,324,194
1,976,994
8,306,400
9,900,000
3,833,051
1,000,000
8,562,490
769,403,775
1,464,722,456

Donor and Partner wise source of funds
as of June 2021

B. Loans:
Name of Donor/Partner

Palli Karma Sahayak Foundation

Programs

Project Life

Amount Received
(BDT)

Amount Returned
(BDT)

Dues (BDT)

Livelihood Restoration Program

July 2007-January 2008

10,000,000

10,000,000

-

Seasonal

February 2009-June 2015

277,000,000

277,000,000

-

RNPPO

October 2007 -June 2012

112,308,000

112,308,000

-

EFRRAP

February 2009-January 2012

10,000,000

10,000,000

-

Institutional Development Program

April 2007-February 2011

3,261,911

3,261,911

-

Seasonal Agriculture

February 2012-June 2015

60,000,000

60,000,000

-

Microcredit (RMC&UMC)

September 2005-Ongoing

2,007,100,000

2,007,100,000

-

Micro Enterprise

July 2006-Ongoing

790,000,000

790,000,000

-

Ultra Poor

July 2012-Ongoing

120,000,000

120,000,000

Jagoron

September 2014-Ongoing

1,130,000,000

976,000,000

154,000,000

-

Agrosor

September 2014-Ongoing

1,130,000,000

971,000,000

159,000,000

Agrosor-MDP

November 2019-Ongoing

115,000,000

40,000,000

75,000,000

Buniad

September 2014-Ongoing

100,000,000

86,666,668

13,333,332

Sufolon

September 2014-Ongoing

320,000,000

320,000,000

-

KGF(Sufolon)

September 2014-Ongoing

330,000,000

330,000,000

-

IGA

June 2017-Ongoing

4,000,000

4,000,000

-

Livelihood Improvement Program

June 2017-Ongoing

400,000

400,000

-

Livelihood Restoration Loan

November 2020-Ongoing

50,000,000

-

50,000,000

Asset Creation

June 2017-Ongoing

Sub Total

600,000

550,000

50,000

6,569,669,911

6,118,286,579

451,383,332
-

CARE Bangladesh

October 2001-June 2006

BRAC

November 1997-May 2007

12,205,451

12,205,451

264,990,265

264,990,265

ASA

July 2005-January 2008

-

6,000,000

6,000,000

-

Bangladesh Bank (Grihayan Tahbil)

January 2010-January 2015

Bangladesh Bank (SMAP-JICA)

September 2015-Ongoing

Sonali Bank Ltd.

August 2010July 2013

Sonali Bank Ltd.(OD)

February 2019-Ongoing

One Bank

March 2012-June 2013

Eastern Bank

June 2012-Ongoing

Bank Asia Ltd.

June 2012-October 2014

250,000,000

250,000,000

-

Habib Bank Ltd.

May 2016-Ongoing

1,075,000,000

1,075,000,000

-

Jamuna Bank Ltd

March 2014-Ongoing

1,270,000,000

1,270,000,000

-

Jamuna Bank Ltd. (OD)

March 2014-Ongoing

211,843,016

211,843,016

-

Bank Alfalah Ltd.

January 2011-Ongoing

2,509,854,000

2,509,854,000

-

HSBC Ltd.

April 2015-Ongoing

1,887,023,930

1,887,023,930

-

HSBC Ltd. (OD)
BRAC Bank Ltd.
BRAC Bank Ltd. (Overdraft)
Standard Chartered Bank Ltd.
Standard Chartered Bank Ltd.(OD)

April 2015-Ongoing
June 2015-Ongoing
January 2017-Ongoing
February 2013-Ongoing
February 2013-Ongoing

889,697,925
16,460,000,000
11,819,699,153
5,900,000,000
700,442,157

889,697,925
14,460,000,000
11,839,473,739
5,900,000,000
654,393,686

2,000,000,000
(19,774,586)
46,048,470

Dhaka Bank Ltd

May 2016-Ongoing

2,550,000,000

2,050,000,000

500,000,000

Dhaka Bank Ltd (Overdraft)

May 2016-Ongoing

23,549,440,979

23,549,440,979

Prime Bank Ltd.

September 2016-Ongoing

4,850,585,089

4,600,585,089

250,000,000

Prime Bank Ltd. (Overdraft)

September 2016-Ongoing

4,881,441,376

4,874,263,039

7,178,337

Mutual Trust Bank Ltd.

December 2016-Ongoing

3,710,000,000

3,710,000,000

-

Mutual Trust Bank Ltd.(Overdraft)

July 2016-Ongoing

5,291,091,217

5,225,571,311

65,519,906

Agrani Bank Ltd (Overdraft)

April 2017-Ongoing

53,416,061,000

53,350,686,952

65,374,049

Dutch -Bangla Bank Ltd

May 2018-Ongoing

250,000,000

250,000,000

-

Southeast Bank Ltd

Sept. 2017-Ongoing

100,000,000

100,000,000

-

Pubali Bank Ltd

Sept. 2017-Ongoing

2,509,335,560

2,509,335,560

-

Pubali Bank Ltd (OD)

May 2018 - Ongoing

2,238,049,887

2,209,804,001

28,245,886

United Commercial Bank Ltd

Sept. 2019-Ongoing

3,000,000,000

3,000,000,000

-

UAE Bangladesh Investment Co. Ltd

Oct. 2019-Ongoing

50,000,000

50,000,000

-

The City Bank Ltd

Sept. 2019-Ongoing

300,000,000

300,000,000

NCC Bank Ltd

June. 2019-Ongoing

1,400,000,000

748,600,000

Commercial Bank of Cylon

Sept 2019-Ongoing

1,550,000,000

1,412,500,000

FMO

Dec 2020-Ongoing

633,748,479

Bangladesh Bank (Refinance)

July 2020-Ongoing

600,000,000

344,257,782

255,742,218

Meghna Bank Ltd

Nov 2020-Ongoing

1,000,000,000

500,000,000

500,000,000

Uttara Bank Ltd

April. 2018-Ongoing

2,310,000

2,310,000

1,534,100,000

1,134,100,000

400,000,000

50,000,000

50,000,000

-

1,569,100,048

1,567,887,512

1,212,536

190,000,000

190,000,000

5,750,178,238

4,750,178,238

-

1,000,000,000

-

651,400,000
137,500,000
633,748,479

333,327,833

333,327,833

Sub Total

164,565,525,604

158,043,330,309

6,522,195,295

-

Grand Total

171,135,195,515

164,161,616,888

6,973,578,627
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At a Glance

For the Year July 2020-June 2021
Outreach

Human Resources
Particulars
Head Office
Programs
Total

Particulars
Districts
Unions
Upazilas
Branches

Total
23
699
186
231

Population Covered (est)

6.04 million

Male
116
2,447
2,563

Female
50
874
924

Total
166
3,321
3,487

Annual Budget
Fiscal Year

Organization Amount

Donor Amount

BDT million

USD Million

BDT Million

USD-Million

2008-09

2,706

($33.83)

27.34

($0.34)

2009-10
2010-11

3,082
3,737

($38.53)
($46.71)

17.59
28.3

($0.22)
($0.35)

2011-12

4,212

($52.65)

63.1

($0.79)

2012-13
2013-14

6,521
7,112

($81.51)
($88.90)

33.3
56.4

($0.42)
($0.71)

2014-15

9,050

($113.13)

90.2

($1.13)

2015-16
2016-17

9,747
19,050

($126.58)
($230.90)

94.5
77.4

($1.23)
($0.93)

2017-18

35,360
45,788
54,078

($431.21)

117.5

($1.43)

($555.01)
($637.35)

184.1
182.2

($2.23)
($2.17)

Key Performance Indicators

June-20

June-21

No of District Covered (Out of 64)
Total No of Branch Office
Total No of Member
Total No of Borrower
Total Loan Outstanding Balance (million)
Total Amount Disbursed (million)
Total Member Savings Balance (million)
Portfolio-At-Risk (PAR30)
On Time Recovery (OTR)
Number of Member Per Credit Officer

22
228
420,667
334,380
17,855.38
605.74
4,726.65
4.56
99.91
268

22
232
369,438
268,914
13,552.10
1,658.57
4,264.04
16.66
92.21
254

2018-19
2019-20

Microfinance

Hospitals

Safeguarding Training
Particulars
Project Office
Branch Office
Finance & Accounts
Head Office
No. of Male Trainee
No. of Female Trainee
Investigation Activities:
Formal Complain
Informal Complain
Investigation

166 I

As on June-2021
13
159
12
8
1,745
631
104
6
82

Particulars
Doctors
Total outdoor patients treated (million)
Total patients admitted
Total normal deliveries performed

As on June-2020
28
1.87
96,500
5,440

Total caesarean deliveries performed
Total cataract Surgeries performed

22,821
5,778

Total other Surgeries performed
Total Nurses
Specialized Doctors

59,986
80
27

Total newborns treated at NICU/Peaditric

3,219

Malaria Control

SAMRIDDHI
Particulars

As on June-2021

Particulars

As on June-2021

16,572

Population covered

785,983

Static & Satellite Clinic Organized

2,683

Households covered

169,437

Patients Received Health Services

59,314

ANC & PNC Service Provided

Labs established

3

432

Lab center functioning

3

Education Center

33

Blood slides examined

102,901

Sanitary Latrine Constructed

53

Blood slides positive

Tube well Installed

45

Rapid Diagnostic Test performed

Operation done for Cataract Patient

HH based Sanitary Latrine Constructed

500

Beggar Rehabilitated

11

No. of Borrower

396

323
50,499

Rapid Diagnostic Test positive

205

Long lasting insecticide net (LLIN) distributed
Ordinary nets treated

104,999
32,675

Popular theatre & folk songs organized

14

Orientation on malaria prevention & control

55

Working with Women Phase II

Orientation of village doctors on malaria management

27

Particulars
As on June-2021
Worker Orientation on Gender based Violence
& Mental Health
3,500
Para-Counselor Training
15
Mid-Level Management Training
158
World Mental Health Day Observation
200
Training of Mental Health First Aid
41
Anti-Harassment Committee Formation & Training
58
Gender based violence campaign
200
Total session provided on para-counselling by
welfare-officer
193
Tele-counselling of Psycho-social counselor
52

Advocacy workshop

Vocational Training Provided

17

9

WASH
Particulars

As on June-2021

School water facility

58

School sanitation facility

58

Community water facility

7,621

Community sanitation facility

4,527

Beneficiary Coverage
(Water, Sanitation and Hygiene)

326,482

Training, Campaign and Day Observation
(School, Community, Factory)

304

Number of Water Credit Loan

31,038

Water Credit Loan Amount (million)

1,477.93

Agriculture & Livestock Unit

Public/Mobile Toilet user (million)

Particulars
As on June-2021
Technology Demonstration on Agriculture
1,309

Water Connection Legalization
Rainwater Harvesting System at RMG Factory

4

Technology Demonstration on Fish culture

Rainwater Harvesting System at School

3

Technology Demonstration on Livestock

367
1,103

Farmers received training on Agri. Livestock
& Fisheries

20,101

Particulars
Household Covered (HH)
Population Covered (Beneficiary)
BCC Orientation (Orientation)
PHC (Services)
Maternity (Services)
Accidental (Services)
Normal Delivery (Services)
Caesarian Section (Services)

60

RMG workers were covered through WASH facilities 40,537
Beneficiaries received
WASH loans and hygiene awareness

118,376

Community piped water supply system

2

WASH in Health Facility

2

Tub well installation

PROSHOMON

5.25

700

Nirapotta (Safety Net)
As on June-2020
15,000
65,373
385
135,877
20,853
4,480
206
451

Particulars
Member enrolled
Death claims settled
Cattle Death claims settled
Health claims settled

As on June-2021
197,679
13,387
6
78,288

Disaster claims settled
1,317
Education scholarships provided
20,619
Scholarship installments disbursed (written off) (million) 49.77
Legal services provided

3,755
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Inner Circle
Particulars

Psychological Health and Wellness Clinic
As on June-2021

Total number of children served till date
a) ABA-VB Therapy
b) Speech & Language Therapy
c) Occupational Therapy
Total number of children currently taking services
a) ABA-VB Therapy
b) Speech & Language Therapy
c) Occupational Therapy
Number of Therapists
Number of International Partnerships
Number of LocaI Partnerships

Particulars

131

Clients Reached for Psychological Support

111
62

Organization Received Corporate Workshops/Trainings 70
75

52
45
39

Workshops Conducted for NGOs

99

19
14

Amrao Manush

25
4

District Covered

2

Total No of Pavement Dweller Center

7

1

Home and Community Care

On-Site Counselling Provided (No of people)

Particulars

Participants received basic necessities
Completed EPI

As on June-2021
305

Total Block grant distributed (million)

Total Caregivers

244

Participates Received Health care
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51

1,086

As on June-2021

21,584
2,101
0.6%

Total member received savings interest (BDT) (million) 22.39

Total Patient served
Total number of training provided to the caregivers

2,853

No of NGOs Received Psycho-Social Support (PSS)

Total Day Care Service received
Particulars

As on June-2021

29.18
17,592

OTOBI Center, 4th & 5th floor, plot 12,
Block CWS(C), Gulshan South Avenue,
Gulshan 1, Dhaka 1212

E-mail

inquiry@sajida.org

Phone

+8802222290513
+8802222291511

Fax

+8802222263165

